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Hydro One Inc.
Is a holding company with  
subsidiaries that operate in the 
business areas of electricity 
transmission and distribution  
and telecom services.

Hydro One Networks Inc.
Represents the majority of our 
business, which is regulated by  
the Ontario Energy Board. It is 
involved in the planning, construction, 
operation and maintenance of our 
transmission and distribution networks.

Hydro One Brampton  
Networks Inc.
Distributes electricity to one of the 
fastest-growing urban centres in 
Canada, just 30 kilometres outside 
of Toronto.

Hydro One Remote  
Communities Inc.
Operates and maintains the  
generation and distribution assets 
used to supply electricity to 21 
remote communities across northern 
Ontario that are not connected to the 
province’s electricity transmission grid.

Hydro One Telecom Inc.
Markets our fibre-optic capacity  
to business customers. This business 
represents less than 1 per cent of our 
total assets.

Reliable. Productive. Sustainable.  
Every hour of every day, Hydro One works 
to ensure Ontario has a safe, reliable and 
cost-effective electricity system. It takes 
time to build a system like ours. We make 
prudent and logical investments and we 
build our system to last. 
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Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions)  2010  2009   $ Change  % Change
Revenues 5,124 4,744 380 8
Purchased power 2,474 2,326 148 6
Operating costs 1,661 1,594 67 4
Net income 591 470 121 26
Net cash from operations 1,164 892 272 30
Average Ontario 60-minute peak demand (MW)1 21,572 20,798 774 4
Distribution – units distributed to customers (TWh)1 29.1 28.9 0.2 1

1 System-related statistics include preliminary figures for December.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
HIGHLIGHTS AND STATISTICS

Capital Expenditures
(Canadian dollars in millions)
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Hydro One’s core mandate is the safe, reliable and cost-
effective transmission and distribution of electricity to Ontario 
homes and businesses. In carrying out that mandate, Hydro 
One has a second mandate to operate as a commercial 
enterprise.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the 
management of the business and affairs of Hydro One and, 
as such, for overseeing the implementation of both mandates. 
In doing so, the Board has a general fiduciary responsibility 
and duty of care to act in the best interest of Hydro One. 
The Board has a more specific responsibility to act pursuant 
to the terms of our existing Memorandum of Agreement with 
the Province of Ontario – respecting mandate, governance, 
responsibilities, performance expectations and executive 
compensation.

I believe the Board performed very well in 2010 in 
accordance with such oversight responsibilities.

Our electricity system continued to perform reliably, safely 
and effectively this past year, at a time of investing heavily 
to maintain and upgrade aging infrastructure and to 
accommodate the various demands of the Green Energy Act 
and of the Province’s Long-Term Energy Plan to encourage 
renewable energy generation.

These investments have had significant rate ramifications. The 
Board is very aware of, and sensitive to, the impact of rate 
increases on our customers, and we will continue to seek 
productivity improvements to mitigate the costs of these heavy 
investments.

At the same time, we delivered increased value to our 
shareholder. We maintained our long-term “A” credit rating, 
which enabled us to continue to borrow on advantageous 
terms, thus mitigating the costs of our work plan.

A major oversight tool for the Board is the Corporate 
Scorecard, which measures management’s performance in 
accordance with and against the approved Strategic Plan 
and annual Business Plan. I am pleased to report that, for 
2010, the goals of the Corporate Scorecard were met on 
balance. While management compensation was frozen 
pursuant to the Restraint Act, appropriate short-term incentive 
compensation was paid to management in accordance with 
our existing plan as permitted by the Restraint Act.

The Board approved a significant senior management 
reorganization, which we believe will enhance the 
performance of the organization. We also approved the 
creation of a new pension-investment function and the 
creation of a new position of Chief Investment and Pension 
Officer, which should improve performance of the pension 
fund over the longer term.

I want to thank all our employees, and my colleagues on the 
Board of Directors, for their commitment to Hydro One and its 
various stakeholders.

James Arnett
Chair of the Board of Directors
Hydro One Inc. 

LETTER FROM  
THE CHAIR

Our electricity system continued to perform reliably, safely and 
effectively this past year, at a time of investing heavily to maintain 
and upgrade aging infrastructure and to accommodate the various 
demands of the Green Energy Act and of the Province’s Long-Term 
Energy Plan to encourage renewable energy generation. 
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LETTER FROM  
THE PRESIDENT 
AND CEO

2010 was a year of solid progress on many fronts. We  
are confident in our ability to achieve our longer-term  
mission and vision, which will enable us to continue serving 
our customers safely, reliably and cost-effectively. 

We are investing in Ontario’s energy future. Our focus is 
on prudently maintaining and expanding our distribution 
and transmission systems while moving to adopt the 
technologies that will improve our value to our customers and 
our shareholder. It is critical that we maintain an effective 
balance between our customers’ needs and the urgent need 
to sustain our critical transmission and distribution assets and 
connect new sources of renewable energy.

We know that meeting the expectations of the people of 
Ontario is a demanding task as our sector goes through a 
dynamic period of growth and change. We are listening to 
our customers and renewing our electricity system to enable 
clean and renewable sources of electricity. As we make 
prudent and efficient investments in Ontario’s electricity grid, 
I am confident that Hydro One will continue to deliver on our 
promise of value in many different ways in the years ahead. 

We will continue to operate a safe and reliable system and 
look for increased efficiencies while building the system of 
tomorrow. Our customers deserve value for the price of the 
services they pay for and we remain committed to providing 
that value and to improving our customers’ satisfaction 
with Hydro One. We will also continue to improve the 
sustainability of our operations and enhance our customers’ 
ability to manage their energy costs and efficiency. 

As always, our focus must be on the safety of our employees. 
Our Journey to Zero program will enable us to fulfill our 
commitment to our co-workers and their families to be safe in 
our work. We must be relentless in our pursuit of this goal. 

I’d like to thank the employees of Hydro One for their 
dedication and hard work as the industry continues to 
change and transform. Together, we are industry leaders in 
developing the Smart Grid, we are facilitators in connecting 
renewable energy and we are a financially responsible 
Company providing value to our customers and the Province 
of Ontario. 

Laura Formusa
President and CEO, Hydro One Inc.

It is critical that we maintain an effective balance between  
our customers’ needs and the urgent need to sustain our  
critical transmission and distribution assets and connect new 
sources of renewable energy.
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1.3 million
smart meters 
installed across 
the Province.

Improvements to system reliability
Improving the reliability of Ontario’s electricity system means knowing 
when and where to make upgrades and repairs. By using analytical 
information like outage occurrences and inspection results, we ensure that 
the most important upgrades are done fi rst. 

In 2010, we invested $1.57 billion in capital expenditures to improve 
system reliability and performance, address an aging power system, 
facilitate the connection of new generation and improve service to our 
customers.

Long-term initiatives like the 500-kV transmission line unbundling 
project from Cherrywood TS to Claireville TS provide operational 
and maintenance fl exibility.

Work on the Bruce to Milton Transmission Reinforcement Project moved 
ahead on schedule with tower construction underway on segments of 
the line where approvals have been obtained and land rights have been 
acquired. The project is expected to be in service by late 2012 and 
will deliver approximately 3,200 MW of new, renewable and nuclear 
power from the Huron-Grey-Bruce area. 

Smart meter, smart grid
Ontario’s electricity grid is getting smarter. We completed the installation 
of more than 1.3 million smart meters of which more than 1.1 million 
are enabled to support Time-of-Use pricing. This is one of the largest 
deployments of smart meters undertaken by any utility in North America. 
We converted more than 553,000 customers to Time-of-Use pricing, 
exceeding the Ontario Energy Board’s monthly cumulative 
Time-of-Use target.

Improvements to system reliability
Improving the reliability of Ontario’s electricity system means knowing 
when and where to make upgrades and repairs. By using analytical 

Reliable
INVESTING IN INFRASTRUCTURE

$1.57 billion
invested in 
improving our 
system.
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INVESTING IN INFRASTRUCTURE

HYDRO ONE CONTINUES TO MAINTAIN 
AND EXPAND OUR DISTRIBUTION AND 
TRANSMISSION SYSTEMS WHILE ENSURING 
THE RELIABLE DELIVERY OF POWER TO  
THE PROVINCE OF ONTARIO AND OUR  
CUSTOMERS.  

 
On the cutting edge of innovation
Innovation is playing a key role in the future of Ontario’s electricity 
system. Hydro One has partnered with Ryerson University to establish the 
Centre for Urban Energy, which will research innovative and practical 
solutions to urban energy issues. This partnership will help Hydro One 
identify solutions for integrating new technologies and develop the future 
leaders of the energy sector.

Hydro One has also partnered with the University of Western Ontario 
and the University of Waterloo to promote the development of innovative 
electrical engineering solutions to connect clean and renewable energy. 
These partnerships also include funding student scholarships and awards.

We are there when our customers need us
In 2010, high winds, snow, forest fires and tornadoes caused  
numerous outages across the Province. But customers can count on  
our highly-trained staff to respond rapidly and communities can depend 
on our mobile response efforts, which see crews from unaffected areas 
arriving to help get the power back on quickly. For example, when 
Chapleau lost power due to a forest fire, Hydro One crews travelled 
from across Ontario to rebuild 15 single and twin pole structures as soon 
as the fire was under control. 

The Long-Term Energy Plan is pointing our industry in an  
exciting new direction. It maps out an integrated approach to  
the development of Ontario’s electricity system and enables  
renewable technology.
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Strong fi nancial performance
Total revenues for 2010 were $5,124 million, an increase of 
$380 million from 2009. Transmission revenues of $1,307 million 
and distribution revenues of $3,754 million refl ected various rate 
increases in support of necessary work program requirements and the 
impact of higher temperatures experienced this summer.

We also maintained an “A” credit rating, which means the Company 
is able to access the long-term debt markets at a reasonable cost. This 
is critical to completing our work programs cost-effectively. During the 
year, we successfully issued $1.5 billion of debt fi nancing through our 
Medium-Term Note Program. 

VALUING EVERY DOLLAR

Productive

For more than a century, 
the electricity sector 
in Ontario has delivered 
a safe, reliable and cost-
eff ective supply of 
electricity.
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VALUING EVERY DOLLAR

PROVIDING VALUE TO OUR CUSTOMERS MEANS ENSURING 
EVERY DOLLAR SPENT IS A DOLLAR SPENT WISELY. HYDRO ONE 
IS FINDING WAYS TO INCREASE PRODUCTIVITY AND BE 
TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE TO ALL ONTARIANS.    

PROVIDING VALUE TO OUR CUSTOMERS MEANS ENSURING 
EVERY DOLLAR SPENT IS A DOLLAR SPENT WISELY. 

Productive
Cost-cutting measures
As Ontario’s largest electricity transmission and distribution company, 
Hydro One must fi nd ways to balance sustainment of assets and 
affordability of electricity. Employees across the Company are helping 
to fi nd ways to reduce costs and improve productivity. 

Some areas which Hydro One has improved productivity and provided 
value to customers include:
•		$34	million	in	savings	in	2010	by	moving	to	standardized	planning	

and reporting.
•		Automated	meter	reading	associated	with	smart	meters	is	expected	

to reduce costs by taking meter reads and detecting meter issues 
remotely rather than dispatching staff.

Measuring productivity 
In 2009, we introduced two rigorous new performance metrics: Cost per 
Asset Value for transmission and Cost per Line Length for distribution. We 
met both targets in 2010 with a transmission unit cost of 4.6 per cent per 
transmission asset and a distribution unit cost of $6,600 per kilometre 
of line. We will continue to measure and benchmark productivity every 
year, with the goal of placing in the top quartile when measured against 
comparable North American utilities. 

Connecting renewable energy
Connecting solar, wind, hydro-electric and biomass generation to the 
electricity grid allows the Province to replace coal generation with 
clean power. Hydro One plays an important role in the connection 
of renewable energy projects under the Feed-In Tariff (FIT) and Micro 
Feed-In Tariff (microFIT) programs. In 2010, we connected 2,397 
microFIT projects. In addition, since 2003, we have connected more 
than 2,000 megawatts of renewable generation and more than 
4,500 megawatts of natural gas generation. That’s enough to power 
42,000 homes for a year.

We connected
2,397 microFIT
projects to our 
system in 2010.
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Making Greener Choices
Greener Choices, a grassroots employee-run environmental group in 
the Company, was established in 2008 to reduce greenhouse gases 
produced by Hydro One. It focuses on three areas, fl eet, facilities and 
employees. In 2010, retrofi ts were conducted at the Central Maintenance 
System facility that reduced energy consumption by 280,000 kWh 
through lighting upgrades. Greener Choices is also taking aim at 
Hydro One’s fl eet, getting hybrids on the road and retiring vehicles that 
are no longer needed. Through these efforts and others, the Greener 
Choices program prevented the release of 2,595 tonnes of CO2 into the 
atmosphere in 2010. That’s like taking more than 500 cars off the road. 

Sustainability Company of the Year
The Canadian Electricity Association named Hydro One the Sustainability 
Company of the Year. This honour is in recognition of our ongoing 
efforts to reduce environmental impacts in all aspects of our operations, 
including fl eet and facilities, through our conservation and demand 
management programs and through our support for biodiversity projects 
in local communities.

PROMOTING CONSERVATION

Release of 
2,595 tonnes
of CO2 prevented 
by Greener 
Choices initiatives.

AS PARTNERS IN POWERFUL COMMUNITIES ACROSS 
ONTARIO, HYDRO ONE PROMOTES SUSTAINABLE 
DECISION MAKING. BY MAKING GREENER CHOICES, 
OUR EMPLOYEES AND OUR CUSTOMERS ARE 
REDUCING  THEIR IMPACT ON THE ENVIRONMENT. 

AS PARTNERS IN POWERFUL COMMUNITIES ACROSS 
ONTARIO, HYDRO ONE PROMOTES SUSTAINABLE 

Sustainable
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PROMOTING CONSERVATION

Hydro One received the Canadian Electricity Association annual 
Environmental Commitment Award for our Biodiversity Initiative for the 
Bruce to Milton Transmission Reinforcement Project. This project will 
create and enhance natural habitats in the communities touched by the 
project. We are working on this in partnership with First Nations and 
Métis communities and community-based agencies and stakeholders. 

Customer conservation and demand  
management programs
Hydro One is helping to build a conservation culture within Ontario and 
our customers are leading the way. By retiring inefficient fridges and 
freezers and making energy retrofits to their homes, 1.5 million customers 
have helped save 500 million kWh of electricity since 2005. That’s 
enough to power approximately 42,000 homes for a year, resulting in 
reductions in greenhouse gas emissions savings of more than 86,000 
tonnes of CO2. 

Journey to Zero
Achieving an injury-free workplace starts with each and every employee. 
That’s why the Journey to Zero program was launched in 2009, aimed 
at identifying opportunities to improve Hydro One’s health and safety 
performance. In 2010, we had a frequency of 2.8 medical attentions 
and 0.05 lost-time injuries per 200,000 hours worked. This exceeded 
our target of 3.6 medical attentions and 0.23 lost-time injuries per 
200,000 hours worked.

Hydro One has a strong and positive corporate giving 
culture. Our employees give generously to our 
charity campaign, volunteer their time in their local 
communities and are taking steps to reduce their  
environmental impact.

Our customers  
helped reduce  
demand for  
electricity by  
500 million  
kWh.
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Laura Formusa
President and Chief  
Executive Officer,  
Hydro One Inc.

John Fraser
Senior Vice-President,  
Internal Audit and  
Chief Risk Officer

Carmine Marcello
Executive Vice-President, 
Strategy

Joe Agostino
General Counsel

Peter Gregg
Executive Vice-President, 
Operations

Sandy Struthers
Executive Vice-President
and Chief Financial Officer

HYDRO ONE 
SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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We prepare our fi nancial statements in Canadian dollars in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Canada. 
The following discussion is based upon our Consolidated Financial Statements for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
We are wholly owned by the Province of Ontario (the Province), and our Transmission and Distribution Businesses are regulated by 
the Ontario Energy Board (OEB). Our mission and vision have been refi ned to recognize the unique role we play in the economy 
of the province and as a provider of critical infrastructure to all our customers. We will be an innovative and trusted company 
delivering electricity safely, reliably and effi ciently to create value for our customers. We operate as a commercial enterprise with 
an independent Board of Directors. Our strategic plan is driven by our values: health and safety, stewardship, excellence and 
innovation. Safety is of utmost importance to us because we work in an environment that can be hazardous. We take our 
responsibility as stewards of critical provincial assets seriously. We demonstrate sound stewardship by managing our assets in 
a manner that is commercial and transparent and values our customers. We strive for excellence by being trained, prepared 
and equipped to deliver high-quality service. We value innovation because it allows us to increase our productivity and develop 
enhanced methods to meet the needs of our customers. In 2010, we continued to focus on our core businesses, substantially 
maintained and improved our performance in various key areas of the Company, and made important contributions to the rebuilding 
of Ontario’s core infrastructure while preparing to meet the requirements of the Green Energy Act (GEA).

We manage our business using the following governance structure:

Core Business and Strategy
Our corporate strategy is based on our mission and vision and our values. Our strategic goals, which are discussed on page 4, 
encompass the core values that drive our business. Our strategy touches every part of our core business: health and safety; our 
customers; innovation; the reliability and effi ciency of our systems; the environment; our workforce; shareholder value; and productivity. 

Key Performance Drivers
We have identifi ed performance drivers critical to achieving our strategic goals. Each driver is specifi c to measuring our success in 
achieving a specifi c goal. We establish specifi c performance targets against each driver every year aimed at achieving our strategic 
goals over time. For example, we calculate lost-time injury frequencies and medical attentions to measure our progress toward an 
injury-free workplace and the duration and frequency of unplanned interruptions to measure the success of our initiatives to increase 
the reliability of our transmission and distribution systems. Reduced carbon emissions demonstrate our commitment to protecting the 
environment. These and other key performance drivers are included in our discussion of our performance measures beginning on 
page 5.

Capability to Deliver Results
We continued to use a balanced scorecard approach and set 18 stretch targets for 2010 as we strive to manage our key 
performance drivers and deliver results each and every year. This year we met or exceeded 14 of 18 targets, representing an 
improvement over last year when we met or exceeded 8 of 13 stretch targets. We are on target to enable clean and renewable 
energy in Ontario with the implementation of our Bruce to Milton Project that will create Ontario’s new clean energy corridor. 

MANAGEMENT’S
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Core Business
and Strategy

Key 
Performance

Drivers

Results and
Outlook

Capability to
Deliver Results
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

We continue to prioritize safety in the workplace, adding a new performance measure this year. We exceeded our target for lost-
time injuries by 78% and exceeded our new target for medical attentions by 22%. We are focused on balancing customer needs in 
the changing electricity sector and achieved an overall satisfaction score of 89% for both our transmission and distribution customers.  
The results of our efforts are fully discussed in the section Performance Measures and Targets, beginning on page 5. Our capability 
to deliver results in each of our strategic areas is limited by risks inherent in the regulatory environment, our business, our workforce 
and the economic environment. These risks, as well as our strategies to mitigate them, are discussed beginning on page 25.

Results and Outlook
During 2010, our financial fundamentals remained strong, with current year net income of $591 million. Our OEB-approved  
revenue requirements for our Transmission and Distribution Businesses for 2010 were $1,257 million and $1,146 million, 
respectively. The approved rates support our work programs required to sustain our critical infrastructure and invest in a sustainable 
electricity system that supports renewable and cleaner generation. We maintained “A” category credit ratings and successfully 
issued $1,500 million in debt financing, while repaying $600 million of debt maturing in the year. A full discussion of our results of 
operations and financing activities can be found beginning on pages 14 and 18, respectively. 

In 2010, we invested more than $1.5 billion in capital expenditures to improve system reliability and performance, address an 
aging power system, facilitate new generation and improve service to customers. Our estimated future capital expenditures for 2011 
and 2012 have decreased marginally from those previously disclosed as a result of various letters received from the Minister of 
Energy, the introduction of a Long-Term Energy Plan (LTEP) and an OEB policy to further competition for transmission development. 
Similarly, we eliminated requirements for Green Transmission projects for new lines from our budgeted expenditures and refined our 
requirements to support distributed generation. The impacts were partially offset by requirements associated with our existing grid. 
We continue to focus on addressing aging infrastructure, including critical stations that serve industry and major customer load areas. 
Our future capital expenditures are more fully discussed beginning on page 21.

OVERVIEW
Transmission 
Substantially all of Ontario’s electricity transmission system is owned and operated by our Company. Our transmission system forms 
an integrated transmission grid that is monitored, controlled and managed centrally from our Ontario Grid Control Centre. Our 
system operates over relatively long distances and links major sources of generation to transmission stations and larger area load 
centres. In 2010, we earned total transmission revenues of $1,307 million primarily by transmitting approximately 142 TWh of 
electricity, directly or indirectly, to substantially all consumers of electricity in Ontario. Our transmission system is one of the largest 
in North America, and is linked to five adjoining jurisdictions through 26 interconnections. Through these interconnections, we 
can accommodate imports of about 4,600 MW and exports of approximately 6,000 MW of electricity. In terms of assets, our 
Transmission Business is our largest business segment, representing approximately 57% of our total assets. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Distribution 
Our distribution system is the largest in Ontario and spans roughly 75% of the province. We serve approximately 1.3 million rural 
and urban customers, local distribution companies (LDCs) connected to the distribution system, and 412 large user customers. We 
also operate small, regulated generation and distribution systems in a number of remote communities across Northern Ontario that 
are not connected to Ontario’s electricity grid. We earned total distribution revenues in 2010 of $3,754 million. As illustrated in 
the accompanying chart, about half of our distribution revenues are earned from our residential customers. In terms of assets, our 
Distribution Business represents approximately 40% of our total assets.

Other 
Our other business segment contributed revenues of $63 million in 2010 and has assets of about $609 million, which constitute  
3% of our total assets. This segment primarily represents the operations of our wholly owned subsidiary, Hydro One Telecom Inc.  
(Hydro One Telecom), which markets fibre-optic capacity to telecommunications carriers and commercial customers with broadband 
network requirements, including a dedicated optical network providing secure, high-capacity connectivity across numerous health 
care locations in Ontario.

Our Strategy 
Our corporate strategy is based on our mission and vision and our values. Our mission and vision is to be an innovative and trusted 
company delivering electricity safely, reliably and efficiently to create value for our customers. Our values represent our core beliefs:

Health and safety: Nothing is more important than the health and safety of our employees and those who work on our property, 
as well as maintaining a safe environment for the public.

Excellence: We achieve excellence through continuous training, ensuring we are prepared and equipped to deliver high-quality 
service.

Stewardship: We invest in our assets and people to build a safe, environmentally sustainable electricity network in a commercial 
manner.

Innovation: We innovate through new processes, people and technology to allow us to find better ways to meet the needs of  
our customers.

We have eight strategic objectives that do not stand alone and are inextricably linked with one another. They drive the fulfillment of 
our mission and vision. 

Creating an injury-free workplace and maintaining public safety. Health and safety must be integrated into all that we do. 
We must continue to create a passion for preventing injury. We will strengthen our already strong safety culture through our Journey to 
Zero initiative and achieve world-class results. We will continue to reinforce that nothing is more important than the health and safety 
of our employees.

Satisfying our customers. We will meet our commitments, make customers our focus in our planning, communicate effectively, 
coordinate across lines of business, and maximize opportunities to improve our corporate image.

Continuous innovation. Innovation is critical to achieving our mission and vision and represents one of our core values. Over the 
next two decades, we will install innovative solutions that improve the reliability and efficiency of the transmission and distribution 
systems and provide our customers with more capability to manage their power costs.
 
Building and maintaining reliable, cost-effective power delivery systems. Our transmission strategy is to provide a robust 
and reliable provincial grid that accommodates Ontario’s emerging generation profile, manages an aging asset base and meets 
demand requirements through prudent expansion and effective maintenance. Our distribution strategy is focused on incorporating 
smart grid technology, providing reliable service over a diverse geography, supporting the connection of renewable generation, 
seeking efficiencies through productivity initiatives and remaining open to opportunities to rationalize the distribution sector. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Protecting and sustaining the environment. Consistent with our value of stewardship, Hydro One plays a central role in 
reducing Ontario’s carbon footprint through the delivery of clean and renewable energy and through measures that allow our 
customers to manage and reduce their energy use.

Employee engagement. We believe our primary strength is the capability of our people. In order to sustain this advantage,  
we must address the issues of labour demographics, diversity, development of critical core competencies, and skill and knowledge  
retention. Our labour strategy will enable us to make significant gains in the areas of labour flexibility, productivity improvement  
and cost reduction.

Maintenance of a commercial culture that increases value for our shareholder. We are committed to keeping rates 
as low as possible for our customers, and delivering income and dividends to our shareholder. This is possible through our focus on 
reducing costs, managing our assets effectively and increasing productivity.

Productivity improvement and cost-effectiveness. To achieve our mission and vision, we must constantly strive for 
productivity through efficiency and effective management of costs. Productivity is key to meeting our other strategic objectives and, in 
particular, to achieving value for our customers and our shareholder.

We recognize the pivotal role innovation will play in building a smart electricity grid that supports a clean environment for Ontario. 
We are committed to becoming the industry leader in putting innovative solutions to work for the well-being of the Ontario economy 
and its residents.

Performance Measures and Targets 
We measure and target our performance by using a balanced scorecard approach. Key performance drivers are closely monitored 
throughout the year to ensure that we achieve our strategic objectives. In 2010, we met or exceeded 14 of 18 stretch targets. 
Overall, we are making progress towards achieving our strategic goals. 

Creating an injury-free workplace and maintaining public safety
The potentially hazardous nature of our business requires a continuous focus on safety. Our people underpin everything we do, and 
as a result, safety is paramount. Our efforts to achieve an injury-free workplace are measured by our lost-time injury frequency and 
our newly added reportable medical attentions frequency. Overall, we exceeded our challenging 2010 target of 0.23 lost-time 
injuries per 200,000 hours worked, which is also a considerable improvement over our 2009 results. We also exceeded our 2010 
target of 3.6 medical attentions per 200,000 hours worked. Medical attentions are incidents reported to the Workplace Safety and 
Insurance Board that are more serious than basic first aid. While we monitor both of these measures to identify possible situations 
that may increase the risk of injury, medical attentions are considered a leading indicator. These injuries range from physical strains 
to those caused by electrical contacts. We continuously emphasize the improvement of safety performance and strive to achieve 
zero lost-time injuries by ensuring that all staff are appropriately trained and equipped for the hazards they may face. This involves 
continued coaching and mentoring, and building on our learning and experience. 

At the end of 2009, we launched our Journey to Zero initiative aimed at identifying key opportunities for improvement in our health 
and safety system in order to achieve world-class health and safety performance. During 2010 we formed a steering committee for 
this initiative, held workshops to prioritize the opportunities identified at the end of last year and developed an action plan to address 
the top areas for improvement. In October 2010, we were pleased to be informed by the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board 
that we had passed our Workwell audit, a comprehensive independent review of all aspects of our workplace health and safety 
program including policies, standards, training, records, performance and employee representation. 

We continue to promote public safety and the safe use of electricity through public service announcements and education programs 
in schools to teach children how to stay safe. We also continue to work with law enforcement agencies to combat copper theft, 
which endangers our employees and the public. 
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Satisfying our customers
Customer satisfaction is vital to our success. This is measured by a combination of independent surveys and transactional measures 
conducted for each of our customer segments. In 2010, the overall satisfaction level for both our distribution and transmission 
customers exceeded our targets. For our Distribution Business, overall customer satisfaction survey results of 89% exceeded our 
target of 81%. While we achieved consistent results compared to the prior year within our large distribution customer and residential 
and small business customer segments, we significantly increased customer satisfaction among distribution-connected generators. 
Satisfaction in this group was impacted by addressing concerns from last year’s surveys, clarifying processes and enhancing 
communications with customers. Connection application volumes are increasing and we remain focused on managing customer 
expectations. 

For our transmission customers, we experienced slightly lower results for our LDC customers than planned and are assessing the results 
to improve processes next year. However, our overall transmission customer survey results were offset by a significant improvement 
in our transmission-connected generator customer satisfaction as a result of addressing concerns noted in last year’s surveys. We 
continue to strive for customer service excellence. We continue to make our customers a high priority, and implement targeted 
strategies designed to meet the unique needs of each customer segment and address their concerns through a range of initiatives to 
improve customer satisfaction levels. 

Continuous innovation
We are committed to identifying and providing innovative solutions that will improve the reliability and efficiency of electricity delivery 
and provide our customers with more capability to manage their power consumption. Among our continuous innovation initiatives 
in 2010, smart meters remained a priority. We have more than 1,314,000 smart meters installed to date, of which approximately 
1,140,000 meters are enabled to support time-of-use billing. This represents a significant step forward in supporting the Smart Grid 
initiative. We fell short of our target of 1,170,000 meters enabled to support time-of-use billing due to challenges encountered 
related to the communications network needed to address the diverse needs of the geography across the province. We continue to 
anticipate that our OEB commitments will be met in 2011. 

A new measure for continuous innovation this year monitors green grid initiatives, which are an integral part of the GEA. These 
initiatives include establishing a communications network in the Greater Owen Sound area to test business applications for a smart 
electricity grid, developing a business case for further deployment of the communications network to the province, and developing 
utility solutions for the current challenges around installing and operating large numbers of distributed generation on our distribution 
system. We successfully achieved all 12 milestones related to these initiatives.

Building and maintaining reliable, cost-effective power delivery systems
As stewards of the province’s electricity grid, we aim to maintain and build trust in our operations. In 2010, we continued our focus 
on this strategic priority by investing in the key assets of the electricity delivery system and by operating the existing system for our 
customers in a safe, reliable and efficient fashion. In addition, our aim is to meet the growing demand for renewable generation. The 
reliability of our transmission and distribution systems is measured by the duration of unplanned customer interruptions throughout the 
year and our transmission system is further measured by the frequency of unplanned customer interruptions. In 2010, our transmission 
system met our reliability targets for both frequency and duration of interruptions. The transmission frequency of customer unplanned 
interruptions met the target for the year. The transmission duration of unplanned customer interruptions was 9.1 minutes, significantly 
exceeding the target of 16.0 minutes, and significantly improved from 19.7 minutes in 2009. 

Due to a number of challenges experienced in the last quarter of the year, the reliability of our distribution system was impacted 
in terms of duration of interruptions. Two severe winter storms affected the reliability of our distribution system. The duration of 
interruptions for our distribution customers was 7.1 hours, or 0.2 hours higher than target and 0.1 hours higher than last year. We 
are conscious that residential customers and businesses of all sizes require reliable service, and consequently, we will continue to 
strive to improve the reliability of both our transmission and distribution systems.
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Protecting and sustaining the environment
As stewards of significant electricity assets, we have implemented a number of environmental initiatives aimed at instilling 
environmental awareness and action within our corporate culture. In 2010, we assessed two key metrics related to the Bruce to 
Milton Project and greenhouse gas reductions. We met our milestone targets related to the Bruce to Milton Project, which will create 
Ontario’s new clean energy corridor. Successful completion of the Bruce to Milton Project will increase transmission capability to 
deliver 1,700 MW of renewable generation identified in the area, as well as about 1,500 MW of power from the refurbished 
units at the Bruce Power Facility. On December 16, 2009, we received conditional Environmental Assessment approval for the 
project. Preparation of this environmental assessment involved three years of technical and environmental field work, and extensive 
consultation with land owners, interest groups, elected officials and First Nations and Métis communities. This year, we were 
recognized by the CEA, receiving an Environmental Commitment Award for our extensive Biodiversity Initiative related to the Bruce to 
Milton Project. This initiative goes beyond our traditional approach to biodiversity, using innovative ways of mitigating the effects of 
woodlot clearing. Our Biodiversity Initiative will develop and support a number of stewardship and biodiversity opportunities such as 
replanting grasslands, removal of invasive species and restoring forests in the communities affected by the Bruce to Milton Project. We 
are funding 23 locally-designed biodiversity projects located on public lands within the four watersheds the Bruce to Milton Project 
crosses. These projects will help to ensure environmental sustainability and will maintain and enhance the natural habitat. This initiative 
is being undertaken in collaboration with First Nations and Métis communities and community-based stakeholders and agencies.

We take our responsibility to reduce our carbon footprint very seriously. We did not meet our overall greenhouse gas reduction target 
as a result of not being able to verify our specific target to reduce sulphur hexafluoride emissions. However, we did exceed the target 
for the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions from other programs. In 2010, we removed approximately 2,595 metric tonnes of 
greenhouse gases from the environment, exceeding our target of 1,250 metric tonnes from these other initiatives that were aimed at 
improved deliveries of bio-diesel fuel at Hydro One Remotes, better efficiency of fleet utilization, including our Tire Smart Program, 
the purchase of fuel-efficient and hybrid vehicles and green initiatives at our facilities. Our continued commitment to the people 
of Ontario has been recognized again this year by Corporate Knights Inc., an independent company focused on promoting and 
reinforcing sustainable development in Canada. We were named one of the top five Corporate Citizens in Canada, our third top-ten 
ranking in three years. 

We have a publicly available environmental policy and are committed to protecting the environment for current and future 
generations. Adhering to this policy, we have many initiatives within our Company aimed at fulfilling our commitment to protect 
the environment, some of which are linked to a specific performance measure. All of our environmental initiatives are part of an 
internal program called Greener Choices. Greener Choices was created to help our Company become more energy-efficient and to 
reduce the emissions and environmental impacts of our fleet and our facilities. Our initiatives fall under four categories: helping our 
employees to be more aware of what they can do to reduce their environmental impacts; creating a culture of conservation within 
our Company; making our facilities more energy-efficient; and reducing the emissions of our fleet of vehicles.

Skill development and knowledge retention
Given the retirement profile of our employees, we are in a period of significant demographic change. This change is taking place 
across the electricity sector and we have taken a leadership role to address the transition. We have embarked on an aggressive 
workforce renewal program that will lead to a diverse, fully engaged workforce. In addition to our partnership with four community 
colleges, we strengthened our association with various Canadian universities as part of a comprehensive strategy to meet our staffing 
needs well into the future. We also helped to establish the Ryerson University Centre for Urban Energy (the Centre). Our goal to 
attract and retain future sector leaders involves demonstrating that Hydro One is an employer of choice. In addition, we aim to 
facilitate retention and mentoring by focusing on employee engagement. We measure employee engagement across all lines of 
business using a confidential employee engagement survey. The grand mean score in 2010 was 3.70 out of 5, an improvement 
from the 2009 score of 3.63, but slightly lower than the 2010 target of 3.73. Detailed results of the 2010 survey will be used to 
actively address lower-performance areas and effectively implement targeted strategies designed to increase engagement levels.

Maintenance of a commercial culture that increases value for our shareholder
In 2010, we continued our commitment to maintain strong financial fundamentals. Our targets included net income and our 
credit ratings, which were both achieved. Net income for the year exceeded target mainly as a result of the higher temperatures 
experienced during the summer combined with effective cost management. A discussion of our financial results can be found on 
page 14 and of our liquidity and capital resources on page 18. 
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Our financial performance and the business environment in which we operate are taken into consideration in setting both our short-
term and long-term credit ratings. During 2010, our long-term and short-term debt credit ratings remained unchanged. Credit ratings 
are provided by DBRS Limited, Moody’s Investors Service Inc. and Standard & Poor’s Rating Services Inc. (S&P). Maintaining credit 
ratings in the “A” category allows us to continue to access the long-term debt markets. We have been able to successfully secure 
sufficient and cost-effective debt financing. Our current credit ratings facilitate ongoing access to debt markets at a reasonable cost  
to fund the infrastructure requirements of our system.

Productivity improvement and cost-effectiveness
In 2010, we remained focused on workplace productivity and its contribution as an enabler of our work programs. For our 
Transmission Business, productivity is measured using the cost per asset value, which is calculated as capital and maintenance 
program expenditures as a percentage of transmission assets. For our Distribution Business, the calculation is normalized for 
line length due to the rural nature of our service territory. The targets for both measures were to achieve top-quartile results when 
benchmarked against comparable North American utilities. Transmission and distribution productivity results for the year were both  
on target. 

Two additional corporate measures were implemented this year. The Collaborative Planning Index measures the effectiveness of 
workflow between key lines of business as a result of improved integration and teamwork. The other new measure assesses the 
savings derived from our entity-wide information system replacement and improvement project, placed in service in 2009. In 2010, 
we slightly exceeded our Collaborative Planning Index target of 85%, a measure based on the average of three metrics related 
to the release of work, planning and order filling. We have also exceeded our target savings of $28 million related to the entity-
wide information system replacement and improvement project, with actual savings of approximately $34 million. We will continue 
to build on the success of our new entity-wide information system to increase the cost effectiveness of work program planning, 
processing and execution to achieve reductions in our labour unit costs.

REGULATION
Our electricity Transmission and Distribution Businesses are licensed and regulated by the OEB. The OEB sets rates following 
oral or written public hearings. Our transmission revenues primarily include our transmission tariff, which is based on the uniform 
province-wide transmission rates approved by the OEB for all transmitters across Ontario. Our distribution revenues primarily include 
our distribution tariff, which is also based on OEB-approved rates, and the recovery of the cost of purchased power used by our 
customers. Consequently, our Distribution Business does not have commodity price risk. Transmission and distribution tariff rates are 
set based on an approved revenue requirement that provides for cost recovery and includes a return on deemed common equity. 
In addition, the OEB approves rate riders to allow for the recovery or disposition of specific regulatory assets and liabilities over a 
specified timeframe.

Electricity Rates
Under the current market structure, low-volume and designated consumers pay electricity rates established through the Regulated 
Price Plan (RPP) and wholesale electricity consumers pay a blend of regulated, contract and wholesale spot market prices. The OEB 
sets prices for RPP customers based on a two-tiered electricity pricing structure with seasonal consumption thresholds. Unexpected 
shortfalls or overpayments associated with the RPP are temporarily financed by the Ontario Power Authority (OPA). Prices are 
reviewed every six months and may change based on an updated OEB forecast and any accumulated differences between the 
amount that customers paid for electricity and the amount paid to generators in the previous period. Effective May 1, 2010, we 
started migrating our customers to time-of-use (TOU) rates and have a plan in place to transition the majority of our RPP customers to 
TOU rates in 2011. On September 16, 2010, we filed an application with the OEB for an exemption from mandated time-of-use 
pricing, affecting approximately 150,000 customers located in very rural and sparsely populated portions of our service territory that 
are currently out of reach of our smart meter telecommunications infrastructure. In early 2011, the OEB approved our request for an 
extension until the end of 2012.
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As announced in its 2010 fall economic update, the Province introduced the Ontario Clean Energy Benefit Act, 2010, which 
is designed to assist Ontario electricity consumers through the transition to a cleaner electricity system. Under this Act, eligible 
residential, farm and small business consumers receive financial assistance in the amount of a 10% credit with respect to the total 
cost of electricity on their bills, including tax. This assistance is being provided to eligible customers for a five-year period, beginning 
January 1, 2011. In January 2011, our Company issued its first bills to customers with this credit applied to their electricity costs.

Customers that are not eligible for the RPP and wholesale customers pay the market price for electricity, adjusted for the difference 
between market prices and prices paid to generators under the Electricity Act, 1998. The Independent Electricity System Operator 
(IESO) is responsible for overseeing and operating the wholesale market as well as ensuring the reliability of the integrated power 
system.

Green Energy Act and Long-Term Energy Plan
In addition to the oversight role of the OEB, and the market-monitoring and coordination role of the IESO, the OPA was created 
through the Electricity Restructuring Act, 2004 to ensure the long-term supply of electricity, facilitate load management and 
conservation, and assist with the stability of rates for RPP customers, among other roles. As part of its mandate, and consistent with 
the Province’s direction regarding supply mix, the OPA developed the Integrated Power System Plan (IPSP), which was submitted 
for OEB review and approval in August 2007. On September 17, 2008, the Province directed the OPA to review a portion of its 
proposed IPSP focusing on renewable energy and conservation as well as to undertake an enhanced process of consultation with 
First Nations and Métis communities. As a result of the Minister of Energy and Infrastructure’s directive, the OEB adjourned its review 
of the IPSP on October 2, 2008.

On May 14, 2009, the GEA was passed in the Ontario Legislature. On September 21, 2009, to support the GEA and help 
bring renewable energy to the grid our Company received a letter from the then Minister of Energy and Infrastructure requesting us 
to immediately proceed with the planning and implementation of 20 major transmission projects. On May 7, 2010, the Minister 
of Energy and Infrastructure requested our Company to focus on those items that are essential to the safe and reliable operation of 
our existing assets or projects already under development and approved by the OEB, or are critical to the connection of renewable 
generation projects that have been identified by the OPA as part of the government’s green energy agenda. As a result, we 
decided to suspend our work on the 20 major transmission projects. On August 26, 2010, the OEB released its new policy on the 
Framework for Transmission Project Development Plans. This policy sets out a framework for new transmission investment in Ontario 
by introducing competition for transmission development through an open bid process.

An amendment to the deemed licence conditions of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, as set out in the GEA, requires that 
distributors provide priority connection access for qualified renewable energy generation facilities and prepare plans for approval 
by the OEB that identify expansion or reinforcement of the distribution system required to accommodate the connection of renewable 
energy generation facilities.

The OPA continues to procure new, cleaner and renewable generation in Ontario. On October 1, 2009, the OPA launched the 
Feed-In-Tariff (FIT) Program in accordance with the directive issued by the Minister of Energy and Infrastructure to the OPA. The 
program is designed to procure energy from a wide range of renewable energy sources, including wind, solar, photovoltaic, 
bio-energy and waterpower up to 50 MW.

On November 23, 2010, the Ministry of Energy released Ontario’s LTEP which sets out the Province’s expected electricity needs 
until 2030 and supports the continued procurement of new, cleaner generation. The LTEP addresses seven key areas: demand, 
supply, conservation, transmission, Aboriginal communities, capital investments and electricity prices. In conjunction with the release 
of its LTEP, the Province released a draft Supply Mix Directive for consultation. The draft Supply Mix Directive outlines the goals to be 
achieved through a new detailed long-term plan and directs the OPA to prepare an IPSP to meet those goals, as set out in the LTEP. 
The comment period for the draft Supply Mix Directive expired on January 7, 2011. It is anticipated that a Supply Mix Directive will 
be formally issued to the OPA and will form the basis for a new IPSP. The OPA is anticipated to release an updated IPSP to the OEB 
in 2011 for its review and approval.

The draft Supply Mix Directive to the OPA identifies five priority transmission projects over seven years. On December 22, 2010, we 
received a letter from the Minister of Energy updating the September 21, 2009 letter from the Minister of Energy and Infrastructure, 
and requesting us to immediately proceed with the necessary planning and development work to advance three of the projects in an 
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expedited timeframe, in combined consultation with the OPA and IESO. In addition, we were asked to develop a plan to prioritize 
the cost-effective upgrades to our systems to safely and reliably accommodate additional renewable energy for small generation 
projects (see Future Capital Expenditures).

The GEA continues to provide the framework for renewable energy projects and increased conservation. A number of regulations 
and programs required to fully implement the legislation were introduced in the latter part of 2009. 

Transmission and Distribution System Codes
In 2009, the OEB undertook a review of its codes, rules and guidelines in support of the GEA. On October 20, 2009, the OEB 
finalized amendments to the Transmission System Code (TSC), and adopted a “hybrid” approach to cost responsibility between 
transmitters and generators for “enabler facilities”. Enabler facilities are lines or stations that connect two or more renewable 
generation facilities to the transmission grid. The hybrid option sees the initial pooling of the costs of enabler lines by the transmitter, 
with generators paying their pro-rata share, based on generator capacity, when ready to connect. To be eligible for this cost 
treatment, enabler facilities must meet certain detailed requirements outlined in the TSC.

The amendments to the Distribution System Code (DSC), finalized on October 21, 2009, revised the OEB’s approach to assigning 
cost responsibility between a distributor and a generator for the connection of renewable energy generation facilities. The OEB 
defined three types of distribution assets associated with the connection of renewable energy generation: connection assets, 
expansion assets, and renewable enabling improvements. For generators that are connecting directly to a distributor’s system, 
connection asset costs will continue to be borne by generators, while distributors will be required to fund all expansion costs 
identified in a plan, other generator-requested expansion costs up to a cap of $90,000/MW per project (with the generator  
paying the rest), and all renewable enabling improvements.

On June 30, 2010, Hydro One Networks Inc. (Hydro One Networks), in respect of our Distribution Business, filed an application 
with the OEB requesting an exemption from certain cost responsibility rules contained in the DSC for distributed generation projects 
under the Renewable Energy Standard Offer Program (RESOP). The application sought to deal with unanticipated costs that arose as 
a result of the connection of certain renewable generation facilities for generators. These generators applied to connect to our system 
prior to amendments made to the code on October 21, 2009. Under the rules in force at the time, all costs of connection were 
assigned to generators and we requested an exemption from those rules to allow for recovery of the unforeseen expenditures from 
ratepayers. On December 20, 2010, the OEB released its decision approving deferral accounts to capture the expenditures to be 
brought forward for review and approval at the next cost-of-service application. 

Conservation and Demand Management
In 2009, the OPA continued to be responsible for coordinating the delivery and funding of conservation and demand management 
(CDM) programs. This coordination furthered initiatives undertaken by individual LDCs, including the distribution businesses of our 
subsidiaries Hydro One Networks and Hydro One Brampton Networks Inc. (Hydro One Brampton), as a result of OEB program 
requirements associated with the third phase Market Adjusted Rate of Return (MARR). Our CDM programs funded through the OPA 
in 2010 amounted to approximately $31 million, compared to $16 million in 2009. The Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, as 
amended by the GEA, provides direction to the OEB to take steps to establish CDM targets to be met by LDCs and other licensees. 
The Minister of Energy and Infrastructure’s March 31, 2010 directive set a province-wide LDC CDM target for Ontario’s LDCs. The 
two key CDM targets for LDCs over the four-year period beginning January 1, 2011 are to reduce 1,330 MW of provincial summer 
peak demand and 6,000 GWh of cumulative energy savings, collectively. 

On June 22, 2010, the OEB provided notice under the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998 of the creation of a proposed CDM 
Code for electricity distributors. The new code proposes specific CDM targets for all LDCs as directed by the Minister of Energy 
and Infrastructure earlier this year. The proposed allocation of the overall targets to our Company are a 256 MW reduction of 
provincial peak demand and a 1,208 GWh reduction of electricity consumption, representing, respectively, 19.2% and 20.1% of 
the total target savings established for all LDCs. The CDM Code also set out the conditions and rules that LDCs are required to follow 
if they choose to use OEB-approved CDM programs to meet their CDM targets. On November 1, 2010, Hydro One Networks’ 
Distribution Business filed its CDM strategy and CDM Program application with the OEB in accordance with the requirements of the 
CDM Code. An oral hearing for the review and approval of our CDM application and funding of our CDM programs has been 
scheduled to start in March 2011.
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The Energy Conservation Responsibility Act, 2006 furthers the broad objectives of CDM by providing the framework for the 
installation of smart meters in all homes and small businesses in Ontario by December 31, 2010. These meters are expected 
to be capable of measuring and reporting usage over predetermined periods, being read remotely, and, when combined with 
communications systems, will be capable of providing customers with access to information about their consumption. In 2007, 
the Province appointed the IESO as the interim smart meter entity that will oversee the collection and management of data. LDCs, 
including our distribution businesses, are accountable for the deployment of smart meter infrastructure and related technology for 
communications to meet minimum requirements as defined in regulations, as well as the implementation of time-of-use rates. In 
2010, we continued our focus on building an advanced distribution solution and launched our smart grid initiative to leverage the 
infrastructure from our smart meter investment which is required to connect and manage large volumes of distributed generation on 
our distribution system (see Future Capital Expenditures).

Renewed Regulatory Framework
On October 27, 2010, the OEB announced its plan to develop a renewed regulatory framework for electricity given the significant 
role network investment will have in the electricity sector in the future. The renewed regulatory framework will be developed through 
three policy initiatives. First, the OEB will re-examine its approach to network investment planning by transmitters and distributors, 
including considering ways to encourage distributors and transmitters to plan their investments with the total bill impact in mind. 
Second, it will review its rate mitigation policy by examining alternative approaches and rate treatments that might smooth the impact 
of rate or bill increases on consumers. Third, it will review its current rate-making policies to ensure that they continue to facilitate the 
cost-effective and efficient implementation of OEB-approved plans.

Transmission Rates
Hydro One Networks
The IESO facilitates payments to us based on the Ontario Uniform Transmission Rates (UTRs) approved by the OEB for all transmitters 
across Ontario. 

On August 16, 2007, the OEB issued its decision in respect of our 2007 and 2008 transmission rate application. As part of that 
decision the OEB approved the disposition of export and wheeling fees liability and the transmission market-ready regulatory asset, 
which was factored into rates and refunded to customers over the four-year period ending December 31, 2010.

On May 30, 2008, we submitted an application to the OEB to adjust UTRs for our Transmission Business, effective January 1, 2009. 
On August 28, 2008, the OEB approved our application reflecting the 2008 OEB-approved revenue requirement given the full 
repayment to customers of the Earnings Sharing Mechanism and Revenue Difference Deferral Account as at December 31, 2008. 
This resulted in an average increase of approximately 9% in our revenue requirement allocation from UTRs and an approximate 1% 
increase on an average customer’s total bill.

To achieve the necessary funding in support of aging critical infrastructure and investments, we submitted a transmission rate 
application for 2009 and 2010 rates in September 2008. The application sought OEB approval for revenue requirements of 
approximately $1,233 million and $1,341 million based on an ROE of 8.53% and 9.35% for 2009 and 2010, respectively.  
On May 28, 2009, the OEB issued its decision, effective July 1, 2009, which resulted in a reduced revenue requirement of 
$1,180 million and $1,240 million in 2009 and 2010, respectively, primarily due to a lower approved ROE of 8.01% and 
8.16%. The decision also required the establishment of new variance accounts to track the difference between the forecasted and 
actual external revenues for export services, secondary land use and net maintenance services, primarily provided to generators. In 
its decision, the OEB disallowed development capital expenditures of $180 million in 2010, but agreed to reconsider the projects 
if additional evidence was provided. On September 4, 2009, we filed supplemental evidence regarding two of the development 
capital projects amounting to approximately $160 million. On December 16, 2009, the OEB approved our supplemental 
submission increasing the approved 2010 revenue requirement to $1,257 million on the basis of an updated 2010 ROE of 8.39%. 
These decisions resulted in an increase in transmission tariff rates of approximately 2% and 9% for 2009 and 2010, respectively, 
representing a less than 1% increase on an average customer’s total bill in each year. 

On December 11, 2009, the OEB issued its final report on the cost-of-capital review, which concluded that the formula-based 
return on equity (ROE) needed to be reset and refined. On January 5, 2010, we filed a motion with the OEB to review aspects of 
its decision on our 2010 transmission rates, including an increase of the ROE used in calculating the 2010 revenue requirement to 
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9.75% from 8.39%, based on the new OEB-approved formula. On April 5, 2010, the OEB issued its decision, denying Hydro One 
Network’s motion to vary the ROE used to calculate the revenue requirement for 2010 transmission rates. As a result of the decision, 
the 2010 revenue requirement remained at $1,257 million on the basis of an ROE of 8.39%.

On May 19, 2010 we submitted an application for 2011 and 2012 transmission rates in continued support of our aging critical 
infrastructure and the supply mix objectives for generation, including off-coal initiatives and initiation of investments in support of the 
GEA. This application sought the approval of revenue requirements of approximately $1,446 million for 2011 and $1,547 million 
for 2012, which represents an estimated increase in rates of 15.7% and 9.8%, respectively, or 1.2% and 0.7% on an average 
customer’s monthly bill. The application was filed using the new OEB-approved formula for ROE and took into consideration the 
OEB staff report on the regulatory treatment of infrastructure investment in connection with rate-regulated activities (RRA) of Ontario 
distributors and transmitters, issued in January 2009.

On December 23, 2010, the OEB issued its decision effective January 1, 2011, which resulted in a revenue requirement of 
$1,346 million for 2011 and $1,658 million for 2012, reflecting transmission rate changes of approximately 7% in 2011 and 
26% in 2012. The 2011 revenue requirement was lower than requested primarily due to a lower prescribed ROE resulting from 
a lower forecasted cost of debt, the denial of our request to recover the cost of capital of the construction work-in-progress for 
Bruce to Milton and an operation, maintenance and administration envelope reduction. Our 2012 revenue requirement was also 
impacted by the above noted factors, but was higher than originally submitted due to the OEB directing our Company to adopt 
IFRS accounting for indirect overheads capitalized, resulting in approximately a $200 million increase in 2012. Our Company was 
required to establish a variance account to capture any difference in the revenue requirement impact attributed to adopting IFRS 
capitalization accounting in 2012.

On January 17, 2011, the Power Workers Union submitted an appeal of the decision to the Ontario Superior Court of Justice 
(Divisional Court) asserting that the OEB failed to permit our Company to recover proposed prudently incurred operation, 
maintenance and administration costs and therefore, that a legal error was made. The appeal is not anticipated to affect the 
collection of the new 2011 transmission rates during the proceeding. 

Distribution Rates
As a distributor, we are responsible for delivering electricity and billing our customers for our approved distribution rates, purchased 
power costs and other approved regulatory charges. Substantially all of our purchased power costs and other approved regulatory 
charges are settled through the IESO, which facilitates payments to other parties such as generators, the Ontario Electricity Financial 
Corporation (OEFC) and the IESO itself. 

In 2006, the OEB initiated a process to establish an Incentive Regulation Mechanism (IRM) for the years 2007 to 2010. The 
process included a formulaic approach to establishing 2007 rates with a rate rebasing approach to be staggered across all Ontario 
distributors between 2008 and 2010. 

Hydro One Networks
On December 18, 2008, the OEB issued a decision approving substantially all of the work program expenditures submitted in  
our 2008 cost-of-service distribution rate application. The decision was effective May 1, 2008 with an implementation date of  
February 1, 2009, and approved the establishment of the Revenue Recovery Account or Rider 4 to record the revenue differential 
between existing distribution rates and new rates from May 1, 2008. The Rider 4 is being recovered over a 27-month period, 
commencing February 1, 2009 and ending April 30, 2011. As part of its decision, the OEB also approved certain excess 
functionality expenditures for smart meters and the continuance of the 93 cents per month per metered customer. In a past 
proceeding, the OEB approved for recovery our expenditures incurred related to minimum functionality for advanced metering 
infrastructure. As a result, the difference between revenue recorded on this basis and actual recoveries received under existing  
rate adders are reflected as the carrying value of the regulatory asset account.

In late 2008, we filed an incentive regulation application for 2009 rates, which was updated in January 2009 to reflect the 
impact of the 2008 distribution rate decision. The application was filed on the basis of the OEB’s third-generation IRM process, 
which adjusts rates by considering inflation, productivity targets, significant events outside the control of management and a capital 
adjustment mechanism to recover costs for new incremental capital coming in service beyond a prescribed threshold. On  
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May 13, 2009, the OEB released its decision approving the basic IRM increase and a charge of $1.65 per month per metered 
customer for smart meters. The revised rates were approved effective May 1, 2009 with an implementation date of June 1, 2009, 
and resulted in an increase of less than 1.5% on an average customer’s total bill.

On July 13, 2009, we filed a cost-of-service application with the OEB for 2010 and 2011 distribution rates reflecting our plan 
to invest in our network assets to meet objectives regarding public and employee safety; regulatory and legislative compliance; 
maintenance of system security and reliability of system growth requirements; and investments required by the GEA. The application 
sought OEB approval of revenue requirements of approximately $1,150 million and $1,264 million based on an ROE of 8.11% 
and 9.09% for 2010 and 2011, respectively. The resulting distribution tariff rate increase was approximately 10% and 13% in 
2010 and 2011, respectively, or approximately 3% and 4% on an average customer’s total bill. 

Our application included the Green Energy Plan (GEP) for our Distribution Business, filed in response to the GEA, which directed 
the OEB to require transmitters and distributors to file plans that would lead to the expansion of their systems to facilitate renewable 
energy. Our plans identified the expansion and reinforcement of the distribution system required to accommodate the connection 
of renewable energy generation facilities and outlined the development and implementation of the smart grid in our distribution 
system. Our GEP reflected changes to the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, as amended by the GEA and stipulated in Ontario 
Regulation 330/09. The amendments provided a new mechanism for rate protection, whereby some or all of the OEB-approved 
costs incurred by a distributor to make an eligible investment for the purpose of connecting or enabling the connection of renewable 
energy generation to its distribution system may be recovered from all provincial ratepayers, rather than solely from ratepayers of the 
distributor making the investment.

On April 9, 2010, the OEB released its decision approving revenue requirements of $1,146 million for 2010 and $1,236 million  
for 2011 to support the necessary work programs, the implementation of the GEA and the installation of smart meters. The 2010 
and 2011 revenue requirements were lower than originally requested, reflecting reductions in operation, maintenance and 
administration expenses, capital expenditures and working capital requirements. As part of its decision, the OEB also approved 
certain distribution-related deferral account balances sought by our Company in our application, including retail settlement variance 
accounts, the remainder of a regulatory asset recovery account, retail cost variance accounts and smart meters. The OEB ordered 
that the approved balances be aggregated into a single regulatory account (Rider 6) to be recovered over an 18-month period from 
May 1, 2010 to December 31, 2011. Further, the OEB requested the establishment of deferral accounts to track the difference 
between the revenue recorded on the basis of our GEP expenditures incurred and actual recoveries received under the approved 
funding adder or rider. 

The 2010 distribution rates were implemented on May 1, 2010, reflecting a rate increase of approximately 9.3%, or approximately 
3% on an average customer’s total bill. Our 2011 revenue requirement was adjusted to reflect the OEB’s decision to decrease 
OM&A by $40 million and was adjusted to reflect a $44 million capital program reduction. On November 15, 2010, the OEB 
issued its cost of capital parameter updates for rates effective January 1, 2011. The new ROE value for 2011 is 9.66%. Applying 
this lower ROE produces a revised revenue requirement of $1,218 million. The approved 2011 revenue requirement results in an 
average distribution rate increase of approximately 8.7% for 2011, or 3.0% on an average customer’s total bill. 

Hydro One Brampton
On November 7, 2008, our subsidiary Hydro One Brampton filed an application for 2009 rates on the basis of the OEB’s second-
generation IRM policy, which incorporates an OEB-approved formula that considers inflation and efficiency targets. On March 13, 
2009, the OEB released its decision and revised rates, including an amount of $1.00 per month per metered customer for smart 
meters, were approved for implementation effective May 1, 2009. Overall, the impact on an average customer’s total bill was 
marginal.

On November 6, 2009, an application for 2010 distribution rates was filed on the basis of the OEB’s second-generation IRM 
process. On April 13, 2010, the OEB released its decision regarding this rate application approving our submission on the basis of 
the OEB’s cost-of-capital and second-generation IRM policies. The revised rates were implemented on May 1, 2010 and resulted in 
a reduction of approximately 8.3%, or 2.2% on an average customer’s total bill in the year. 
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On June 30, 2010, we submitted a 2011 cost-of-service application, which was subsequently adjusted on September 2, 2010 to 
reflect the Canadian Accounting Standards Board’s decision to allow the deferral of the adoption of International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) implementation for rate-regulated entities to January 1, 2012. The updated submission was filed on November 8, 
2010 and requested a revenue requirement of approximately $63 million. The oral hearing concluded on December 7, 2010 and 
we expect a decision in the first quarter of 2011. 

Hydro One Remote Communities Inc.
On August 29, 2008, we filed a 2009 cost-of-service rate application proposing an increase of about $10 million over the 2006 
approved revenue requirement as a result of increased fuel costs. On April 30, 2009, the OEB issued a decision regarding this rate 
application approving all work program expenditures and the proposed rate increase of 4.4% effective May 1, 2009, resulting in a 
4.4% increase to an average residential customer’s total bill.

On November 4, 2009, we filed an application for 2010 rates under the OEB’s third-generation IRM, which sought approval of an 
increase to basic rates for the distribution and generation of electricity effective May 1, 2010. The increase reflected the standard 
inflationary adjustments incorporated in the third-generation IRM applications. On April 14, 2010, the OEB issued a decision 
regarding this rate application under the OEB’s third-generation IRM policies. The revised rates were approved for implementation 
on May 1, 2010 and reflect an increase of approximately 0.4%, the overall impact of which on an average customer’s total bill is 
marginal. 

On October 15, 2010, an application for 2011 distribution rates was filed on the basis of the OEB’s third-generation IRM seeking 
approval for an increase of approximately 0.4% to basic rates for the distribution and generation of electricity effective May 1, 
2011. We expect to update our requested rate increase when the OEB issues its inflation and productivity factors for IRM filers in the 
first quarter of 2011. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Revenues

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 $ Change % Change
Transmission  1,307 1,147 160 14
Distribution  3,754 3,534 220 6
Other 63 63 - -
 5,124 4,744 380  8
Average annual Ontario 60-minute peak demand (MW) 1 21,572 20,798 774 4
Distribution – units distributed to customers (TWh)1 29.1  28.9 0.2 1
1 System-related statistics include preliminary figures for December.

Transmission 
Transmission revenues predominantly consist of our transmission tariff, which is based on the monthly peak demand for electricity 
across our high-voltage network. The tariff is designed to recover revenues necessary to support a transmission system with sufficient 
capacity to accommodate the maximum expected demand. Demand is primarily influenced by weather and economic conditions. 
Transmission revenues also include export revenue associated with transmitting excess generation to surrounding markets and 
ancillary revenues which are primarily attributable to maintenance services provided to generators and secondary use of our land 
rights-of-way. 

Our transmission revenues were higher by $160 million, or 14%, compared to 2009. The OEB rendered its decision on our 2009 
and 2010 transmission rate application on May 28, 2009. The decision followed extensive oral and written reviews of our evidence 
submitted for the necessary funding in support of system requirements. The resulting tariff increases approved effective July 1, 2009 
and January 1, 2010 support our in-service capital investments in respect of the Province’s supply mix policy, including the phase-out 
of coal-fired generation and addressing aging infrastructure. These increases resulted in higher revenues of $119 million. We also 
experienced higher revenues of $12 million associated with certain OEB-approved deferral accounts as a result of the decision.
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Also contributing to increased revenue was the higher average monthly peak demand experienced during the year. The average 
annual Ontario 60-minute peak demand and the overall related load were 774 MW and 9,282 MW higher than last year, 
respectively, resulting in higher revenues of $37 million. Weather was generally milder over the winter months and unseasonably  
hot during the summer months, compared to the prior year. Our system performed well under these extreme conditions.

Transmission tariff revenue increases were partially offset by lower ancillary revenues of approximately $8 million due to the impact 
of the May 28, 2009 OEB decision. Consistent with this decision, ancillary revenues received in excess of OEB-approved levels are 
recorded in a regulatory liability account and are not recognized as revenue. 

Distribution 
Distribution revenues include our distribution tariff and amounts to recover the cost of purchased power used by our customers. 
Accordingly, distribution revenues are influenced by the amount of electricity we distribute, the cost of purchased power and our 
distribution tariff rates. Distribution revenues also include a minor amount of ancillary distribution services revenues, such as fees 
related to the use of our poles by the telecommunications and cable television industries, and miscellaneous charges such as those  
for late payments.

Distribution revenues increased by $220 million, or 6%, compared to 2009, including an increase in the recovery of higher 
purchased power costs of $148 million, as described below in the section “Purchased Power.”

Increases in revenue reflect two OEB decisions on the distribution tariff rates of our subsidiary, Hydro One Networks. On May 13, 
2009, the OEB approved new tariff rates under the third-generation IRM effective May 1, 2009. On April 9, 2010, the OEB 
approved new tariff rates following our cost-of-service application effective May 1, 2010. Both decisions followed extensive written 
and oral reviews of the evidence we submitted for the maintenance and investment requirements of the distribution system, including 
those to support renewable distributed generation. The combined impact of these decisions was an $82 million increase. These 
tariff rate increases support the maintenance and investment requirements of our distribution system and enable the safe and reliable 
delivery of electricity to our customers throughout Ontario. We also experienced higher revenues of $7 million associated with 
certain OEB-approved deferral accounts for the year.

Distribution revenue increases were partially offset by lower energy consumption, resulting primarily from the milder weather in the  
first quarter of the year, partially offset by unseasonably hot weather during the summer months, which reduced our distribution 
revenues by $3 million compared to last year. In addition, revenues associated with the recovery of a distribution-related regulatory 
account ceased effective April 30, 2010, resulting in a revenue reduction of $16 million compared to last year.

We also experienced higher ancillary revenues of approximately $2 million compared to the prior year.

Purchased Power 
Purchased power costs incurred by our Distribution Business represent the cost of electricity delivered to customers within our 
distribution service territory and comprise the wholesale commodity cost of energy, the Independent Electricity System Operator’s 
(IESO) wholesale market service charges, and transmission charges levied by the IESO. The commodity cost of energy for certain 
low-volume and designated customers is based on the OEB’s Regulated Price Plan (RPP), which consists of a two-tiered pricing 
structure with threshold amounts and a separate pricing structure for RPP customers on time-of-use billing, both adjusted twice annually. 
The vast majority of RPP customers are anticipated to be on time-of-use billing by the end of June 2011. Customers that are not 
eligible for the RPP pay the market price for electricity, adjusted for the difference between market prices and the prices paid to 
generators under the Electricity Restructuring Act, 2004. A summary of the RPP for the reporting period is provided below.
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 Summary of RPP
 Tier Threshold (kWh/month) Tier Rates (cents/kWh)
Effective Date Residential Non-Residential First Tier Second Tier
November 1, 2008 1,000 750 5.6 6.5
May 1, 2009 600 750 5.7 6.6
November 1, 2009 1,000 750 5.8 6.7
May 1, 2010 600 750 6.5 7.5
November 1, 2010 1,000 750 6.4 7.4

RPP Time-of-Use  Rates (cents/kWh)
Effective Date On Peak Mid Peak Off Peak
May 1, 2010 9.9 8.0 5.3
November 1, 2010 9.9 8.1    5.1

Purchased power costs increased in 2010 by $148 million, or 6%, to $2,474 million for the year compared to 2009. The increase 
in our purchased power costs was primarily due to the impact of changes in the OEB’s RPP rate for residential and other eligible 
customers of $84 million, higher transmission charges of $33 million due to the OEB’s transmission rate decisions effective July 1, 
2009 and January 1, 2010, higher purchased power costs for customers that are not eligible for the RPP of $33 million and higher 
demand for electricity of $13 million. The effect of these increases was partially offset by lower wholesale market service charges 
levied by the IESO of $15 million.

Operation, Maintenance and Administration
Our operation, maintenance and administration costs consist of labour, material, equipment and purchased services which support 
the operation and maintenance of the transmission and distribution systems. Also included in these costs are property taxes and 
payments in lieu thereof on our transmission and distribution lines, stations and buildings.

Operation, maintenance and administration costs for each of our three business segments were as follows:

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions)  2010 2009 $ Change % Change
Transmission  416 438 (22) (5)
Distribution  602 564 38 7
Other 60 55 5 9
 1,078 1,057 21 2

Transmission 
Operation, maintenance and administration expenditures incurred to sustain our high-voltage transmission stations, lines and rights-
of-way decreased by $22 million, or 5%, in 2010 compared to last year. Within our work programs, we continued to invest 
in the safe and reliable operation of our transmission system that spans Ontario. We substantially completed our work program 
requirements while focusing on productivity. Effective delivery of our maintenance program, particularly on power equipment, 
enabled us to reallocate resources to the timely delivery of our expanded capital programs. Given favourable weather conditions 
in the first half of the year, together with productivity improvements resulting from the implementation of our entity-wide information 
system, we were able to effectively execute our work programs. As a result, we experienced lower planned line maintenance 
expenditures, lower expenditures in our forestry programs and lower requirements for engineering support. Our expenditures in 
support of our transmission system have also decreased by $8 million, primarily reflecting the redirection of resources and the 
elimination of capital tax by the Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) effective July 1, 2010, partially offset by a one-time contribution  
of $27 million to the pension plan during the last quarter of this year. 
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Distribution 
Operation, maintenance and administration expenditures required to maintain our low-voltage distribution system increased by  
$38 million, or 7%, compared to last year. Our work program expenditures increased by $11 million primarily as a result of 
favourable weather allowing us to deliver a larger forestry program in a cost-effective manner. Additionally, we experienced 
increased requirements within our customer care and engineering support programs, as well as within our smart meter program 
due to ongoing operational costs for installed meters. These expenditures were partially offset by lower expenditures within our lines 
maintenance program, including storm restoration, inspection and testing of pole transformers and field meter readings as installed 
smart meters begin to reach the required level of reliable communication. Our expenditures in support of our distribution system were 
higher by $27 million, reflecting a one-time contribution to the pension plan of $21 million during the last quarter of this year as  
well as the redirection of resources, partially offset by the elimination of capital tax by the CRA effective July 1, 2010.

Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization expense reflect a net increase of $46 million, or 9%, to $583 million in 2010 compared to last year. 
This was mainly attributable to increased depreciation and amortization expense of $45 million from new assets coming into service, 
consistent with our ongoing capital work program. A further increase of $7 million was the result of increased fixed asset removals 
associated with our capital projects. Amortization of regulatory and other assets decreased by $6 million due to the completion of 
the amortization of a distribution regulatory account during the second quarter of this year, partially offset by increased amortization 
of our environmental regulatory asset related to higher expenditures necessary to comply with Environment Canada’s regulations on 
the removal of polychlorinated biphenyls. 

Financing Charges
Financing charges increased by $34 million, or 11%, to $342 million for 2010 compared to last year. Financing charges increased 
by $40 million mainly due to an increased average level of debt, partially offset by a lower average effective interest rate. Lower 
capitalized interest of $4 million also contributed to higher financing charges this year. Although we had higher levels of construction 
in progress, we capitalized less interest due to lower OEB-approved interest capitalization rates. These increases were partially offset 
by changes in interest income and other ancillary amounts which reduced overall financing charges by $10 million.

Provision for Payments in Lieu of Corporate Income Taxes
We make payments in lieu of corporate income taxes (PILs) to the OEFC in accordance with the Electricity Act, 1998 and on the 
same basis as if we were subject to federal and provincial corporate taxes. In providing for payments in lieu of corporate income 
taxes, the liability method is used. The change in future taxes relating to both the unregulated and regulated businesses, in respect 
of temporary differences that are not considered for the rate-making process, results in a future tax provision that is charged to the 
income statement. The change in future taxes relating to temporary differences of the regulated business that are considered for the 
rate-making process results in a regulatory asset or regulatory liability.

The provision for payments in lieu of corporate income taxes increased by $10 million, or 22%, to $56 million compared to 2009. 
The increase was primarily due to higher pre-tax income in the year, partially offset by higher net temporary differences related to 
certain regulatory accounts and a reduction in the statutory rate from 33.0% to 31.0%. 

Net Income
Net income of $591 million was higher by $121 million, or 26%, compared to 2009 results. Revenues were affected by the 
OEB-approved rate decisions that support investments in respect of supply mix policies, including the phase-out of coal-fired 
generation, necessary maintenance and investment requirements of our systems, and investments to address aging infrastructure. 
These investments in our transmission and distribution systems are reflected in the increase of approximately $1.1 billion in our fixed 
assets from the prior year. Revenues were also affected by a higher average monthly peak demand due to hotter than average 
weather during the summer months, partially offset by milder weather during the winter months. These impacts were partially offset by 
a one-time contribution to our pension plan, which was enabled by our effective cost management over operating costs in the year.
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Quarterly Results of Operations
The following table sets forth unaudited quarterly information for each of the eight quarters from March 31, 2009 through December 
31, 2010. This information is derived from our unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements, which, in the opinion of 
management, have been prepared on a basis consistent with the audited annual Consolidated Financial Statements and which 
include the normal recurring adjustments necessary for fair presentation of our financial position and results of operations for those 
periods. These operating results are not necessarily indicative of results for any future period and should not be relied upon to predict 
our future performance.

(Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009
Quarter ended Dec. 31 Sep. 30 Jun. 30 Mar. 31 Dec. 31 Sep. 30 Jun. 30 Mar. 31
Total revenues1  1,280 1,360 1,165 1,319 1,207 1,144 1,090 1,303
Net income1 99 218 105 169 111 100 82 177
Net income to common shareholder1 94 214 100 165 106 96 77 173
1  The demand for electricity generally follows normal weather-related variations, and therefore our electricity-related revenues and profit, all other things being 

equal, would tend to be higher in the first and third quarters than in the second and fourth quarters.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Our primary sources of liquidity and capital resources are funds generated from operations, debt capital market borrowings 
and bank financing. These resources will be used to satisfy our capital resource requirements, which continue to include capital 
expenditures, servicing and repayment of our debt, payments related to our outsourcing arrangements, investing activities and 
dividends.

Summary of Sources and Uses of Cash

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009
Operating activities 1,164 892
Financing activities  
 Long-term debt issued  1,500 1,150
 Long-term debt retired (600) (400)
 Short-term notes payable (55) 55
 Dividends paid (28) (188)
Investing activities  
 Capital expenditures (1,570) (1,566)
 Long-term investments1 (250) - 
Other financing and investing activities 37 15
Net change in cash and cash equivalents  198 (42)
1 Represents $250 million of Province of Ontario Floating Rate Notes.

Operating Activities 
Net cash from operating activities increased by $272 million to $1,164 million compared to last year. This increase primarily 
reflects higher net income and changes to accounts payable balances due to increases such as our purchased power costs related 
to the demand for electricity, timing of prepayments from customers and increased taxes payable related to the implementation of the 
HST. Changes in accounts receivable balances and in certain regulatory accounts also impacted net cash from operations.

Financing Activities
Short-term liquidity is provided through funds from operations, our Commercial Paper Program under which we are authorized to 
issue up to $1,000 million in short-term notes with a term to maturity of less than 365 days, our revolving credit facility and through 
our holdings of Province of Ontario Floating Rate Notes. 
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At December 31, 2010, we had no short-term notes outstanding. The Commercial Paper Program is supported by a total of  
$1,500 million in liquidity facilities comprised of a $1,250 million committed revolving credit facility with a syndicate of banks  
and the holding of $250 million of Province of Ontario Floating Rate Notes. The short-term liquidity under this program together 
with anticipated levels of funds from operations should be sufficient to fund our normal operating requirements. During the second 
quarter, we increased the amount of our $500 million revolving credit facility, entered into in the first quarter, to $1,250 million and 
we extended the term of the facility to June 2013. Also in the second quarter, we cancelled the $750 million revolving credit facility 
which would have matured in August 2010.

At December 31, 2010, we had $7,775 million in long-term debt outstanding, including the current portion. Our notes and 
debentures mature between 2011 and 2046. Long-term financing is provided by our access to the debt markets, primarily through 
our Medium-Term Note (MTN) Program. On July 27, 2009, we filed a base shelf prospectus to renew our MTN Program for another 
25 months. The maximum authorized principal amount of medium-term notes issuable under this program until August 2011 is 
$3,000 million, of which $1,250 million was remaining and available as at December 31, 2010. 

 Rating
Rating Agency Short-term Debt Long-term Debt
DBRS Limited R-1 (middle) A (high)
Moody’s Investors Service Inc.  Prime-1 Aa3
S&P A-1 A+
 
We have the customary covenants normally associated with long-term debt. Among other things, our long-term debt covenants 
limit our permissible debt as a percentage of our total capitalization, limit our ability to sell assets and impose a negative pledge 
provision, subject to customary exceptions. The credit agreements related to our credit facilities have no material adverse change 
clauses that could trigger default. However, the credit agreements require that we provide notice to the lenders of any material 
adverse change within three business days of the occurrence. The agreements also provide limitations that debt cannot exceed  
75% of total capitalization and that debt issued by our subsidiaries cannot exceed 10% of the total book value of our assets. We  
are in compliance with all of these covenants and limitations as of December 31, 2010.

In 2010, we successfully issued $1,500 million in cost-effective long-term debt under our MTN Program, consisting of $1,000 million  
in the first quarter and $500 million in the third quarter. We repaid $600 million in maturing long-term debt, including $400 million 
in the second quarter and $200 million in the fourth quarter. In 2009, we issued $1,150 million in long-term debt under our MTN 
Program and repaid $400 million in maturing long-term debt. During 2010, we reduced our short-term notes by $55 million, all in 
the first quarter. In 2009, we increased our short-term notes by $55 million.

Common dividends are declared at the sole discretion of our Board of Directors, and are recommended by management based 
on results of operations and maintaining the deemed regulatory capital structure. Financial condition, cash requirements and other 
relevant factors such as industry practice and shareholder expectations are also taken into consideration. Common dividends 
pertaining to the quarterly financial results are generally declared and paid in the immediately following quarter.

In 2010, we paid dividends to the Province in the amount of $28 million, consisting of $10 million in common dividends and  
$18 million in preferred dividends. In the comparative period, we paid common dividends of $170 million and preferred dividends 
of $18 million. In 2010, cash dividends per common share were $100 compared to $1,700 per common share in 2009. Cash 
dividends per preferred share were $1.375 in each of 2010 and 2009. 

Our objectives with respect to our capital structure are to maintain effective access to capital on a long-term basis at reasonable 
rates, and to deliver appropriate financial returns. In order to ensure ongoing effective access to capital, we target to maintain an 
“A” category long-term credit rating. 
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Investing Activities 
Cash used for investing activities, primarily representing capital expenditures to enhance and reinforce our transmission and 
distribution infrastructure in the public interest, was as follows:

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions)  2010 2009 $ Change % Change
Transmission  936 918 18 2
Distribution  629 643 (14) (2)
Other 5 5 - -
 1,570 1,566 4 -

Transmission 
Transmission capital expenditures increased by $18 million in 2010 to $936 million, compared to 2009. Expenditures to expand 
and reinforce our transmission system were $524 million, representing an increase of $7 million over last year. These expenditures 
primarily consist of those on inter-area network and local area supply development projects. We completed a number of multi-year 
projects and put them in service and other projects are beginning to progress. We continued to invest in a number of inter-area 
network upgrade projects to support the Province’s supply mix objectives for generation. We also continued to make investments 
in our local area supply projects to address growing loads. These expenditures were partially offset by a reduction in expenditures 
associated with load customer connection projects as well as local area supply and inter-area network projects that were substantially 
completed this year.

Inter-area network upgrades with significant expenditures included the Bruce to Milton Transmission Reinforcement Project to connect 
refurbished nuclear and new wind generation sources in the Huron-Grey-Bruce area, and the Northeast Transmission Reinforcement 
Project, which will increase the North-South interface transfer capability to access available northern generation. The Northeast 
Transmission Reinforcement Project is comprised of work to install static var compensators (SVCs) at Porcupine and Kirkland Lake 
Transformer Stations. In addition, we are installing SVCs at Nanticoke and Detweiler Transformer Stations, which in the short term 
will support increased generation from the Bruce Nuclear facility and in the longer term, will enhance the transfer capability between 
Southwestern Ontario and the Greater Toronto Area (GTA). The installation of SVCs represents new technology to our system and 
we successfully put one of them in service at the end of the year. These investments were partially offset by lower expenditures 
associated with the installation of capacitor banks in Southwestern Ontario, which is substantially complete. This equipment provides 
interim protection to the Bruce Nuclear facility and expands transmission capacity in Southwestern Ontario. In addition, we incurred 
lower expenditures associated with the Cherrywood Transformer Station to Claireville Transformer Station Connection Project, 
which will enable greater transfer capability across the GTA to accommodate power flows resulting from the new Hydro-Québec 
interconnection. This work was substantially completed in the fourth quarter of the year.

Local area supply projects with expenditures in the period include our Woodstock Area Transmission Reinforcement Project, which 
will increase capacity to ensure supply reliability in the Woodstock area, and our Switchyard Reconstruction Project at our Burlington 
Transformer Station, which will increase the load supply capacity to ensure reliability of supply to customers in the area. The GTA 
West Transmission Reinforcement Project, which has increased capacity to ensure supply reliability in the area, as well as the 
Hurontario Switching Station to Jim Yarrow Municipal Transformer Station connection, which has increased transmission capacity 
in the Western Brampton area to allow for future load growth, were both substantially completed in the first quarter of this year, 
contributing to the reduction in expenditures compared to the prior year. The final completion of our Niagara Reinforcement Project 
continues to be delayed by the aboriginal land dispute in the Caledonia area. Discussions related to the Niagara Reinforcement 
Project continue between the aboriginal peoples involved and various government entities and we expect to complete this project 
when site access becomes available.

Expenditures to sustain our existing transmission system were $309 million, representing an increase of $25 million compared to 
2009. This increase was primarily due to increased requirements related to the refurbishment and replacement of end-of-life lines 
and stations and to higher targeted replacements of aging components, specifically within our breaker installation program. We 
also experienced increased expenditures within our protection and control equipment program compared to the prior year. These 
increases were partially offset by lower expenditures within our Spare Transformer Purchase and Hub Replacement Programs. 
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Our other transmission capital expenditures were $103 million, representing a decrease of $14 million compared to the prior 
year. This reduction from the prior year was due to expenditures in 2009 on our investment in an entity-wide information system 
replacement and improvement project which replaced end-of-life systems and improved productivity, the second phase of which was 
completed during the third quarter of last year. Further impacting the period are expenditures incurred to enhance information security 
at our Ontario Grid Control Centre, which were lower compared to the prior year as we completed a number of enhancements 
to meet North American Electric Reliability Corporation requirements in 2009. Partially offsetting these reductions were higher 
expenditures in 2010 related to the strategic purchase of power transformers in order to ensure transmission reliability through 
availability of critical long delivery lead time items.

Distribution 
Distribution capital expenditures decreased by $14 million to $629 million in 2010, compared to the prior year. Capital 
expenditures to expand and reinforce our distribution network were $304 million, representing a reduction of $20 million compared 
to last year. We experienced reductions relating to expenditures on planned line development projects and demand line work for 
new connects and upgrades mainly due to a reallocation of resources to sustaining line work for line relocations. The reduction was 
also due to the substantial completion of smart meter installations across the province at the end of last year. During the year, these 
lower expenditures related to installations were partially offset by expenditures on the smart meter network infrastructure and the 
development and integration of the systems required for time-of-use billing, including meter reading capability and integration to the 
IESO meter data repository. Smart meter installations continued throughout the year as our total cumulative number of installations 
exceeded 1,314,000 as at December 31, 2010, thus nearing the program’s total target. We currently have over 1,140,000 
meters enabled to support time-of-use billing and continue our efforts to migrate our customers to time-of-use pricing; over 553,000 
of our customers are now consuming power based on time-of-use pricing. Our program is one of the largest utility smart meter 
deployments in North America. These reductions were partially offset by the initiation of our Smart Grid Program which will enhance 
our operations and support distributed generation. 

Expenditures to sustain our distribution system were $275 million, an increase of $28 million from 2009. This increase was primarily 
a result of higher requirements for transport and work equipment and the re-allocation of resources from planned line development 
projects to demand line work for line relocations in support of municipal road widening projects which are partially funded by the 
municipalities. These increases were partially offset by reduced expenditures as a result of fewer storms in 2010. 

Our other distribution capital expenditures were $50 million, representing a reduction of $22 million from 2009. This reduction 
primarily reflects our higher prior period investments in our entity-wide information system replacement and improvement project.  

Future Capital Expenditures 
Our capital expenditures in 2011 are budgeted at approximately  
$1.8 billion. The 2011 capital budgets for our Transmission and Distribution 
Businesses are about $1,050 million and $750 million, respectively.  
Capital expenditures, as shown in the accompanying chart, are expected to 
be approximately $1.9 billion in 2012 and approximately $1.8 billion in 
2013. These expenditures reflect the sustainment requirements of our  
aging infrastructure, budgeted at approximately $550 million in 2011, 
$700 million in 2012 and $700 million in 2013. Development projects, 
including smart grid, inter-area network upgrades that reflect supply mix 
policies to phase out coal generation, local area supply requirements and 
requirements to enable distributed generation, are budgeted at approximately 
$950 million in 2011, $950 million in 2012 and $850 million in 
2013. These development investments also reflect customer demand work, 
distributed generation connections and the rollout of smart grid. Other capital  
expenditures amount to approximately $300 million in 2011, $250 million  
in 2012 and $250 million in 2013. These expenditures include the 
replacement of our customer billing system to address end-of-life requirements 
and to further productivity realization from our entity-wide SAP platform. 
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Transmission
Transmission system capital expenditures are anticipated to be significant over the period 2011 to 2013, amounting to about  
$3.2 billion, including program expenditures to manage the replacement and refurbishment of our aging transmission infrastructure to 
ensure a continued reliable supply of energy to customers throughout the province. The investment plan includes targeted component 
replacements of air blast circuit breakers, switchgear, autotransformers and wood pole structures to maintain the performance of 
assets. Also, the reconstruction of transformer stations is planned for the Burlington TS 115 kV, Leaside, Hearn and Manby stations to 
ensure future reliability. These sustaining investments are necessary to ensure that we will continue to meet all regulatory, compliance, 
safety and environment objectives. 

Inter-area network projects, required to accommodate new generation related to supply mix policies, include our Bruce to Milton 
Transmission Reinforcement Project to connect nuclear generation and new wind generation in the Huron-Grey-Bruce area. This 
project is anticipated to be in service in 2012. We are also installing station equipment, including SVCs in Southwestern Ontario, 
to increase transmission capacity. This equipment will mitigate congestion and enhance the transfer capability between Northern 
Ontario and Southern Ontario and the transmission system north of Sudbury enabling new hydroelectric generation. 

The budgeted capital expenditures do not include any amounts associated with new lines projects articulated in the September 
21, 2009 letter to us from the then Minister of Energy and Infrastructure. We suspended work on those projects after the Minister 
of Energy and Infrastructure requested our Company to focus on those items that are essential to the safe and reliable operation of 
our existing assets or projects already under development and approved by the OEB, or are critical to the connection of renewable 
generation projects that have been identified by the OPA as part of the government’s green energy agenda. In addition, in August 
2010, the OEB introduced competition for transmission expansion projects. As a result, we did not include in our budgeted capital 
expenditures any projects that could meet the definition of expansion under the OEB’s competitive framework.

On December 22, 2010, we received a letter from the Minister of Energy requesting us to proceed with the necessary planning and 
development work to advance specified transmission projects and upgrades to the system that will safely and reliably accommodate 
additional renewable energy from small generation projects. According to the LTEP, we are expecting to receive direction to carry out 
the three specified projects. These transmission projects, which are identified in the LTEP, include:

	 •	 Southwestern	Ontario	Series	Compensation
	 •	 Reconductoring	Sarnia	to	London	circuits
	 •	 New	transmission	line	west	of	London

While our current budget does not include the estimated capital expenditures associated with these projects and upgrades to the 
system, they could be up to approximately $1 billion over a period to the in-service dates of these projects. 

The actual timing and expenditures of many development projects are uncertain as they are dependent upon various approvals 
including OEB leave-to-construct approvals and environmental assessment approvals; negotiations with customers, neighbouring 
utilities and other stakeholders; and consultations with First Nations and Métis communities, as well as the timing and level of 
generator contributions for enabling facilities under recent amendments to the TSC. We will not undertake large capital expenditures 
without a reasonable expectation of recovering them in our rates, including those recently requested by the Ministry of Energy.

Distribution
Capital expenditures for the period 2011 to 2013 are estimated to be approximately $2.3 billion, including capital expenditures 
to support the sustainment of our capital infrastructure. Our core work will continue to focus on the performance of our aging 
distribution asset base in order to improve system reliability. There is a continuation of investments to replace end-of-life equipment 
and components, implement smart grid and focus on wood pole replacements and submarine cables to address deteriorating assets. 
In addition, we will continue to address the demand for new load connections, trouble calls, storm restoration and system capability 
reinforcement. 

Our Distribution sustainment work program has been reduced consistent with the decision on our distribution application for the 2010 
and 2011 rate years and as a result our work program will include in it a gradual increase in our intended Wood Pole Replacement 
Program to address the aging poles and deterioration. 
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Distribution development expenditures over the period are primarily related to customer demand work such as connections and 
upgrades, smart grid, distributed generation connections, including station upgrades, protection and control, new lines and some 
contestable work for which we receive capital contributions. During the 2011 and 2012 period we are managing a significant 
number of projects throughout the province to address load growth and the stress on our system components.

Distributed generation expenditures are based on our estimate of the number of anticipated connections, taking into account the 
most recent data available from the OPA. Although distributed generation demand is expected to increase over the planning period, 
connection work is contestable and therefore the volume of work could fluctuate. 

The Company’s current billing system is near end of life, and costly to maintain and operate. The replacement of this system is 
anticipated to commence in 2011 and be completed by 2014. 

Summary of Contractual Obligations and Other Commercial Commitments
The following table presents a summary of our debt and other major contractual obligations under Canadian GAAP, as well as other 
major commercial commitments: 

December 31, 2010 (Canadian dollars in millions) Total 2011  2012/2013  2014/2015   After 2015
Contractual Obligations (due by year):      
Long-term debt – principal repayments 7,775 500 1,200 1,000 5,075
Long-term debt – interest payments 6,599 405 732 614 4,848
Inergi LP (Inergi) outsourcing agreement1 569 143 274 152 -
Operating lease commitments 53 5 14 9 25
Environmental and asset retirement obligations2 391 23 60 73 235
Total Contractual Obligations6 15,387 1,076 2,280 1,848 10,183
     
Other Commercial Commitments (by year of expiry):
Bank line3 1,250 - 1,250 - -
Letters of credit4 114 114 - - -
Guarantees4 326 326 - - -
Pension5 307 145 162 - -
Total Other Commercial Commitments 1,997 585 1,412 - -

1  On May 1, 2010, the Company extended the Master Services Agreement with Inergi for a further three-year period. The term of the agreement, which would 
have expired on February 29, 2012, has been extended to February 28, 2015. Under the extended agreement, Inergi will provide business processing and 
information technology outsourcing services, as well as core system support related primarily to SAP implementation and optimization. The amounts disclosed 
include an estimated annual inflation adjustment in the range of 1.8% to 3.0%.

2  We record a liability for the estimated future expenditures associated with the phase-out and destruction of PCB-contaminated insulating oil from electrical 
equipment and for the assessment and remediation of contaminated lands as well as asset retirement obligations for the removal of asbestos-contaminated 
material from our facilities and the decommissioning and removal of our switching station located at Ontario Power Generation’s Abitibi Canyon Generating 
Station. The expenditure pattern reflects our planned work program for the period. 

3  As a backstop to our commercial paper program, we have a $1,250 million revolving standby credit facility with a syndicate of banks which matures in  
June 2013. 

4  We currently have bank letters of credit of $113 million outstanding relating to retirement compensation arrangements (RCAs). The other $1 million included in 
letters of credit pertains to operating letters of credit. On November 1, 2010, we increased our letter of credit related to RCAs to approximately $113 million 
from $107 million. We have also provided prudential support to the IESO on behalf of our subsidiaries as required by the IESO’s Market Rules, using parental 
guarantees of up to a maximum of $325 million and on behalf of two distributors using guarantees of up to a maximum of $660 thousand. Although no letters 
of credit are required for prudential support, we would have to resume providing bank letters of credit if our credit rating deteriorated to below the  
“Aa” category.

5  Contributions to the pension fund are made one month in arrears. Contributions for 2011 are based on an actuarial valuation filed in September 2010 and 
effective December 31, 2009. Our annual pension contributions for 2011 and 2012 will depend on future investment returns, changes in benefits or actuarial 
assumptions. Based on current factors, we estimate our minimum pension contributions to be approximately $145 million in 2011 and $149 million in 2012 
based on the level of pensionable earnings. Contributions for 2013 will be based on an actuarial valuation effective December 31, 2012.

6  In addition, the Company has entered into various agreements to purchase goods or services in support of our work programs that are enforceable and legally 
binding. None of these agreements are considered individually material, and the majority do not extend beyond December 31, 2011.
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The amounts in the above table under long-term debt – principal repayments are not charged to our results of operations, but are 
reflected on our Balance Sheet and Statement of Cash Flows. Interest associated with this debt is recorded under financing charges 
on our Statement of Operations or in our capital programs. Payments in respect of operating leases and our outsourcing agreement 
with Inergi are recorded under operation, maintenance and administration costs on our Statement of Operations or within our capital 
expenditures. Expenditures resulting from our environmental programs and asset retirement obligations are not charged to our results 
of operations, but are reflected on our Balance Sheet and Statement of Cash Flows. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related party transactions primarily consist of our transmission revenues received from, and our power purchases payments made to, 
the IESO, which is a related party by virtue of its status as an agency of our shareholder, the Province. The year-over-year changes 
related to these amounts are described more fully in our discussion of our transmission revenues and purchased power costs. Other 
significant related party transactions include our dividends which are paid to the Province and our payments in lieu of corporate 
income taxes which are paid or payable to the OEFC. In January 2010, we purchased $250 million of Province of Ontario Floating 
Rate Notes, maturing on November 19, 2014, as a form of alternate liquidity to supplement our bank credit facilities.  

CONSIDERATIONS OF CURRENT ECONOMIC CONDITIONS
Effect of Load on Revenue
The load is expected to decline in 2011 due to the impact of CDM and Embedded Generation, partially offset by load growth 
associated with economic growth in all sectors of the Ontario economy. Overall load growth due to the economy alone is forecasted 
to be approximately 1.0%, with the industrial sector slightly outperforming residential and commercial sectors. The load impact of 
CDM and Embedded Generation is expected to have a substantial negative impact on load growth of approximately 2.0% and 
0.3%, respectively. On the whole, load is expected to decline by about 1.3%. A reduction in load, beyond our load forecast 
included in our approved revenue requirement, would negatively impact our financial results.

Effect of Interest Rates
Changes in interest rates will impact the calculation of our revenue requirements filed with the OEB. The first component impacted by 
interest rates is the return on equity. The OEB-approved adjustment formula for calculating return on equity will increase or decrease 
by 50% of the change between the current Long Canada Bond Forecast and the risk-free rate established at 4.25% and 50% of 
the change in the spread in 30-year “A”-rated Canadian utility bonds over the 30-year benchmark Government of Canada bond 
yield established at 1.415%. We estimate that a 1% decrease in the forecasted long-term Government of Canada bond yield or 
the “A”-rated Canadian utility spread used in the current OEB formula for determining our rate of return on equity would reduce 
our Transmission Business’ results of operations by approximately $16 million and our Distribution Business’ results of operations by 
approximately $10 million. The second component of revenue requirement that would be impacted by interest rates is the return on 
debt. The difference between actual interest rates on new debt issuances and those approved for return by the OEB would impact 
our results of operations. 

Input Costs and Commodity Pricing 
In support of our ongoing work programs, we are required to procure materials, supplies and services. To manage our total costs, 
we regularly establish security of supply, strategic material and services contracts, blanket orders, vendor alliances and manage a 
stock of commonly used items. Such arrangements are for a defined period of time and are monitored. Where advantageous, we 
develop long-term contractual relationships with suppliers to optimize the cost of goods and services and to ensure the availability 
and timely supply of critical items. As a result of our strategic sourcing practices, we do not foresee any adverse impacts on our 
business from current economic conditions in respect of adequacy and timing of supply and credit risk of our counterparties. Further, 
we have been able to realize significant savings through our strategic sourcing initiatives.
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Debt Financing
Cash generated from operations, after the payment of expected dividends, will not be sufficient to fund capital expenditures or  
meet debt maturity repayments and other liquidity requirements (see Risk Management and Risk Factors – Risk Associated with 
Arranging Debt Financing). We rely on debt financing through our MTN Program and Commercial Paper Program. Our Commercial 
Paper Program is supported by a total of $1,500 million in liquidity facilities as of December 31, 2010, which is comprised of  
a $1,250 million syndicated bank line of credit and the holding of $250 million of Province of Ontario Floating Rate Notes. In 
2010, we continued issuing sufficient cost-effective debt financing through the MTN Program and Commercial Paper Program in  
the Canadian capital markets and we arranged sufficient available liquidity. Economic conditions continue to improve from the  
credit crisis of late 2008.

Pension 
During 2010, the deferred pension asset reported on our Balance Sheet increased by $36 million to $460 million. We contributed 
$143 million into our pension plan in 2010 and made an additional payment of $48 million in December. We incurred  
$154 million in net periodic pension benefit cost. On an accounting basis, the 2009 unfunded benefit obligation of $230 million 
increased by $67 million to $297 million. The plan experienced positive returns of about 9.96% in the year. However, the plan  
was also impacted by an increase in the accrued benefit obligation, primarily as a result of a decrease in the discount rate used  
for accounting purposes (see Critical Accounting Estimates – Employee Future Benefits).

RISK MANAGEMENT AND RISK FACTORS 
We have an enterprise risk management program that aims at balancing business risks and returns. An enterprise-wide approach 
enables regulatory, strategic, operational and financial risks to be managed and aligned with our strategic business objectives.

While our philosophy is that risk management is the responsibility of all employees, the Audit and Finance Committee of our Board 
of Directors annually reviews our Company’s risk tolerances, our risk profile and the status of our internal control framework. Our 
President and Chief Executive Officer has ultimate accountability for risk management. Our Leadership Team, comprised of direct 
reports to the President and Chief Executive Officer, provides senior management oversight of risk in our Company. Our Chief Risk 
Officer is responsible for the ongoing monitoring and reviewing of our risk profile and practices, and our Executive Vice-President 
and Chief Financial Officer is responsible for ensuring that the risk management program is an integral part of our business strategy, 
planning and objective setting. Each of our subsidiaries, as well as key specialist functions and field services, are required to 
complete a formal risk assessment and to develop a risk mitigation strategy.

The Audit and Finance Committee, the President and Chief Executive Officer, and the Executive Vice-President and Chief Financial 
Officer are supported by our Chief Risk Officer. This support includes coordinating risk policies and programs, establishing risk 
tolerances, preparing risk assessments and profiles and assisting line and functional managers in fulfilling their responsibilities. Our 
internal audit staff is responsible for performing independent reviews of the effectiveness of risk management policies, processes  
and systems.

Ownership by the Province 
The Province owns all of our outstanding shares. Accordingly, the Province has the power to determine the composition of our Board 
of Directors and appoint the Chair, and influence our major business and corporate decisions. We and the Province have entered 
into a memorandum of agreement relating to certain aspects of the governance of our Company. Pursuant to such agreement, 
in September 2008 the Province made a declaration removing certain powers from our Company’s directors pertaining to the 
off-shoring of jobs under the outsourcing arrangement with Inergi LP. In 2009, the Province required Hydro One, among other 
agencies, to adhere to certain accountability measures regarding consulting contracts and employee travel, meal and hospitality 
expenses. The Province may require us to adhere to further accountability measures or may make similar declarations in the future, 
some of which may have a material adverse effect on our business. Hydro One’s credit ratings may change with the credit ratings  
of the Province, to the extent the credit rating agencies link the two ratings by virtue of Hydro One’s ownership by the Province.

Conflicts of interest may arise between us and the Province as a result of the obligation of the Province to act in the best interests 
of the residents of Ontario in a broad range of matters, including the regulation of Ontario’s electricity industry and environmental 
matters, any future sale or other transaction by the Province with respect to its ownership interest in our Company, the Province’s 
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ownership of Ontario Power Generation Inc. (OPG), and the determination of the amount of dividend or proxy tax payments. We 
may not be able to resolve any potential conflict with the Province on terms satisfactory to us, which could have a material adverse 
effect on our business.

Regulatory Risk
We are subject to regulatory risks, including the approval by the OEB of rates for our transmission and distribution businesses that 
permit a reasonable opportunity to recover the estimated costs of providing safe and reliable service on a timely basis and earn the 
approved rates of return.

The OEB approves our transmission and distribution rates based on projected electricity load and consumption levels. If actual load 
or consumption falls below projected levels, our rate of return for either, or both, of these businesses could be materially adversely 
affected. Also, our current revenue requirements for these businesses are based on cost assumptions that may not materialize. There is 
no assurance that the OEB would allow rate increases sufficient to offset unfavourable financial impacts from unanticipated changes 
in electricity demand or in our costs.

Our load could also be negatively affected by successful CDM programs. The recently proposed LTEP directs the OPA to achieve 
interim CDM targets of 4,550 MW of provincial summer peak demand and 13 TWh of cumulative energy savings by the end of 
2015. The Minister of Energy and Infrastructure’s March 31, 2010 directive set a province-wide LDC CDM target of 1,330 MW 
and 6,000 GWh for the period 2011-2014. Our targets have been set at 214 MW and 1,130 GWh for the period 2011-2014. 
These expectations are factored into our revenue requirements for OEB approval, to ensure that the targeted CDM accomplishments 
do not result in deteriorated revenues. There is a risk that our revenues would be reduced if these targets are exceeded. In September 
2010, the Conservation and Demand Management Code for Electricity Distributors was established and sets out the obligations and 
requirements that licensed distributors must comply with in relation to the CDM targets set out in their licenses. This code also sets out 
the conditions and rules that licensed distributors are required to follow if they choose to use OEB-approved CDM programs to meet 
their CDM targets. The implementation of this code could further deteriorate revenues without appropriate compensation. The OEB 
has recognized the need to compensate utilities for such lost revenue, but the approach, level and timing of any such compensation 
mechanism is yet to be determined. We are also subject to risk of revenue loss from other factors, such as economic trends and 
weather.

In response to the LTEP, we expect to make investments in the coming years to connect new renewable generating stations. There 
is the possibility that we could incur unexpected capital expenditures to maintain or improve our assets, particularly given that new 
technology is required to support renewable generation and unforeseen technical issues may be identified through implementation 
of projects. The risk exists that the OEB may not allow full recovery of such investments in the future. To the extent possible, we aim 
to mitigate this risk by ensuring prudent expenditures, seeking from the regulator clear policy direction on cost responsibility, and 
pre-approval of the need for capital expenditures.

While we expect all of our expenditures to be fully recoverable after OEB review, any future regulatory decision to disallow or limit 
the recovery of such costs would lead to potential asset impairment and charges to our results of operations, which could have a 
material adverse effect on our Company.

Risk Associated with Arranging Debt Financing
We expect to borrow to repay our existing indebtedness and fund a portion of capital expenditures. We have substantial amounts 
of existing debt which mature between 2011 and 2014, including $500 million maturing in 2011 and $600 million maturing 
in 2012. We plan to incur capital expenditures of approximately $1.8 billion in 2011 and capital expenditures are expected to 
increase to approximately $1.9 billion in 2012. Cash generated from operations, after the payment of expected dividends, will  
not be sufficient to fund the repayment of our existing indebtedness and capital expenditures. Our ability to arrange sufficient and 
cost-effective debt financing could be materially adversely affected by numerous factors, including the regulatory environment in 
Ontario, our results of operations and financial position, market conditions, the ratings assigned to our debt securities by credit rating 
agencies and general economic conditions. Any failure or inability on our part to borrow substantial amounts of debt on satisfactory 
terms could impair our ability to repay maturing debt, fund capital expenditures and meet other obligations and requirements and,  
as a result, could have a material adverse effect on our Company.
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Risk Associated with Transmission Projects 
The amount of power that can flow through our transmission networks is constrained due to the physical characteristics of transmission 
lines and operating limitations. Within Ontario, new and expected generation facility connections, including those renewable energy 
generation facilities connecting as a result of the FIT program stemming from the GEA, and load growth have increased such that 
parts of our transmission and distribution systems are operating at or near capacity. These constraints or bottlenecks limit the ability 
of our network to reliably transmit power from new and existing generation sources (including expanded interconnections with 
neighbouring utilities) to load centres or meet customers’ increasing loads. As a result, investments have been initiated to increase 
transmission capacity and enable the reliable delivery of power from existing and future generation sources to Ontario consumers. 

In many cases, these investments are contingent upon one or more of the following approvals and/or processes: environmental 
approval(s); receipt of OEB approvals, which can include expropriation; and appropriate consultation processes, and where 
appropriate, accommodation with First Nations and Métis who may potentially be affected by a project. Obtaining these approvals 
and carrying out these processes may also be impacted by public opposition to the proposed site of transmission investments; thus 
there is a risk that necessary approvals may not be obtained in a timely fashion or at all. This will adversely affect transmission 
reliability and/or our service quality, both of which could have a material adverse effect on our Company.

With the introduction on August 26, 2010 of the OEB’s competitive transmission project development planning process, all interested 
transmitters will be required to submit a bid to the OEB for identified enabler facilities and network enhancement projects. Historically, 
we would have been awarded such projects through our rates and Section 92, Leave to Construct, applications. The facilitation 
of competitive transmission could impact our future work program and our ability to expand our current transmission footprint. In 
addition, bid costs are only recoverable by the successful proponent.

Asset Condition 
We continually monitor the condition of our assets and maintain, refurbish or replace them to maintain equipment performance and 
provide reliable service quality. Our capital and maintenance programs have been increasing to maintain the performance of our 
aging asset base. Execution of these plans is partially dependent on external factors, including the fact that opportunities to remove 
equipment from service to accommodate construction and maintenance are becoming increasingly limited due to customer and 
generator priorities. Lead times for material and equipment have also increased substantially due to increased demand and limited 
vendor capability. 

Adjustments to accommodate these external dependencies have been made in our planning process. However, if we are unable to 
carry out these plans in a timely and optimal manner, equipment performance will degrade which may compromise the reliability of 
the provincial grid, our ability to deliver sufficient electricity and/or customer supply security and increase the costs of operating and 
maintaining these assets. This could have a material adverse effect on our Company.

Work Force Demographic Risk
By the end of 2010, approximately 18% of our employees were eligible for retirement and by 2012 there may be about 22% 
eligible to retire. Accordingly, our success will be tied to our ability to attract and retain sufficient qualified staff to replace those 
retiring. This will be challenging as we expect the skilled labour market for our industry to be highly competitive in the future. In 
addition, many of our employees possess experience and skills that will also be highly sought after by other organizations both 
inside and outside the electricity sector. We have already lost a considerable number of management staff, both those in executive 
positions and those who are logical successors for executive positions. Moreover, we must also continue to advance our training and 
apprenticeship programs and succession plans to ensure that our future operational staffing needs will be met. If we are unable to 
attract and retain qualified personnel, it could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Environmental Risk 
Our health, safety and environmental management system is designed to ensure hazards and risks are identified and assessed, 
and controls are implemented to mitigate significant risks. This system includes a standing committee of our Board of Directors that 
has governance over environmental matters. Given the territory that our system encompasses and the amount of equipment that we 
own, we cannot guarantee, however, that all such risks will be identified and mitigated without significant cost and expense to our 
Company. The following are some of the areas that may have a significant impact on our operations.
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We are subject to extensive Canadian federal, provincial and municipal environmental regulation. Failure to comply could subject 
us to fines and other penalties. In addition, the presence or release of hazardous or other harmful substances could lead to claims by 
third parties and/or governmental orders requiring us to take specific actions such as investigating, controlling and remediating the 
effects of these substances. We are currently undertaking a voluntary land assessment and remediation (LAR) program covering most 
of our stations and service centres. This program involves the systematic identification of any contamination at or from these facilities, 
and, where necessary, the development of remediation plans for our Company and adjacent private properties. Any contamination 
of our properties could limit our ability to sell these assets in the future. 

We record a liability for our best estimate of the present value of the future expenditures required to comply with Environment 
Canada’s polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) regulations and for the present value of the future expenditures to complete our LAR 
program. The future expenditures required to discharge our PCB obligation are expected to be incurred over the period ending 
2025 while our LAR expenditures are expected to be incurred over the period ending 2020. Actual future environmental 
expenditures may vary materially from the estimates used in the calculation of the environmental liabilities on our balance sheet.  
We do not have insurance coverage for these environmental expenditures.

As a result of regulatory changes, we expect to incur future expenditures to identify, remove and dispose of asbestos-containing 
materials installed in some of our facilities. With the assistance of an external expert, we completed a study to estimate the 
expenditures associated with removing such materials from our facilities. We used this information to record an asset retirement 
obligation at December 31, 2010. 

There is also risk associated with obtaining governmental approvals, permits, or renewals of existing approvals and permits related  
to constructing or operating facilities. This may require environmental assessment or result in the imposition of conditions, or both, 
which could result in delays and cost increases. 

We anticipate that all of our future environmental expenditures will continue to be recoverable in future electricity rates. However,  
any future regulatory decision to disallow or limit the recovery of such costs could have a material adverse effect on our Company.

Scientists and public health experts have been studying the possibility that exposure to electric and magnetic fields emanating from 
power lines and other electric sources may cause health problems. If it were to be concluded that electric and magnetic fields present 
a health risk, or governments decide to implement exposure limits, we could face litigation, be required to take costly mitigation 
measures such as relocating some of our facilities or experience difficulties in locating and building new facilities. Any of these could 
have a material adverse effect on our Company.

Risk of Natural and Other Unexpected Occurrences 
Our facilities are exposed to the effects of severe weather conditions, natural disasters, man-made events including cyber and 
physical terrorist type attacks and, potentially, catastrophic events, such as a major accident or incident at a facility of a third party 
(such as a generating plant) to which our transmission or distribution assets are connected. Although constructed, operated and 
maintained to industry standards, our facilities may not withstand occurrences of this type in all circumstances. We do not have 
insurance for damage to our transmission and distribution wires, poles and towers located outside our transmission and distribution 
stations resulting from these events. Losses from lost revenues and repair costs could be substantial, especially for many of our 
facilities that are located in remote areas. We could also be subject to claims for damages caused by our failure to transmit or 
distribute electricity. Our risk is partly mitigated because our transmission system is designed and operated to withstand the loss of 
any major element and possesses inherent redundancy that provides alternate means to deliver large amounts of power. In the event 
of a large uninsured loss we would apply to the OEB for recovery of such loss; however, there can be no assurance that the OEB 
would approve any such applications, in whole or in part, which could have a material adverse effect on our net income. 

Risk Associated with Information Technology Infrastructure
Our ability to operate effectively in the Ontario electricity market is in part dependent upon us developing, maintaining and 
managing complex information technology systems which are employed to operate our transmission and distribution facilities, 
financial and billing systems, and business systems. Our increasing reliance on information systems and expanding data networks 
increases our exposure to information security threats. Although security and system disaster recovery controls are in place, system 
failures or security breaches could have a material adverse effect on our Company.
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Pension Plan Risk
We have a defined benefit registered pension plan for the majority of our employees. Contributions to the pension plan are 
established by actuarial valuations which are filed with the Financial Services Commission of Ontario on a triennial basis. The most 
recently filed valuation was prepared as at December 31, 2009 and was filed in September 2010. Our Company contributed 
$145 million to its pension plan in respect of 2010 to satisfy minimum funding requirements. A one-time additional payment of 
$48 million was made in December 2010. Contributions beyond 2010 will depend on investment returns, changes in benefits and 
actuarial assumptions, and may include additional voluntary contributions from time to time. Nevertheless, future contributions are 
expected to be significant. A determination by the OEB that some of our pension expenditures are not recoverable from customers 
could have a material adverse effect on our Company, and this risk may be exacerbated as the quantum of required pension 
contributions increase. 
 
Market and Credit Risk
Market risk refers primarily to the risk of loss that results from changes in commodity prices, foreign exchange rates and interest 
rates. We do not have commodity risk. We do have foreign exchange risk as we enter into agreements to purchase materials and 
equipment associated with our capital programs and projects that are settled in foreign currencies. This foreign exchange risk is not 
material. We could in the future decide to issue foreign currency denominated debt which we would anticipate hedging back to 
Canadian dollars, consistent with our Company’s risk management policy. We are exposed to fluctuations in interest rates as our 
regulated rate of return is derived using a formulaic approach, which is in part based on the forecast for long-term Government 
of Canada bond yields. We estimate that a 1% decrease in the forecasted long-term Government of Canada bond yield used in 
determining our rate of return would reduce our Transmission Business’ net income by approximately $16 million and our Distribution 
Business’ net income by approximately $10 million. Our net income is adversely impacted by rising interest rates as our maturing long-
term debt is refinanced at market rates. We periodically utilize interest rate swap agreements to mitigate elements of interest rate risk.

Financial assets create a risk that a counter-party will fail to discharge an obligation, causing a financial loss. Derivative financial 
instruments result in exposure to credit risk, since there is a risk of counter-party default. We monitor and minimize credit risk through 
various techniques, including dealing with highly-rated counter-parties, limiting total exposure levels with individual counter-parties, 
and by entering into master agreements which enable net settlement and by monitoring the financial condition of counter-parties. We 
do not trade in any energy derivatives. We do, however, have interest rate swap contracts outstanding from time to time. Currently, 
there are no significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to any class of financial assets. We are required to procure 
electricity on behalf of competitive retailers and embedded LDCs for resale to their customers. The resulting concentrations of credit 
risk are mitigated through the use of various security arrangements, including letters of credit, which are incorporated into our service 
agreements with these retailers in accordance with the OEB’s Retail Settlements Code. The failure to properly manage these risks 
could have a material adverse effect on our Company.

Labour Relations Risk
The substantial majority of our employees are represented by either the Power Workers’ Union (PWU) or the Society of Energy 
Professionals (Society). Over the past several years, significant effort has been expended to increase our flexibility to conduct 
operations in a more cost-efficient manner. Although we have achieved improved flexibility in our collective agreements, including 
a reduction in pension benefits for Society staff similar to a previous reduction affecting management staff, we may not be able 
to achieve further improvement. The existing collective agreement with the PWU will expire on March 31, 2011 and the existing 
Society collective agreement will expire on March 31, 2013. We face financial risks related to our ability to negotiate collective 
agreements consistent with our rate orders. In addition, in the event of a labour dispute, we could face operational risk related to 
continued compliance with our licence requirements of providing service to customers. Any of these could have a material adverse 
effect on our Company.

Risk from Transfer of Assets Located on Indian Lands
The transfer orders by which we acquired certain of Ontario Hydro’s businesses as of April 1, 1999 did not transfer title to some 
assets located on lands held for bands or bodies of Indians under the Indian Act (Canada). Currently, OEFC holds these assets. 
Under the terms of the transfer orders, we are required to manage these assets until we have obtained all consents necessary to 
complete the transfer of title of these assets to us. We cannot predict the aggregate amount that we may have to pay, either on an 
annual or one-time basis, to obtain the required consents. However, we anticipate having to pay more than the $761,500 that 
we paid to these Indian bands and bodies in 2010. If we cannot obtain consents from the Indian bands and bodies, OEFC will 
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continue to hold these assets for an indefinite period of time. If we cannot reach a satisfactory settlement, we may have to relocate 
these assets from the Indian lands to other locations at a cost that could be substantial or, in a limited number of cases, to abandon a 
line and replace it with diesel generation facilities. The costs relating to these assets could have a material adverse effect on our net 
income if we are not able to recover them in future rate orders. 

Risk Associated with Outsourcing Arrangement
Consistent with our strategy of reducing operating costs, we amended and extended our outsourcing services agreement with  
Inergi LP, effectively renewing the arrangement until February 28, 2015. If the agreement with Inergi LP is terminated for any reason, 
we could be required to incur significant expenses to transfer to another service provider, which could have a material adverse effect 
on our business, operating results, financial condition or prospects.

Risk from Provincial Ownership of Transmission Corridors
Pursuant to the Reliable Energy and Consumer Protection Act, 2002, the Province acquired ownership of our transmission corridor 
lands underlying our transmission system. Although we have the statutory right to use the transmission corridors, we may be limited in 
our ability to expand our systems. Also, other uses of the transmission corridors by third parties in conjunction with the operation of 
our systems may increase safety or environmental risks.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
The preparation of our financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgements that affect the reported amounts of  
assets, liabilities, revenues and costs, and related disclosures of contingencies. We base our estimates and judgements on historical 
experience, current conditions and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the  
results of which form the basis for making judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities as well as identifying and 
assessing our accounting treatment with respect to commitments and contingencies. Actual results may differ from these estimates  
and judgements under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting estimates involve the more significant estimates and judgements used in the preparation 
of our financial statements:

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities
Regulatory assets as at December 31, 2010 amounted to $1,055 million and principally relate to future income tax, environmental 
costs and the pension variance account. We have also recorded regulatory liabilities amounting to $612 million as at December 31,  
2010. These amounts pertain primarily to deferred pension, the external revenue variance account, future income tax and retail 
settlement variance accounts. These assets and liabilities can be recognized for rate-setting and financial reporting purposes only if 
the OEB directs the relevant regulatory treatment or if future OEB direction is judged to be probable. If management judges that it is 
no longer probable that the OEB will include a regulatory asset or liability in the setting of future rates, the relevant regulatory asset  
or liability would be charged or credited to results of operations in the period in which that judgement is made.

Environmental Liabilities 
We record liabilities and related regulatory assets based on the present value of the estimated future expenditures to be made to 
satisfy obligations related to legacy environmental contamination inherited upon our de-merger from Ontario Hydro in 1999. These 
liabilities fall into two main categories: the management of assets contaminated with PCB-laden mineral oils and the assessment 
and remediation of contaminated lands. In determining the amounts to be recorded as environmental liabilities, we estimate the 
current cost of completing mitigation work and make assumptions for when the future expenditures will actually be incurred in order 
to generate future cash flow information. A long-term inflation assumption of 2% has been used to express our current cost estimates 
as estimated future expenditures. Future estimated LAR expenditures are expected to be incurred over the period ending 2020 and 
are discounted using factors ranging from 3.75% to 6.25%, depending on the appropriate rate for the period when an increase in 
obligation was first recorded. Consistent with the requirements of Environment Canada’s PCB regulations issued on September 17, 
2008, estimated future PCB remediation expenditures are expected to be incurred over the period ending 2025 and are discounted 
using factors ranging from 5.14% to 6.25%, depending on the appropriate rate for the period when an increase in obligation was 
first recorded. 
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Recording a liability now for such long-term future expenditures requires that many other assumptions be made, such as the number 
of contaminated properties and the extent of contamination; the number of assets to be inspected, tested and mitigated; oil volumes; 
and contamination levels of equipment with PCBs. All factors used in deriving our environmental liabilities represent management’s 
best estimates based on our planned approach of meeting current legislative and regulatory requirements. These include Environment 
Canada’s regulations governing the management, storage and disposal of PCBs. However, it is reasonably possible that numbers 
or volumes of contaminated assets, current cost estimates, inflation estimates and the actual pattern of annual future cash flows may 
differ significantly from our assumptions. Estimated environmental liabilities are reviewed annually or more frequently if significant 
changes in regulation or other relevant facts occur. Estimate changes are accounted for prospectively.

Employee Future Benefits 
We provide future benefits to our current and retired employees, including pension, group life insurance, health care and long-term 
disability.

In accordance with our rate orders, we record pension costs when employer contributions are paid to the pension fund (the Fund) 
in accordance with the Pension Benefits Act (Ontario). Our annual pension contributions in respect of 2010 were approximately 
$193 million, $145 million of which was based on an actuarial valuation effective December 31, 2009. Contributions after 2012 
will be based on an actuarial valuation effective December 31, 2012, and will depend on investment returns, changes in benefits 
or actuarial assumptions. Pension costs are also disclosed in the notes to the financial statements on an accrual basis. We record 
employee future benefit costs other than pension on an accrual basis. The accrual costs are determined by independent actuaries 
using the projected benefit method prorated on service and based on assumptions that reflect management’s best estimates. The 
assumptions were determined by management recognizing the recommendations of our actuaries.

The assumed return on pension plan assets of 6.50% per annum is based on expectations of long-term rates of return at the 
beginning of the fiscal year and reflects a pension asset mix consistent with the Fund’s investment policy. During the year the Fund’s 
target asset mix was 63% exposure to equities, 33% to fixed income and 4% in alternative assets consisting of hedge funds and 
private equity. Returns on the respective portfolios are determined with reference to published Canadian and U.S. stock indices and 
long-term bond and treasury bill indices. The assumed rate of return on pension plan assets reflects our long-term expectations. We 
believe that this assumption is reasonable because, with the Fund’s balanced investment approach, the higher volatility of equity 
investment returns is intended to be offset by the greater stability of fixed income and short-term investment returns. The net result, on 
a long-term basis, is a somewhat lower return than might be expected by investing in equities alone. In the short-term, the plan can 
experience aberrations in actual return. In 2010, the return on pension plan assets was higher than this long-term assumption.

The discount rate used to calculate the accrued benefit obligations is determined each year end by referring to the most recently 
available market interest rates based on AA corporate bond yields reflecting the duration of the applicable employee future benefit 
plan. The discount rates at December 31, 2010 decreased to 5.75% from 6.50% used at December 31, 2009 in conjunction with 
decreases in bond yields over this period. The decrease in discount rates has resulted in a corresponding increase in liabilities.

Yields on AA corporate bonds decreased by approximately 70-120 basis points between December 31, 2009 and December 31,  
2010. Based on the duration of the plan’s liabilities, discount rates would be 5.75% per annum for each of the pension plan, 
the post-retirement benefit plan and the post-employment plan. The overall discount rate applied to all plans for liability valuation 
purposes as at December 31, 2010 was 5.75%.

Further, based on differences between long-term Government of Canada nominal bonds and real return bonds, the implied inflation 
rate has increased from approximately 2.50% per annum as at December 31, 2009 to within the range of 2.25% - 2.50% per 
annum as at December 31, 2010. Given the Bank of Canada’s commitment to keep long- term inflation between 1.00% and  
3.00%, management believes that the current implied rate is too high to be used as a long-term assumption and as such, has used  
a 2.00% per annum inflation rate for liability valuation purposes as at December 31, 2010.

The costs of employee future benefits other than pension are determined at the beginning of the year. The costs are based on 
assumptions for expected claims experience and future health care cost inflation. A 1% increase in the health care cost trends would 
result in an increase in service cost and interest cost of about $15 million per year and an increase in the year-end obligation of 
about $185 million.
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Employee future benefits are included in labour costs that are either charged to results of operations or capitalized as part of the cost 
of fixed assets. Changes in assumptions will affect the accrued benefit obligation of the employee future benefits and the future years’ 
amounts that will be charged to our results of operations or capitalized as the cost of fixed assets.

Goodwill and Asset Impairment
In assessing the recoverability of goodwill, we must make assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows and other factors to 
determine the fair value of the distribution reporting unit. If these estimates or their related assumptions change in the future, we may 
be required to record impairment charges related to goodwill. An impairment review of goodwill was carried out during 2010 and 
we determined that the carrying value of our goodwill has not been impaired. 

Within our regulated businesses, carrying costs of our other assets are recovered in our revenue requirements and are included in 
rate base, where they earn a return. Such assets would be tested for impairment only in the event that the OEB disallowed recovery 
or if such a disallowance was judged to be probable. We periodically monitor the assets of our unregulated Telecom Business for 
indications of impairment. No asset impairments have been recorded to date for any of our businesses.

STATUS OF OUR TRANSITION TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)
On February 13, 2008, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) confirmed that publicly accountable enterprises will 
be required to adopt IFRS in place of Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for interim and annual reporting 
purposes for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011, with comparative data also reported under IFRS. On September 10,  
2010, the AcSB decided to permit rate-regulated entities to defer their adoption of IFRS for one year. We plan on adopting the 
one-year deferral and therefore will adopt IFRS for our fiscal year beginning on January 1, 2012. 

In anticipation of the 2008 decision from the AcSB, we commenced our IFRS conversion project in 2007. The project has four 
separate phases: diagnostic, design and planning, solution development, and implementation. We completed the diagnostic 
phase in 2008. It involved a high-level review and identification of the major differences between current GAAP and IFRS in all 
subject areas, resulting in the identification of the areas of accounting difference with the highest potential to significantly impact our 
Company. 

In 2009, we completed the design and planning and the solution development phases of our project, including substantial 
completion of all our policy analyses. We are currently engaged in the implementation phase which is the final phase of our project. 
We are preparing to begin tracking our comparative results under IFRS next year. Our teams continue to monitor progress relative 
to key milestones, monitor developments of both the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB or the Board) and the AcSB, 
update recommendations and develop financial reports. We continue to have ongoing dialogue with our external auditors about 
possible outcomes of our project. 

We continue to evaluate the impacts of current and prospective IFRS on all of our business activities, including those of our 
subsidiaries and the impact on our entity-wide information system. We are simultaneously analyzing the impacts of changes on our 
disclosure controls and internal controls over financial reporting, our debt covenants and our performance measures. We continue 
to provide formal communications to our employees. We have completed numerous staff training sessions and will plan for future 
training sessions as standards continue to evolve. 

Accounting Policies
The areas with the highest potential to significantly impact our Company upon conversion to IFRS, identified during the diagnostic 
phase, are regulatory assets and liabilities, fixed-assets, payments in lieu of corporate income taxes, employee future benefits, as  
well as initial adoption of IFRS under the provisions of IFRS 1, First-Time Adoption of IFRS (IFRS 1). 

Property, Plant and Equipment
On May 6, 2010, the IASB issued the omnibus Improvements to IFRS, which included an amendment to IFRS 1 applicable to entities 
with RRA. It includes transition relief for first-time adopters by offering an optional exemption to use the carrying amount of fixed assets 
or intangible assets as deemed cost on the transition date when the carrying amount includes costs that would not otherwise qualify 
for capitalization. We will elect this exemption for our regulated businesses.
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Regulatory Assets and Liabilities
RRA is not permitted under IFRS. RRA affects the timing of the accounting recognition of costs, revenues, losses and gains. The 
inability to recognize regulatory assets and liabilities after implementing IFRS in 2012 will impact our statement of operations by 
causing a change in the timing of recognition of these amounts. In the absence of rate-regulated accounting, the write-off of our 
regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities would have resulted in a net reduction to retained earnings of approximately $249 million 
as at December 31, 2010.

In-Progress Construction and Development
Current IFRS are significantly different from Canadian GAAP in terms of the expenditures that can be capitalized to in-progress 
construction and development programs and projects. Certain fixed asset and intangible asset expenditures are ineligible for 
capitalization under IFRS. In the absence of rate-regulated accounting, the estimated impact on our financial statements would 
have been a reduction of approximately $300 million in capital expenditures and an increase of approximately $300 million in 
operations, maintenance and administration expenditures had this accounting been followed in 2010. For 2012 rates, the OEB 
directed our Company to adopt this change in accounting classification for ineligible expenditures in determining the revenue 
requirement of our Transmission Business. We currently have approval for a deferral account for such expenditures within our 
Distribution Business and we anticipate applying for revenue requirement treatment, consistent with that directed for our Transmission 
Business, in our next distribution rate application.

Employee Future Benefits
In the absence of RRA, the continuation of accounting for expenditures related to employer-sponsored pension plans on a cash 
basis is not permissible. Regulatory assets and liabilities, representing the cumulative difference between our Company’s pension 
contributions currently accounted for on a cash basis at the direction of the regulator, and the costs that would be recognized on 
an accrual basis under Canadian GAAP, would not meet the definition of assets or liabilities under IFRS and hence will require 
de-recognition at the IFRS transition date. We have assessed our options with respect to the recognition of accumulated, unamortized 
actuarial gains and losses associated with employment benefits. The possible alternatives to account for these pension and other 
employee benefit amounts include charging unamortized actuarial gains and losses immediately upon adoption under IFRS 1 or 
recognizing an adjustment to those amounts retrospectively to comply with IAS 19, Employee Benefits (IAS 19). In the absence of 
rate-regulated accounting, we intend to recognize a retrospective adjustment for these amounts under IAS 19, without the IFRS 1  
exemption. The impact of adopting IAS 19 retrospectively at December 31, 2010 would have been a reduction to retained 
earnings of $319 million.

In April 2010, the IASB published an exposure draft, Defined Benefit Plans (Proposed Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits), 
with significant implications for both financial position and income reporting. Deferred recognition of actuarial gains and losses 
would be eliminated and instead all changes in the defined benefit obligation and in the fair value of plan assets would be 
recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when those changes occur. The exposure draft also proposed a new 
presentation approach where the changes in the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets would be segregated 
and separately disclosed as service cost, finance cost and re-measurement adjustments. Service cost and finance cost components 
would be recognized in the Statement of Operations. The re-measurement adjustments representing actuarial gains and losses would 
be recognized as part of other comprehensive income. As per the IASB’s revised timeline, the final standard is expected in the first 
quarter of 2011 with an effective date not earlier than 2013. The new accounting standard when adopted in 2013 or in later years 
will result in higher volatility in the Statement of Comprehensive Income due to the recognition of the full amount of actuarial gains 
and losses.

Payments in Lieu of Corporate Income Taxes
We recognize future tax assets and liabilities in accordance with Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants Handbook section 
3465, Income Taxes, which was amended effective January 1, 2009 to bridge the convergence to IFRS. As such, we have 
determined that there is no potential for a significant impact for this class of transactions based upon contingent outcomes regarding 
transactions for payments in lieu of corporate income taxes. Without RRA, the impact on our provision for payments in lieu of 
corporate income taxes would be recognized using the liability method and there would be no regulatory accounts established for 
taxes to be recovered through future rates. As a result the provision for PILs for the year ended December 31, 2010 would have 
been higher by approximately $100 million including the impact of a change in substantively enacted tax rates. 
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OEB Consultation
On July 28, 2009, the OEB released some preliminary views on how regulatory reporting requirements will change in response to 
IFRS. The OEB has initiated a second phase of its consultative process to amend certain regulatory instruments. We are continuing to 
assess the impact of the OEB’s report and other recommendations on our IFRS conversion project.

On February 24, 2010, the OEB issued a letter to all licensed electricity distributors and rate-regulated natural gas utilities for the 
purpose of clarifying the OEB’s view released in July on accounting for overhead costs in the cost of new capital works effective 
January 1, 2011. The OEB stated in the letter that it would be requiring full compliance with IFRS requirements, including those in 
IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment (IAS 16), as applicable to non-regulated enterprises and only where the OEB authorizes 
specific alternative treatment for regulatory purposes is alternative treatment acceptable. We continue to assess this guidance in light 
of the AcSB’s revised implementation date.

On November 8, 2010, the OEB published an amendment to a report it made on its policy, Transition to International Financial 
Reporting Standards. In response to the AcSB allowing rate-regulated entities the option to delay their adoption of IFRS to January 1, 
2012, the OEB has adjusted certain policy statements in the report to account for this choice. 

On November 17, 2010, the OEB initiated a working group to develop recommendations on how IFRS should be implemented 
together with IRM rate setting as well as issues that impact utilities under cost-of-service. We are actively participating in the working 
group. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Disclosure Controls and Procedures
We are continuously analyzing the impacts of changes on our disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial 
reporting as we proceed through our implementation of IFRS. Additional disclosure controls may be required to address first-time 
adoption and additional internal controls may be required to implement changes in our accounting policies and to support our 
ongoing IFRS reporting requirements. 

We have initiated the process of analyzing our current disclosure control and procedure and internal control documentation to 
identify changes required upon the adoption of IFRS. We have categorized each control process as low, medium or high-impact, 
based on the currently assessed risk of a major change being required upon implementation of IFRS. This ranking was completed 
in the fourth quarter of 2009. We completed updating the documentation for all of the low and medium-risk processes with IFRS 
implementation impact, including process documentation and risk and control matrices, during the second quarter of 2010. 
Completion of our documentation revisions for our high-risk processes had been put on hold pending an anticipated decision from 
the IASB on the allowance of rate-regulated accounting under IFRS due to the impact that would have had on these processes. We 
plan to initiate the completion of the revisions to our high-risk processes in the first quarter of 2011 now that there is certainty that 
RRA will not be permitted upon our adoption of IFRS. Once our high-risk process documentation has been updated, we will begin 
walkthroughs of all of our revised process and control documentation for low, medium and high-risk processes. At this time we 
estimate that we will complete this on a timely basis for reporting under IFRS in 2012.

Financial Reporting Expertise
The project’s formal governance structure includes a steering committee consisting of senior level management from finance, 
information technology, treasury and our operations organizations. Project status reporting is provided to senior executive 
management and to the Audit and Finance Committee of our Board of Directors on a quarterly basis, or more often as necessary. 

The training of key finance and operational staff commenced in 2007 and has been ongoing. Training has also been given to the 
Audit and Finance Committee and senior executive management to communicate the key differences between Canadian GAAP and 
IFRS, and to provide them with an overview of the key impacts conversion could have on our financial statements. These groups are 
updated as developments in IFRS continue. Due to the extensive staffing requirements associated with such a large-scale project, an 
external expert advisor was engaged to assist with our IFRS conversion project, from the planning phase through to implementation.
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The Audit and Finance Committee and senior management continue to be updated for key developments in IFRS and their potential 
impact on our financial statements. Updates are provided on at least a quarterly basis. This will continue through to our conversion 
to IFRS in 2012. During the third quarter we continued to provide training to our key finance and operational staff. To date, they 
have been trained in many key areas including property, plant and equipment, regulatory accounting, revenue recognition, liabilities, 
employee benefits, financial instruments and most recently income taxes. In addition to sessions on specific topics, we have also held 
one financial reporting update session. During the next year, we will continue to provide IFRS financial reporting update sessions on 
a regular basis.

Business Activities
The Company has the customary covenants normally associated with long-term debt. Among other things, our long-term debt 
covenants limit our permissible debt as a percentage of our total capitalization. Depending on the outcome of various exposure 
drafts under IFRS, we could undergo changes to our results that would impact our debt covenants. For example, covenants would 
be impacted as a result of de-recognition of regulatory assets and liabilities, accounting for expenditures related to employer-
sponsored pension plans on an accrual basis versus a cash basis and the change in costs that are allowable versus disallowable for 
capitalization as part of the cost of self-constructed assets. As part of our IFRS transition project, we have been analyzing the impact 
of potential changes in accounting policy on our debt covenants and communicating potential scenarios and impacts analyses to our 
Audit and Finance Committee. Based on our current estimates, we would remain in compliance with our debt covenants. However, 
we met with our financial institutions and amended our credit agreement with the syndicate of banks to consider the potential impacts 
that IFRS may have on our covenants. Specifically, the calculation of our debt to total capitalization ratio was modified under this 
agreement for certain items to factor in IFRS impacts, such that the debt to total capitalization ratio is representative of what it was 
prior to IFRS. The same ratio is used to support the indenture agreement with our bondholders. Given our current estimates, the 
indenture agreement was not updated at that time because we anticipated that we would remain within the threshold for our debt to 
capitalization ratio given the information available at the time. We have continued to monitor the impact of conversion on our debt 
covenants as IFRS develops and as we finalize our policy choices under IFRS. With the recent deferral of the IASB RRA project, we 
intend to re-assess the impact on our debt to capitalization ratio and identify appropriate next steps.  

Information Technology (IT) Systems
As part of an entity-wide system improvement project, many of our major financial systems were replaced in 2008 and 2009. To 
ensure that the future requirements of IFRS would be met, common team members were included within the governance structure of 
our IFRS project and the new entity-wide system implementation team. At the same time, members of the IFRS implementation team 
were involved in the design of our new entity-wide system. IT implications were identified and assessed during our diagnostic and 
design and planning stages of our IFRS project and were incorporated in the project’s solution development stage. For example, 
the new system has been configured to track depreciation on a component level, based on the useful life of the asset, as currently 
required under IAS 16. The new system has also been configured to track allowable versus disallowable costs for capitalization 
under IAS 16. The system was designed with the maximum flexibility given the uncertainty of the outcome of certain impactive IASB 
projects at the time. When the AcSB deferred implementation of IFRS for rate-regulated entities, we began making the required 
changes to continue reporting under Canadian GAAP until January 1, 2012. We have substantially completed required changes  
to our systems in order to have them ready to report under IFRS beginning on January 1, 2012, with comparatives.

Environmental Reporting
We currently record environmental liabilities for the estimated future expenditures to comply with regulations that require us to 
remediate certain environmental issues. Specifically, we have obligations related to PCB-contaminated equipment, chemically-
contaminated lands adjacent to certain of our properties, and buildings that have asbestos- containing materials. We also currently 
record an asset retirement obligation (ARO) for the removal and disposal of asbestos-containing materials from some of our buildings. 
These obligations are recorded based on the present value of the future estimated cash flows. Under Canadian GAAP this present 
value is calculated using a fixed discount rate which is the credit-adjusted risk-free rate at the date of recognition. When we transition 
to IFRS, we will be required to reassess this discount rate and, as it will no longer be fixed, we will be required to adjust it at each 
balance sheet date. The impact of this change on our recorded obligations cannot be predicted at this time as it will depend on 
future economic conditions.
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Under Canadian GAAP, an ARO exists where there is a legal obligation to remove and dispose of an asset or remediate a 
contaminated site. Under IFRS an ARO also includes obligations that are not legal but which are constructive in nature. Such a 
constructive obligation may be inferred from other factors such as a reporting enterprise’s policies, actions or public statements. Under 
IFRS, new constructive obligations will be recorded as AROs in cases where we expect that specific lands will no longer be used for 
operational purposes and where we expect to remove assets or remediate properties. 

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
Consistent with transitioning our financial systems to an SAP enterprise-wide platform as part of the entity-wide information system 
replacement and improvement project, we successfully implemented various Finance, Human Resources, Payroll and Investment 
Management modules in 2009. The reporting tool Business Intelligence/Business Warehouse was also implemented. This 
implementation included new controls over Internal Controls over Financial Reporting (ICFR) and the replacement of other controls  
in the previous environment. Our process documentation has been updated and the design and effectiveness of the controls have 
been tested. 

A Supply Chain Enhancement Project to develop an operating framework that outlines the strategy and objectives of supply chain 
is expected to be completed in 2011. The resulting new processes are currently being reviewed to assess the impact on the control 
environment. Process documents will be updated and controls will be tested for design and operating effectiveness in 2011.

In compliance with the requirements of National Instrument 52-109, Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings, 
our Certifying Officers have reviewed and certified the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2010, 
together with other financial information included in our annual securities filings. Our Certifying Officers have also certified that 
disclosure controls and procedures (DC&P) have been designed to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to 
our Company is made known within our Company. Based on the evaluation of the design and operation of our DC&P, our certifying 
officers concluded that our DC&P was effective as at December 31, 2010. Further, our Certifying Officers have also certified that 
ICFRs have been designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements. Based on the evaluation of the design and operating effectiveness of the Company’s ICFR, our Certifying 
Officers concluded that our ICFR was effective as at December 31, 2010.

SELECTED ANNUAL INFORMATION
The following table sets forth audited annual information for each of the three years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010. 
This information has been derived from our audited annual Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Consolidated Statements of Operations   
Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions, except  
earnings per common share) 2010 2009 2008
Revenues 5,124 4,744 4,597
Net income 591 470 498
Basic and fully diluted earnings per common share 5,727 4,528 4,797
   
Consolidated Balance Sheets   
Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions, except cash  
dividends per share) 2010 2009 2008
Total assets 17,322 15,635  13,878
Total long-term debt 7,778 6,881 6,133
Cash dividends per common share 100 1,700 2,410
Cash dividends per preferred share 1.375 1.375 1.375
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OUTLOOK
To achieve our vision to be the leading electricity delivery company in North America, we will continue to concentrate on our 
strategic objectives of safety, customer satisfaction, innovation and connecting renewable energy, reliability, protection of the 
environment, recruitment and knowledge retention, shareholder value and productivity. We work in an environment where safety 
is of the utmost importance. Our people underpin everything we do, and as such, we remain resolute in our commitment to safety. 
We will continue to focus our efforts to improve our customers’ satisfaction by maintaining operational excellence through our 
efforts to innovate and to renew transmission and distribution systems. In particular, we will focus on targeted investments to address 
overloaded or aging equipment at customer delivery points, power quality and network performance necessary to improve reliability, 
which will in turn improve customer satisfaction. We will also continue to assist customers in understanding and managing the 
impacts of building a clean energy future.

The LTEP continues the energy strategies set out in the GEA introduced in 2009. The need to rapidly reduce the energy sector’s 
carbon footprint dominates current environmental decision-making, leading to high expectation for immediate action and expansion 
of clean energy supply. Emerging technologies and the need to connect clean and renewable generation challenges our 
Transmission and Distribution Businesses to recalibrate and establish a more flexible and smart electricity grid.

We are planning significant investments in transmission and distribution infrastructure and the continued proactive maintenance of our 
assets to ensure the electricity system’s reliability in the public interest. Our investment plan supports the achievement of the Province’s 
phase-out of coal-fired generation, renewable and nuclear objectives, facilitates the development and use of renewable energy 
resources, promotes system efficiency, sustains equipment performance, meets customers’ service quality needs and facilitates the 
integration of new supply. 

In 2010, the OEB approved our 2011 distribution rates with a revenue requirement of approximately $1,218 million. The revenue 
requirement approved was lower than requested, but should continue to support our work programs necessary to sustain our critical 
infrastructure, increase reliability through enhanced forestry management, support the smart meter requirements and invest in a 
sustainable electricity system that supports renewable generation. We will monitor and address any associated risks should they 
arise. We will be preparing evidence to support a potential distribution rate application for the years 2012 and 2013.

In early 2011, the OEB approved our 2011 and 2012 transmission rates, with revenue requirements of approximately  
$1,346 million and $1,658 million, respectively. The approved revenue requirements will continue to support aging critical 
infrastructure, area supply projects and the Province’s policy objectives. The 2012 revenue requirement includes the OEB’s direction 
to adopt IFRS accounting for indirect overheads capitalized resulting in a $200 million shift between capital expenditures and 
operating expenses.

The actual timing and expenditures in our plan are predicated on obtaining various approvals including OEB approvals and 
environmental assessment approvals; successful negotiations with customers, neighbouring utilities and other stakeholders; and 
consultations with First Nations and Métis communities. Further, we have made assumptions in the plan regarding cost responsibility 
and funding, consistent with the GEA regulations and amended TSC and DSC. 

As stewards of significant electricity assets, we are committed to the protection and sustainment of the environment for future 
generations. We are working towards being an environmental leader in our industry, by distributing clean and renewable energy, 
by upgrading our electricity grid, by minimizing the impacts of our own operations, and ensuring that environmental factors are 
considered in making our business decisions. Our commitment to the environment has been recognized by Canada’s Energy, 
Environment and Excellence group and Corporate Knights magazine.
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Key enablers of the successful implementation of our work program are our human and material resourcing strategies. Our human 
resource strategy is focused on hiring through our association with universities, colleges and our unions, as well as skills development 
and retention. Significant retirement projections and increasing work volumes will result in an unprecedented number of new hires 
in the near term. With regard to materials, we are seeing increasing lead times and costs as market shortages emerge globally. 
Consequently, materials sourcing strategies continue to be developed and implemented to ensure the availability of materials to 
support our work programs. 

We remain committed to a prudent and measured approach to distribution rationalization. In October 2009, the Government 
announced its intention to make the exemption from the electricity transfer tax permanent for transfers of electricity assets within the 
public sector. We have considered and will continue to consider and respond to opportunities for acquisitions or divestitures, on a 
voluntary and commercial basis. The investment plan does not include any funding for any LDC acquisitions or divestitures. 

We will continue to increase enterprise value through productivity improvements and cost-effectiveness driven by technology. Over the 
last two years, we have replaced most of our core systems with an enterprise-wide information technology system. We will leverage 
this investment as a platform for further effectiveness and efficiency gains, including enhancements in strategic sourcing. In addition, 
significant opportunity resides with smart meters and the proliferation of a smart grid, including energy efficiency, demand response 
and distributed-resources technologies.

Through the outlook period, we anticipate no changes to our role within the industry and expect that our financial returns will be 
sufficient to maintain our credit quality.

APPOINTMENT OF JANET HOLDER 
On July 1, 2010, Janet Holder was appointed to our Board of Directors. Ms. Holder is the President of Enbridge Gas Distribution 
and serves on the Board of Governors at the University of New Brunswick. 
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND INFORMATION
Our oral and written public communications, including this document, often contain forward-looking statements that are based on 
current expectations, estimates, forecasts and projections about our business and the industry in which we operate and include 
beliefs and assumptions made by the management of our Company. Such statements include, but are not limited to statements about 
our strategy and our performance measures and targets; statements related to the IPSP; statements about smart meters including 
their capabilities, their timing of installation and our focus on building an advanced distribution solution that will leverage our 
smart meter investment; expectations regarding developments in the statutory and operating framework for electricity distribution 
and transmission in Ontario including the impacts of changes to codes, licences, rules, new regulatory guidelines, tariff rate 
changes, cost recovery, return on equity, rate structures, revenue requirements and impacts on an average customer’s total bill; 
expectations regarding the timing and content of applications to, hearings with and decisions from the OEB and other regulatory 
bodies; statements related to the LTEP; expectations regarding the OEB’s Framework for Transmission Project Development Plans; 
statements about outstanding legal proceedings; statements regarding time-of-use billing; expectations regarding future renewable 
energy generation; statements regarding our liquidity and capital resources and their use; expectations regarding our financing 
activities, including our capital management objectives and our ability to access the capital markets; expectations about our 
maturing debt and interest payments; expectations regarding the results of our ongoing and planned projects and/or initiatives 
and their completion dates; statements regarding expected future capital expenditures, the timing of these expenditures and our 
investment plans; statements regarding contractual obligations and other commitments; statements regarding the effect of load on 
our revenue including the anticipated impact of CDM programs; the effect of interest rates on our revenue requirements and results 
of operations; statements regarding the estimated impact of changes in the forecasted long-term Government of Canada bond yield 
on our results of operations; impacts to our business in respect of the adequacy and timing of supply of materials, supplies and 
services and credit risk of our counterparties; expectations regarding future pension contributions, effect of health care cost trend 
on the future benefits costs and the performance of our pension plan; the possibility of the Province making declarations pursuant 
to our memorandum of agreement with them; statements regarding possible future actions of the Province and regulatory bodies; 
expectations regarding connections of new generation to our transmission and distribution systems; expectations regarding asset 
condition; statements regarding workforce demographics and the market for skilled labour; statements regarding the amount and 
timing of future estimated environmental expenditures, including with respect to LAR and PCBs; statements about future asbestos 
removal expenditures and asset retirement obligations; expectations regarding our information technology strategy and enterprise 
reporting system; the possibility that we could in future decide to issue foreign currency-denominated debt; expectations regarding 
anticipated expenditures associated with transferring assets located on Indian lands; statements about our outsourcing arrangement 
with Inergi LP; statements regarding provincial ownership of our transmission corridors; statements about critical accounting estimates; 
statements about IFRS, our conversion to IFRS and the effect of the absence of rate-regulated accounting under IFRS; statements about 
the outlook period including our expectations regarding our role within the industry, our financial returns, our credit rating and credit 
quality and structural changes to our Company. Words such as “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “attempt,” “may,” “plan,” “will”, 
“believe,” “seek,” “estimate,” “goal,” “aim,” “target,” and variations of such words and similar expressions are intended to identify 
such forward-looking statements. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve assumptions and risks and 
uncertainties that are difficult to predict. Therefore, actual outcomes and results may differ materially from what is expressed, implied 
or forecasted in such forward-looking statements. We do not intend, and we disclaim any obligation to update any forward-looking 
statements, except as required by law.

These forward-looking statements are based on a variety of factors and assumptions including, but not limited to the following: 
no unforeseen changes in the legislative and operating framework for Ontario’s electricity market; no unfavourable decisions from 
the OEB and other regulatory bodies concerning outstanding rate and other applications; no delays in obtaining the required 
approvals; no unforeseen changes in rate orders or rate structures for our Distribution and Transmission Businesses; a stable regulatory 
environment; the preparation of business plans, regulatory filings and future capital expenditures on the basis that commencing 
2011 rate-regulated accounting will not be permitted under IFRS; no unfavourable changes in environmental regulation; and no 
significant event occurring outside the ordinary course of business. These assumptions are based on information currently available to 
us, including information obtained from third-party sources. Actual results may differ materially from those predicted by such forward-
looking statements. While we do not know what impact any of these differences may have, our business, results of operations, 
financial condition and our credit stability may be materially adversely affected. Factors that could cause actual results or outcomes  
to differ materially from the results expressed or implied by forward-looking statements include, among other things. 
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	 •	 the	impact	of	the	GEA	and	the	LTEP,	including	unexpected	expenditures	arising	therefrom;
	 •	 the	risk	that	previously	granted	regulatory	approvals	may	be	subsequently	challenged,	appealed	or	overturned;
	 •	 public	opposition	to	and	delays	or	denials	of	the	requisite	approvals	and	accommodations	for	our	planned	projects;		
	 •	 	the	risks	associated	with	being	controlled	by	the	Province	including	the	possibility	that	the	Province	may	make	declarations	

pursuant to the memorandum of agreement, as well as potential conflicts of interest that may arise between us, the Province 
and related parties;

	 •	 the	risks	associated	with	being	subject	to	extensive	regulation	including	risks	associated	with	OEB	action	or	inaction;	
	 •	 	the	timing	and	results	of	regulatory	decisions	regarding	our	revenue	requirements,	cost	recovery	and	rates,	as	well	as	

changes to rules under various regulatory body review;
	 •	 the	potential	impact	of	CDM	programs	on	our	load	and	our	revenues;
	 •	 unanticipated	changes	in	electricity	demand	or	in	our	costs;
	 •	 	the	risk	that	we	are	not	able	to	arrange	sufficient	cost-effective	financing	to	repay	maturing	debt	and	to	fund	capital	

expenditures and other obligations; 
	 •	 	the	risks	associated	with	the	execution	of	our	capital	and	operation,	maintenance	and	administration	programs	necessary	

to maintain the performance of our aging asset base; 
	 •	 	the	risk	that	we	may	not	recover	all	of	our	project	costs	to	prepare	a	bid	associated	with	the	OEB’s	Framework	for	

Transmission Project Development Plans;
	 •	 the	risk	that	we	will	be	unable	to	source	the	materials	necessary	to	support	our	work	programs;	
	 •	 the	risks	related	to	our	workforce	demographic	and	our	potential	inability	to	attract	and	retain	qualified	personnel;	
	 •	 	the	risk	that	assumptions	that	form	the	basis	of	our	recorded	environmental	liabilities	and	related	regulatory	assets	may	

change; 
	 •	 the	risk	of	currently	undetermined	future	asbestos	removal	costs;	
	 •	 	the	risk	to	our	facilities	posed	by	severe	weather	conditions,	natural	disasters	or	catastrophic	events	and	our	limited	

insurance coverage for losses resulting from these events;
	 •	 	the	risks	associated	with	information	system	security	and	with	maintaining	a	complex	information	technology	systems	

infrastructure and transitioning most of our financial and business processes to an integrated business and financial 
reporting system;

	 •	 future	interest	rates,	future	investment	returns,	inflation,	changes	in	benefits	and	changes	in	actuarial	assumptions;
	 •	 the	risks	associated	with	changes	in	interest	rates;	
	 •	 	the	inability	to	negotiate	collective	agreements	consistent	with	our	rate	orders	or	in	a	timely	fashion	and	the	potential	for	

labour disputes;
	 •	 the	risk	that	we	may	incur	significant	costs	associated	with	transferring	assets	located	on	Indian	lands;
	 •	 	the	potential	that	we	may	incur	significant	expenses	to	replace	some	or	all	of	the	functions	currently	outsourced	if	our	

agreement with Inergi LP is terminated; 
	 •	 the	impact	of	the	ownership	by	the	Province	of	lands	underlying	our	transmission	system;	and
	 •	 the	impact	of	the	final	outcome	of	the	exposure	draft	on	rate-regulated	accounting	under	IFRS.

We caution the reader that the above list of factors is not exhaustive. Some of these and other factors are discussed in more detail 
in the section “Risk Management and Risk Factors” in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). You should review this 
section in detail.

In addition, we caution the reader that information provided in this MD&A regarding our outlook on certain matters, including future 
expenditures, is provided in order to give context to the nature of some of our future plans and may not be appropriate for other 
purposes.

This MD&A is dated as at February 10, 2011. Additional information about our Company, including our Annual Information Form,  
is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
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The Consolidated Financial Statements, Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) and related financial information 
presented in this Annual Report have been prepared by the management of Hydro One Inc. (“Hydro One” or the “Company”). 
Management is responsible for the integrity, consistency and reliability of all such information presented. The Consolidated Financial 
Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Canada and applicable securities 
legislation. The MD&A has been prepared in accordance with National Instrument 51-102, Part 5. 

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements and information in the MD&A involves the use of estimates and 
assumptions based on management’s judgement, particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be 
finalized with certainty until future periods. Estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience, current conditions and 
various other assumptions believed to be reasonable in the circumstances, with critical analysis of the significant accounting policies 
followed by the Company as described in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The preparation of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements and the MD&A includes information regarding the estimated impact of future events and transactions. The 
MD&A also includes information regarding sources of liquidity and capital resources, operating trends, risks and uncertainties. Actual 
results in the future may differ materially from the present assessment of this information because future events and circumstances may 
not occur as expected. The Consolidated Financial Statements and MD&A have been properly prepared within reasonable limits of 
materiality and in light of information up to February 10, 2011.

In meeting its responsibility for the reliability of financial information, management maintains and relies on a comprehensive system 
of internal control and internal audit. The system of internal control includes a written corporate conduct policy; implementation of a 
risk management framework; effective segregation of duties and delegation of authorities; and sound and conservative accounting 
policies that are regularly reviewed. This structure is designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and that 
reliable information is available on a timely basis. In addition internal and disclosure controls have been documented, evaluated, 
tested and identified consistent with National Instrument 52-109 (Bill 198). An internal audit function evaluates the effectiveness 
of these internal controls consistent with its annual audit plan and reports its findings to management and the Audit and Finance 
Committee of the Hydro One Board of Directors, as required.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been examined by KPMG LLP, independent external auditors appointed by the Hydro 
One Board of Directors. The external auditors’ responsibility is to express their opinion on whether the Consolidated Financial 
Statements are fairly presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Canada. The Independent Auditors’ 
Report, which appears on page 43, outlines the scope of their examination and their opinion.

The Hydro One Board of Directors, through its Audit and Finance Committee, is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its 
responsibilities for financial reporting and internal controls. The Audit and Finance Committee of Hydro One met periodically with 
management, the internal auditors and the external auditors to satisfy itself that each group had properly discharged its respective 
responsibility and to review the Consolidated Financial Statements before recommending approval by the Board of Directors. The 
external auditors had direct and full access to the Audit and Finance Committee, with and without the presence of management, to 
discuss their audit and their findings as to the integrity of the financial reporting and the effectiveness of the system of internal controls. 

The Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer and Executive Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer have certified Hydro 
One’s annual Consolidated Financial Statements and annual MD&A filed under provincial securities legislation, related disclosure 
controls and procedures and the design and effectiveness of related internal controls over financial reporting pursuant to National 
Instrument 52-109.

On behalf of Hydro One Inc.’s management:

Laura Formusa      Sandy Struthers
President and Chief Executive Officer     Executive Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer   
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Shareholder of Hydro One Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hydro One Inc., which comprise the consolidated balance 
sheets as at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, 
retained earnings and accumulated other comprehensive income, and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes, comprising a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with 
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our 
audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are 
free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Hydro One Inc. 
as at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

     
Toronto, Canada
February 10, 2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS  
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions, except per share amounts) 2010 2009
Revenues   
Transmission (Note 16) 1,307 1,147
Distribution (Note 16) 3,754 3,534
Other 63 63
  5,124 4,744
  
Costs  
Purchased power (Note 16) 2,474 2,326
Operation, maintenance and administration (Note 16) 1,078 1,057
Depreciation and amortization (Note 3) 583 537
  4,135 3,920
  
Income before financing charges and provision for
 payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 989 824
Financing charges (Note 4) 342 308
  
Income before provision for payments in lieu 
 of corporate income taxes 647 516
Provision for payments in lieu of corporate
 income taxes (Notes 5 and 16)  56 46
Net income 591 470
  
Other comprehensive income - -
Comprehensive income  591 470
Basic and fully diluted earnings per
 common share (Canadian dollars) (Note 15) 5,727 4,528

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF  
RETAINED EARNINGS 

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009
Retained earnings, January 1 1,791 1,497
Change in accounting policy for the recognition of future income 
 tax assets and liabilities (Note 2) - 12
Net income  591 470
Dividends (Note 15) (28) (188)
Retained earnings, December 31 2,354 1,791

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACCUMULATED   
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009
Accumulated other comprehensive income, January 1 (10) (10)
Other comprehensive income - -
Accumulated other comprehensive income, December 31 (10) (10)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009
Assets  
Current assets:  
 Cash 33 -
 Short-term investments (Note 17) 139 -
 Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful 
  accounts - $25 million; 2009 - $25 million) (Note 16) 911 843
  Regulatory assets (Note 8) 42 72
  Materials and supplies 21 21
 Future income tax assets (Note 5) 35 21
  Other 8 16
   1,189 973
Fixed assets (Note 6):  
  Fixed assets in service 19,767 18,407
  Less: Accumulated depreciation 7,247 6,815
   12,520 11,592
  Construction in progress 1,402 1,256
  Future use land, components and spares 139 150
   14,061 12,998
Other long-term assets:  
  Regulatory assets (Notes 8 and 22) 1,013 858
  Deferred pension asset (Note 12) 460 424
  Long-term investment (Note 9) 249 -
 Intangible assets (net of accumulated amortization) (Notes 2 and 7) 189 218
 Goodwill  133 133
 Future income tax assets (Notes 2 and 5) 19 18
 Other  9 13
  2,072 1,664
Total assets 17,322 15,635

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (continued) 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009
Liabilities  
Current liabilities:  
 Bank indebtedness  - 26
 Accounts payable and accrued charges (Notes 13  and 16) 884 800
 Regulatory liabilities (Note 8) 72 100
 Accrued interest 84 74
 Short-term notes payable - 55
 Long-term debt payable within one year (Note 9) 500 600
  1,540 1,655
  
Long-term debt (Note 9) 7,278 6,281

Other long-term liabilities:  
 Employee future benefits other than pension (Note 12) 980 940
 Regulatory liabilities (Notes 8 and 22) 540 489
 Future income tax liabilities (Notes 5 and 22) 693 533
 Environmental liabilities (Note 13) 287 303
 Asset retirement obligations (Note 14) 11 -
 Long-term accounts payable and other liabilities 12 16
  2,523 2,281
Total liabilities 11,341 10,217
  
Contingencies and commitments (Notes 18 and 19)  
  
Shareholder’s equity (Note 15)  
Preferred shares (authorized: unlimited; issued: 12,920,000)  323 323
Common shares (authorized: unlimited; issued: 100,000) 3,314 3,314
Retained earnings 2,354 1,791
Accumulated other comprehensive income  (10) (10)
Total shareholder’s equity 5,981 5,418
Total liabilities and shareholder’s equity 17,322 15,635

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

On behalf of the Board of Directors: 

James Arnett Michael J. Mueller
Chair Chair, Audit and Finance Committee
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS  OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009
Operating activities   
Net income 591 470
Environmental expenditures (17) (9)
Adjustments for non-cash items:  
 Depreciation and amortization (excluding removal costs) 526 487
 Regulatory asset and liability accounts (10) (34)
 Future income taxes (8) 16
 Asset retirement obligation 4 -
 Other 1 -
  1,087 930
Changes in non-cash balances related 
 to operations (Note 17) 77 (38)
Net cash from operating activities 1,164 892
  
Financing activities  
Long-term debt issued 1,500 1,150
Long-term debt retired (600) (400)
Short-term notes payable (55) 55
Dividends paid  (28) (188)
Other - 2
Net cash from financing activities 817 619
  
Investing activities  
Capital expenditures  
 Fixed assets (1,557) (1,473)
 Intangible assets (13) (93)
  (1,570) (1,566)
Long-term investments (250) -
Other assets 37 13
Net cash used in investing activities (1,783) (1,553)
  
Net change in cash and cash equivalents  198 (42)
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1 (26) 16
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31 (Note 17) 172 (26)

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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1.  DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS
Hydro One Inc. (Hydro One or the Company) was incorporated on December 1, 1998, under the Business Corporations Act 
(Ontario) and is wholly owned by the Province of Ontario (the Province). The principal businesses of Hydro One are the transmission 
and distribution of electricity to customers within Ontario. These businesses are regulated by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB).

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries: Hydro One 
Networks Inc. (Hydro One Networks), Hydro One Remote Communities Inc. (Hydro One Remote Communities), Hydro One 
Brampton Networks Inc. (Hydro One Brampton), Hydro One Telecom Inc., Hydro One Lake Erie Link Management Inc. and  
Hydro One Lake Erie Link Company Inc. 

Basis of Accounting
The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Canada 
(Canadian GAAP). 

Rate-setting
The rates of the Company’s electricity Transmission and Distribution Businesses are subject to regulation by the OEB. 

Transmission
On August 16, 2007, the OEB issued its decision in respect of Hydro One Networks’ 2007 and 2008 transmission rate 
application. As part of that decision the OEB approved the disposition of export and wheeling fees liability and the transmission 
market-ready regulatory asset, which was factored into rates and refunded to customers over the four-year period ending  
December 31, 2010.

On May 30, 2008, Hydro One Networks submitted an application to the OEB to adjust Uniform Transmission Rates (UTRs) effective 
January 1, 2009. On August 28, 2008, the OEB approved the application allowing Hydro One Networks to recover revenues 
consistent with the OEB-approved 2008 revenue requirement which reflected the full repayment to customers of the amounts recorded 
in the Earnings Sharing Mechanism and the Revenue Difference Deferral Account at the end of 2008. 
 
To achieve the necessary funding in support of required infrastructure, Hydro One Networks filed a transmission rate application 
for 2009 and 2010 rates in September 2008. The application sought OEB approval for revenue requirements of approximately 
$1,233 million and $1,341 million, based on a return on equity of 8.53% and 9.35% for 2009 and 2010, respectively. On  
May 28, 2009, the OEB issued its decision in respect of this application. The decision, which was effective July 1, 2009, resulted 
in reduced revenue requirements of $1,180 million and $1,240 million in 2009 and 2010, respectively, primarily due to a lower 
approved return on equity. The OEB decision disallowed development capital expenditures of $180 million for 2010, but agreed 
to reconsider the projects if additional evidence was provided. On September 4, 2009, Hydro One Networks filed the additional 
evidence on two projects amounting to approximately $160 million in capital expenditures. The OEB approved the supplemental 
evidence for inclusion in Hydro One Networks’ 2010 rates. This resulted in a revised revenue requirement of $1,257 million for 
2010, on the basis of an updated return on equity of 8.39% for 2010.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
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On May 19, 2010 Hydro One Networks submitted an application for 2011 and 2012 transmission rates in continued support of 
its aging critical infrastructure and the supply mix objectives for generation, including off-coal initiatives and initiation of investments  
in support of the Green Energy Act (GEA). This application sought the approval of revenue requirements of approximately  
$1,446 million for 2011 and $1,547 million for 2012. 

On December 23, 2010, the OEB issued its decision effective January 1, 2011 which resulted in revenue requirements of  
$1,346 million for 2011 and $1,658 million for 2012. The change in our 2012 revenue requirement resulted in a higher revenue 
requirement than originally submitted due to the OEB directing Hydro One to adopt IFRS accounting for overheads capitalized 
resulting in a $200 million increase in 2012. 

Distribution
On December 18, 2008, the OEB issued a decision approving substantially all work program expenditures effective May 1, 2008, 
for implementation on February 1, 2009. The OEB also approved recovery of our smart meter expenditures made prior to the end of 
2007. The decision approved the establishment of the revenue recovery account (Rider 4) to record the revenue differential between 
existing distribution rates and new rates. Rider 4 is being recovered over a 27-month period commencing February 1, 2009 and 
ending April 30, 2011. 
 
In late 2008, Hydro One Networks filed an incentive regulation application for 2009 rates, with an update filed in January 2009, 
to reflect the impact of the 2008 distribution rate decision. The application was filed on the basis of the OEB’s third-generation 
Incentive Regulation Mechanism (IRM) process, which adjusts rates by considering inflation, productivity targets, significant events 
outside the control of management and a capital adjustment mechanism to recover costs for new incremental capital coming in 
service beyond a prescribed threshold. On May 13, 2009, the OEB released its decision approving the basic IRM increase and 
the $1.65 per month per metered customer for smart meters. The revised rates were approved effective May 1, 2009, with an 
implementation date of June 1, 2009.

In 2009, Hydro One Networks filed a cost-of-service application with the OEB for 2010 and 2011 distribution rates reflecting the 
Company’s plan to invest in its network assets to meet objectives regarding public and employee safety; regulatory and legislative 
compliance; maintenance of system security and reliability of system growth requirements; and investments required by the GEA. 
The application sought OEB approval of revenue requirements of approximately $1,150 million and $1,264 million for 2010 and 
2011, respectively. 

On April 9, 2010, the OEB released its decision approving revenue requirements of $1,146 million for 2010 and $1,236 million 
for 2011 to support the necessary work programs, the implementation of the GEA and the installation of smart meters. The OEB also 
approved certain distribution-related deferral account balances sought by Hydro One Networks in its application including retail 
settlement variance accounts, regulatory asset recovery account I, retail cost variance accounts and smart meters. The OEB ordered 
that the approved balances be aggregated into a single regulatory account (Rider 6) to be recovered over an 18-month period from 
May 1, 2010 to December 31, 2011. 

On November 1, 2007, Hydro One Brampton filed an application for 2008 rates on the basis of the OEB’s second-generation IRM 
policy which incorporates an OEB-approved formula that considers inflation and efficiency targets. On March 19, 2008, the OEB 
released its decision. The revised rates, including an amount of 67 cents per month per metered customer for smart meters, were 
approved with an implementation date of May 1, 2008. 

On November 7, 2008, Hydro One Brampton filed an application on the same basis for 2009 distribution rates. On March 13, 
2009, the OEB released it decision and approved the submission on the basis of its second-generation IRM policy. The revised 
rates, including an amount of $1.00 per month per metered customer for smart meters, were approved for implementation effective 
May 1, 2009.

On November 6, 2009, Hydro One Brampton filed an application for 2010 distribution rates on the basis of the OEB’s second-
generation IRM process. On April 13, 2010, the OEB released its decision regarding this rate application approving our submission 
on the basis of the OEB’s cost-of-capital and second-generation IRM policies. The revised rates had an implementation date of  
May 1, 2010. 
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On August 29, 2008, Hydro One Remote Communities filed a 2009 cost-of-service rate application proposing 
an increase of about $10 million over the 2006 approved revenue requirement as a result of increased fuel 
costs. On April 30, 2009, the OEB issued a decision regarding this rate application approving all work 
program expenditures effective May 1, 2009.

On November 4, 2009, Hydro One Remote Communities filed an application for 2010 distribution rates under 
the OEB’s third-generation IRM, seeking approval of an increase to basic rates for the distribution and generation 
of electricity effective May 1, 2010. The increase reflects the standard inflationary adjustments incorporated 
in the third-generation IRM applications. On April 14, 2010, the OEB issued a decision regarding this rate 
application under the OEB’s third-generation IRM policies. The revised rates were approved for implementation 
on May 1, 2010. 

Regulatory Accounting
The OEB has the general power to include or exclude costs, revenues, losses or gains in the rates of a specific 
period, resulting in a change in the timing of accounting recognition from that which would have applied in an 
unregulated company. Such change in timing involves the application of rate-regulated accounting, giving rise 
to the recognition of regulatory assets and liabilities. The Company’s regulatory assets represent certain amounts 
receivable from future customers and costs that have been deferred for accounting purposes because it is 
probable that they will be recovered in future rates. In addition, the Company has recorded regulatory liabilities 
which represent amounts for expenses incurred in different periods than would be the case had the Company 
been unregulated. The Company continually assesses the likelihood of recovery of each of its regulatory assets 
and continues to believe that it is probable that the OEB will factor its regulatory assets and liabilities into the 
setting of future rates. If, at some future date, the Company judges that it is no longer probable that the OEB will 
include a regulatory asset or liability in future rates, the appropriate carrying amount will be reflected in results 
of operations in the period that the assessment is made. Specific regulatory assets and liabilities are disclosed in 
Note 8.

Revenue Recognition and Allocation
Transmission revenues are collected through OEB-approved rates, which are based on an approved revenue 
requirement that includes a rate of return. Such revenue is recognized as power is transmitted and delivered to 
customers.

Distribution revenues attributable to the delivery of electricity are based on OEB-approved distribution rates and 
are recognized as electricity is delivered to customers. The Company estimates the monthly revenue for the 
period based on wholesale power purchases because customer meters are not generally read at the end of  
each month. Unbilled revenue included within accounts receivable as at December 31, 2010 amounted to 
$493 million (2009 - $434 million). 

Distribution revenue also includes an amount relating to rate protection for rural residential and remote customers, 
which is received from the Independent Electricity System Operator (IESO) based on a standardized customer 
rate that is approved by the OEB. The current legislation provides rate protection for prescribed classes of rural 
residential and remote consumers by reducing the electricity rates that would otherwise apply.

Segment revenues for transmission, distribution and other also include revenue related to sales of other services 
and equipment. Such revenue is recognized as services are rendered or as equipment is delivered.

Corporate Income and Capital Taxes
Under the Electricity Act, 1998, Hydro One is required to make payments in lieu of corporate taxes to the 
Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (OEFC). These payments are calculated in accordance with the rules 
for computing income and taxable capital and other relevant amounts contained in the Income Tax Act (Canada) 
and the Taxation Act, 2007 (Ontario) (Corporations Tax Act (Ontario), prior to 2009) as modified by the 
Electricity Act, 1998, and related regulations.
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Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted amendments to the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) 
Handbook Section 3465, Income Taxes and CICA Handbook Section 1100, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. These 
amended sections establish new standards for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of future income tax assets 
and liabilities of rate-regulated enterprises. 

For transactions and events that cause temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 
for accounting purposes, the Company recognized future income tax assets and liabilities, and corresponding regulatory liabilities 
and assets, as a result of adopting these amended standards on January 1, 2009. Adjustments to retained earnings were recorded 
on January 1, 2009 for the cumulative earnings impact of future income tax assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2008 that are 
excluded from the rate-setting process.

Current Income Taxes
The provision for current taxes and the assets and liabilities recognized for the current and prior periods are measured at the amounts 
receivable or payable from/to the OEFC. 

Future Income Taxes 
Future income taxes are provided for using the liability method and are recognized on temporary differences between the carrying 
amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Future income tax liabilities are generally recognized on all taxable temporary differences and future tax assets are recognized to 
the extent that it is more likely than not that they will be realized from taxable profits available against which deductible temporary 
differences can be utilized. 

Future income taxes are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is 
realized, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Future 
income taxes are charged or credited to the Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income.

The carrying amount of future income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that all or part of 
the future income tax assets have not met the “more likely than not” criterion. Previously unrecognized future income tax assets are 
reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it has become more likely than not that they will be 
recovered from future taxable profits.

The Company has recognized regulatory assets and liabilities which correspond to future income taxes that flow through the rate-
making process. 

Materials and Supplies
Materials and supplies represent consumables, spare parts and construction material held for internal construction and maintenance 
of fixed assets. These assets are carried at lower of average cost or net realizable value.

Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are capitalized at cost, which comprises materials, labour, engineering, overheads, depreciation on service equipment 
and the OEB-approved allowance for funds used during construction applicable to capital construction activities within regulated 
businesses, or interest applicable to capital construction activities within unregulated businesses. 

Fixed assets in service consist of transmission, distribution, communication, administration and service assets and easements. Fixed 
assets also include future use assets such as land; major components and spare parts; and capitalized development costs associated 
with deferred capital projects. 

Transmission
Transmission assets include assets used for the transmission of high-voltage electricity such as transmission lines; support structures; 
foundations; insulators; connecting hardware and grounding systems; and assets used to step up the voltage of electricity from 
generating stations for transmission and to step down voltages for distribution, such as transformers, circuit breakers and switches.
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Distribution 
Distribution assets comprise assets related to the distribution of low-voltage electricity, including lines, poles, switches, transformers, 
protective devices and metering systems. 

Communication
Communication assets include the fibre-optic and microwave radio system, optical ground wire, towers, telephone equipment and 
associated buildings.

Administration and Service
Administration and service assets include administrative buildings, major computer systems, personal computers, transport and work 
equipment, tools, vehicles and other minor fixed assets.

Easements
Easements include statutory rights of use for transmission corridors and abutting lands granted under the Reliable Energy and 
Consumer Protection Act, 2002, as well as other amounts related to land access rights.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets represent computer applications software and other assets. These assets are capitalized at cost, which comprises 
materials, purchased software, labour and consulting, engineering, overheads and the OEB-approved allowance for funds used 
during construction applicable to capital construction activities within regulated businesses.

Construction and Development in Progress
Overhead costs, including shared corporate functions and services costs, are capitalized on a fully allocated basis, consistent  
with an OEB-approved methodology. Financing costs are capitalized on rate-regulated fixed assets under construction and  
intangible assets under development, based on the OEB’s approved allowance for funds used during construction (2010 – 4.34%;  
2009 – 5.89%).

Depreciation and Amortization
The capital costs of fixed assets and intangible assets, primarily consisting of applications software, are depreciated or amortized on 
a straight-line basis, except for transport and work equipment, which is depreciated on a declining balance basis. 

The Company periodically initiates an external review of its fixed asset and intangible asset depreciation and amortization rates, 
as required by the OEB. The last review resulted in changes to rates effective January 1, 2007. A summary of depreciation and 
amortization rates for the various classes of assets is included below:

 Depreciation and amortization rates (%)
 Range Average
Transmission 1% - 3% 2%
Distribution  1% - 13% 2%
Communication 1% - 13% 5%
Administration and service 1% - 20% 9%

The costs of intangible assets are primarily included within the administration and service classification above and these assets  
are amortized on a straight-line basis. Amortization rates for computer applications software and other intangible assets range from 
9% to 11%.

Depreciation rates for easements are based on their contract life. The majority of easements are held in perpetuity and are not 
depreciated. 
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In accordance with group depreciation practices, the original cost of fixed assets that are normally retired is charged to accumulated 
depreciation or amortization, with no gain or loss reflected in current results of operations. Gains and losses on sales of fixed assets 
and losses on premature retirements are charged to results of operations as adjustments to depreciation or amortization expense. 
Depreciation expense also includes the costs incurred to remove fixed assets where no asset retirement obligation has been recorded. 

The estimated service lives of fixed or intangible assets are subject to periodic review. Any changes arising from such a review are 
implemented on a remaining service life basis consistent with their inclusion in electricity rates. 

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the cost of acquired local distribution companies in excess of fair value of the net identifiable assets purchased 
and is evaluated for impairment on an annual basis, or more frequently if circumstances require. Goodwill impairment is assessed 
based on a comparison of the fair value of the reporting unit to the underlying carrying value of the reporting unit’s net assets, 
including goodwill, with any write-down of the carrying value of goodwill being charged against the results of operations. The 
Company has determined that goodwill is not impaired. All of the goodwill is attributable to the Distribution Business segment. 

Discounts and Premiums on Debt
Discounts and premiums are amortized over the period of the related debt using the effective interest method.

Financial Instruments
Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income is comprised of the Company’s net income and other comprehensive income (OCI). OCI includes the 
amortization of net unamortized hedging losses on discontinued cash flow hedges and the change in fair value on existing cash flow 
hedges to the extent that the hedge is effective. The Company amortizes its unamortized hedging losses on discontinued cash flow 
hedges to financing charges using the effective interest method over the term of the hedged debt. 

Financial Assets and Liabilities
All financial instruments are classified into one of the following five categories: held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, 
held-for-trading, other liabilities or available-for-sale. All financial instruments, including derivatives, are carried at fair value on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet except for loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and other financial liabilities, which are 
measured at amortized cost. Held-for-trading financial instruments are measured at fair value and all gains and losses are included in 
financing charges in the period in which they arise. Available-for-sale financial instruments are measured at fair value with revaluation 
gains and losses included in OCI until the instrument is derecognized or impaired. The Company has classified its financial 
instruments as follows:

 Cash  Held-for-trading
 Accounts receivable Loans and receivables
 Short-term investments Held-to-maturity/Held-for-trading
 Long-term investment Held-to-maturity/Held-for-trading
 Fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps  Not classified
 Long-term accounts receivable  Loans and receivables
 Bank indebtedness Other liabilities
 Accounts payable Other liabilities
 Short-term notes payable Other liabilities
 Long-term debt (unless otherwise specified) Other liabilities
 MTN Series 14 Note Not classified
 $500 million of MTN Series 19 Note Not classified
  
Short-term investments are generally classified as held-to-maturity; however, certain short-term investments are classified as held-
for-trading when the Company has no intent to hold a pool of assets to their maturity. Documentation of the short-term investment 
classification is made on inception. 
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Where long-term debt is designated as part of a hedging relationship, as in the case of the MTN Series 14 Note and $500 million 
of the MTN Series 19 Note, the long-term debt, and related hedging instrument, are not classified. 

All financial instrument transactions are recorded at trade date. 

Derivative Instruments and Hedge Accounting
All derivative instruments, including embedded derivatives, are carried at fair value on the Consolidated Balance Sheet unless 
exempted from derivative treatment as a normal purchase and sale or when it is deemed that the economic characteristics and 
risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract. All changes 
in fair value are recorded in financing charges unless cash flow hedge accounting is used, in which case changes in fair value are 
recorded in OCI to the extent that the hedge is effective. The gain or loss related to the ineffective portion, if any, is recorded in 
financing charges. 

The Company does not engage in derivative trading or speculative activities.

The Company periodically develops hedging strategies for execution taking into account risk management objectives. At the 
inception of a hedging relationship, the Company formally documents the hedging relationship between the hedged item and the 
hedging instrument, its risk management objective for establishing the hedging relationship, the nature of the specific risk exposure 
being hedged, and the method for assessing effectiveness of the hedging relationship. The Company also assesses, both at the 
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, whether the hedging items that are used are effective in offsetting changes in fair 
values or cash flows of the hedged items. 

Transaction Costs 
Transaction costs for financial assets and liabilities that are other than held-for-trading are added to the carrying value of the asset or 
liability and then amortized over the expected life of the instrument using the effective interest method. 

Financial Instrument Disclosures
The fair market value of the Company’s long-term debt is determined using the fair value hierarchy levels disclosed in Note 10.

Employee Future Benefits
Employee future benefits provided by Hydro One include pension, group life insurance, health care and long-term disability.

In accordance with the OEB’s rate orders, pension costs are recorded when employer contributions are paid to the pension fund 
in accordance with the Pension Benefits Act (Ontario). Actuarial valuations are conducted at least every three years. Pension costs 
are also calculated on an accrual basis. Pension costs are actuarially determined using the projected benefit method prorated on 
service and based on assumptions that reflect management’s best estimate of the effect of future events, including future compensation 
increases, on the actuarial present value of accrued pension benefits. Pension plan assets, consisting primarily of listed equity 
securities as well as corporate and government debt securities, are valued using fair values. Past service costs from plan amendments 
and all actuarial gains or losses are amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected average remaining service life of the 
employees covered.

Employee future benefits other than pension are recorded on an accrual basis. Costs are determined by independent actuaries 
using the projected benefit method prorated on service and based on assumptions that reflect management’s best estimates. Past 
service costs from plan amendments and actuarial gains or losses are amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected average 
remaining service life of the employees covered. 

Employee future benefit costs are attributed to labour and charged to operations or capitalized as part of the cost of fixed assets.
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Environmental Costs
Hydro One records a liability for the estimated future expenditures associated with the assessment and remediation of contaminated 
lands and for the phase-out and destruction of polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) contaminated mineral oil removed from electrical 
equipment, based on the present value of these estimated future expenditures. As the Company anticipates that the related 
expenditures will continue to be recoverable in future rates, a regulatory asset has been recorded to reflect the future recovery of 
these costs from customers. Hydro One reviews its estimates of future environmental expenditures on an ongoing basis. 

Asset Retirement Obligations
When required by force of law or regulation, Hydro One records an asset retirement obligation based on the present value of the 
estimated fair value expenditures to remove certain assets and mitigate related sites. Where the Company anticipates that the related 
expenditures will be recoverable in future rates, a corresponding amount is capitalized as a cost of the related fixed assets. Some 
of the Company’s transmission and distribution assets, particularly those located on unowned easements and rights-of-way, may 
have asset retirement obligations, conditional or otherwise. The majority of the Company’s easements and rights-of-way are either of 
perpetual duration or are automatically renewed annually. Land rights with finite terms are generally subject to extension or renewal. 
As the Company expects to use the majority of its facilities in perpetuity, no asset retirement obligation currently exists. If, at some 
future date, a particular facility is shown not to meet the perpetuity criterion, it will be reviewed to determine whether a measurable 
asset retirement obligation exists. In such a case, an asset retirement obligation would be recorded at that time.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the year. Actual results could differ from estimates, 
including changes as a result of future decisions made by the OEB or the Province. 

Emerging Accounting Changes 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
On February 13, 2008 the Canadian Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) confirmed that publicly accountable enterprises will be 
required to adopt IFRS in place of Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for interim and annual reporting purposes for 
fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011. On October 14, 2009, the Public Sector Accounting Board released a decision 
summary confirming that government organizations following commercial practices adhere to standards for publicly accountable 
entities after January 1, 2011. On September 10, 2010, the AcSB decided to permit rate-regulated entities to defer their IFRS 
implementation date to January 1, 2012. As such, the Company will apply IFRS to its financial statements ending December 31,  
2012 with restatement of the amounts recorded on the opening IFRS balance sheet as at January 1, 2011, for comparative 
purposes. The Company continues to assess the impact of conversion to IFRS on its results of operations. 

3.  DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009
Depreciation of fixed assets in service 456 418
Amortization of intangible assets 43 36
Fixed asset removal costs 57 50
Amortization of regulatory and other assets 27 33
  583 537
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4.  FINANCING CHARGES

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009
Interest on long-term debt payable 409 369
Less: Interest capitalized on construction and development in progress (54) (58)
 Interest earned on investments (3) (1)
 Other (10) (2)
  342 308

5. PROVISION FOR PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF CORPORATE INCOME TAXES 

The provision for payments in lieu of corporate income taxes (PILs) differs from the amount that would have been recorded using the 
combined Canadian Federal and Ontario statutory income tax rate. The reconciliation between the statutory and effective tax rates is 
provided as follows:

(Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009
Income before provision for PILs 647 516
Federal and Ontario statutory income tax rate 31.00%  33.00%
Provision for PILs at statutory rate 201 170
  
Increase (decrease) resulting from:  
Net temporary differences included in amounts charged to customers:  
  
 Capital cost allowance in excess of depreciation and amortization (82) (74)
 Retail settlement variance accounts - 4
 Pension contributions in excess of pension expense (18) (15)
 Overheads capitalized for accounting but deducted for tax purposes (13) (14)
 Interest capitalized for accounting but deducted for tax purposes (17) (19)
 Employee future benefits other than pension expense in excess of cash payments 3 1
 Environmental expenditures (5) (3)
 Other (15) (6)
Net temporary differences  (147) (126)
Net permanent differences 2 2
Total income tax provision for PILs 56 46
  
Current income tax provision for PILs 64 30
Future income tax provision for PILs (8) 16
Total income tax provision for PILs 56 46
Effective income tax rate 8.66% 8.91%

The provision for payments in lieu of current income taxes of $64 million represents the amount payable to the OEFC with respect 
to current year earnings. The outstanding balance due to the OEFC at December 31, 2010 is $17 million (2009 - $6 million 
recoverable).

The payments in lieu of future income taxes recoverable of $8 million reflects the decrease in the liability for payments in lieu of future 
income taxes that are not expected to be recovered from the Company’s customers through future rates. The decrease in the liability 
for payments in lieu of future income taxes that is expected to be recovered from the Company’s customers through future rates has 
resulted in a decrease in regulatory assets.
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Future Income Tax Assets and Liabilities
Payments in lieu of future income tax assets and liabilities arise from differences between the carrying amounts and tax bases of the 
Company’s assets and liabilities. The tax effects of these differences are as follows:

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009
Future income tax assets  
Depreciation and amortization in excess of capital cost allowance  9 6
Employee future benefits other than pension expense in excess of cash payments 5 4
Retail settlement variance accounts - 3
Environmental expenditures 3 3
Other 5 3
Total future income tax assets 22 19
Less: current portion 3 1
  19 18

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009
Future income tax liabilities  
Capital cost allowance in excess of depreciation and amortization (1,004) (825)
Employee future benefits other than pension expense in excess of cash payments 337 314
Environmental expenditures 76 82
Transmission and Distribution amounts received but not recognized for accounting purposes (69) (68)
Goodwill (17) (18)
Retail settlement variance accounts 5 5
Other 11 (3)
Total future income tax liabilities (661) (513)
Less: current portion 32 20
  (693) (533)

As at December 31, 2010, payments in lieu of future income tax assets of $574 thousand (2009 – $461 thousand), based on 
substantively enacted income tax rates and laws, have not been recorded, as it is more likely than not that the assets will not be  
realized in the future.



66 HYDRO ONE ANNUAL REPORT 2010

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED F INANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.  FIXED ASSETS
   Accumulated Construction
December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) Fixed Assets Depreciation in Progress Total
2010    
Transmission 10,204 3,626 1,070 7,648
Distribution  7,230 2,556 262 4,936
Communication 892 426 37 503
Administration and service 1,089 554 33 568
Easements 491 85 - 406
  19,906 7,247 1,402 14,061

2009    
Transmission 9,485 3,455 956 6,986
Distribution  6,773 2,392 220 4,601
Communication 806 376 54 484
Administration and service 1,007 510 26 523
Easements 486 82 - 404
  18,557 6,815 1,256 12,998

Financing costs are capitalized on fixed assets under construction, including allowance for funds used during construction on 
regulated assets and interest on unregulated assets, and were $54 million in 2010 (2009 - $55 million).

7.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS
   Accumulated Development in
December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) Intangible Assets Amortization Progress Total
2010    
Computer applications software 395 209 1 187
Other assets 5 3 - 2
  400 212 1 189
    
2009    
Computer applications software 379 166 3 216
Other assets 5 3 - 2
  384 169 3 218

Financing costs are capitalized on intangible assets under development, including allowance for funds used during construction on 
regulated assets, and were $nil in 2010 (2009 - $3 million). 
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8.  REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Regulatory assets and liabilities arise as a result of the rate-making process. Hydro One has recorded the following regulatory assets 
and liabilities:

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009
Regulatory assets:   
 Regulatory future income tax asset 674 523
 Environmental  309 327
 Pension cost variance account 27 7
 Rider 2 (Regulatory asset recovery account II)  11 19
 Rural and remote rate protection variance account 7 24
 Long-term project development cost account 7 2
 Rider 4 (Revenue Recovery Account) 5 18
 Other  15 10
Total regulatory assets 1,055 930
Less: current portion 42 72
  1,013 858
 
  
Regulatory liabilities:  
 Deferred pension  460 424
 External revenue variance account 29 12
 Regulatory future income tax liability 30 32
 Retail settlement variance accounts 22 -
 Rider 3 (regulatory liability refund account)  19 49
 Rider 6 19 31
 Rider 8 9 -
 Hydro One Brampton rider 6 9
 Export and wheeling fees 3 15
 Other 15 17
Total regulatory liabilities 612 589
Less: current portion 72 100
  540 489

Regulatory Assets
Regulatory Future Income Tax Asset and Liability
Future income taxes are recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial 
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. The Company has recognized regulatory 
assets and liabilities which correspond to future income taxes that flow through the rate-making process. In the absence of rate-
regulated accounting, the Company’s provision for PILs would have been recognized using the liability method and there would be 
no regulatory accounts established for taxes to be recovered through future rates. As a result the provision for PILs would have been 
higher by approximately $104 million (2009 - $127 million) including the impact of a change in substantively enacted tax rates.

Environmental 
Hydro One records a liability for the estimated future expenditures required to remediate past environmental contamination (see  
Note 13). Because such expenditures are expected to be recoverable in future rates, the Company has recorded an equivalent 
amount as a regulatory asset. In 2010, this regulatory asset decreased by $15 million (2009 – increased by $30 million) to reflect 
related changes in the Company’s PCB liability and decreased by $1 million (2009 – increased by $40 million) for a change in the 
land assessment and remediation (LAR) liability. The environmental regulatory asset is amortized to results of operations based on the 
pattern of actual expenditures incurred. The OEB has the discretion to examine and assess the prudence and the timing of recovery 
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of all of Hydro One’s actual environmental expenditures. In the absence of rate-regulated accounting, operation, maintenance and 
administration expenses would have been lower by $16 million (2009 - higher by $70 million). In addition, amortization expense 
in 2010 would have been lower by $17 million (2009 - $9 million) and financing charges would have been higher by $15 million 
(2009 - $13 million).  

Pension Cost Variance Account 
The pension cost variance account was established for Hydro One Networks’ Transmission and Distribution Businesses to track the 
difference between the actual pension costs incurred by the Company and estimated pension costs approved by the OEB. The 
balance in this account reflects the excess of pension costs paid compared to OEB-approved amounts. On May 28, 2009, the  
OEB announced its decision regarding the Company’s rate application in respect of the Transmission Business of Hydro One 
Networks for 2009 and 2010 rates. As part of this decision, the OEB approved recovery of the proposed balance in this account 
plus accrued interest for recovery over 18 months ending December 31, 2010. In the December 23, 2010 decision on 2011 and 
2012 transmission rates, the OEB approved the December 31, 2009 balance, including accrued interest, to be recovered over a 
one-year period from January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011. In the absence of rate-regulated accounting, revenue would have 
been lower by $20 million in 2010 (2009 - $7 million). 

Rider 2 or Regulatory Asset Recovery Account II (RARA II)
On April 12, 2006, the OEB announced its decision regarding the Company’s rate application in respect of the Distribution Business 
of Hydro One Networks. As part of this decision, the OEB also approved the distribution-related deferral account balances sought 
by Hydro One. The RARA II includes retail settlement and cost variance amounts and distribution low-voltage service amounts, plus 
accrued interest. In the absence of rate-regulated accounting, amortization expense in 2010 would have been lower by $8 million 
(2009 - $23 million). In addition, related financing charges would have remained the same in both years.

Rural and Remote Rate Protection Variance Account (RRRP)
Hydro One receives rural rate protection amounts from the IESO. A portion of these amounts is provided to retail customers of 
Hydro One Networks who are eligible for rate protection. In 2002, the OEB approved a mechanism to collect the RRRP through the 
Wholesale Market Service Charge. Variances between the amounts remitted by the IESO to Hydro One and the fixed entitlements 
defined in the regulation, and subsequent OEB utility rate decisions, are tracked by the Company in the RRRP variance account to be 
disposed of at a later date.  

Long-term Project Development Cost Account
On May 28, 2009 the OEB approved the creation of a deferral account to record Hydro One’s costs of preliminary work to 
advance certain transmission projects identified in its 2009 and 2010 transmission rate application. On March 25, 2010, the OEB  
issued a decision amending the scope of the account to include the 20 major transmission projects identified in the September 21,  
2009 request from the Government of Ontario. In its December 23, 2010 decision, the OEB approved the recovery of the 
December 31, 2009 balance, including accrued interest, over a one-year period from January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2011. 
The Company anticipates that it will seek recovery for the remaining balance in its next transmission rate application. In the absence 
of rate-regulated accounting, operation, maintenance and administration expenses would have been higher by $5 million (2009 - 
$2 million). 

Rider 4 or Revenue Recovery Account
On December 18, 2008, the OEB announced its decision regarding the Company’s rate application in respect of the Distribution 
Business of Hydro One Networks. The approved rates were effective May 1, 2008 with an implementation date of February 1, 
2009. The OEB approved the establishment of Rider 4 to record the revenue differential between existing distribution rates and the 
new rates. The OEB ordered that the approved revenue requirement be retroactively recovered, through a rate rider, over a period  
of 27 months commencing February 1, 2009 and ending April 30, 2011. 

Regulatory Liabilities
Deferred Pension 
In accordance with the OEB’s 1999 transitional rate order, pension costs are recorded in results of operations when employer 
contributions are paid into the pension plan. The Company’s deferred pension asset represents the cumulative difference between 
employer contributions and pension costs and the deferred pension regulatory liability results from the Company’s recognition, as the 
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result of OEB direction, of revenues and expenses in different periods than would be the case for an unregulated enterprise. In the 
absence of rate-regulated accounting, operating, maintenance and administration expense would have been lower by $22 million 
(2009 - higher by $9 million). 

External Revenue Variance Account
In its May 28, 2009 decision, the OEB approved forecasted amounts related to export service revenue, external revenue from 
secondary land use and external revenue from station maintenance and engineering and construction work. These revenue sources 
are an offset to the Company’s revenue requirement, and as such, the OEB requested the establishment of new variance accounts 
to capture any difference between the approved forecast and actual revenues from these sources of external revenue. The balance 
reflects the excess of external revenue compared to the OEB-approved forecast. The OEB’s December 23, 2010 decision approved 
the disposition of the December 31, 2009 balance, including accrued interest, over a one-year period from January 1, 2010 to 
December 31, 2011. 

Retail Settlement Variance Accounts (RSVA) 
Hydro One has deferred certain retail settlement variance amounts under the provisions of Article 490 of the OEB’s Accounting 
Procedures Handbook. The OEB’s December 18, 2008 decision allowed for the disposition of RSVA accumulated since May 1, 
2006 through to April 30, 2008, inclusive of interest, within the Regulatory Liability Refund Account (RLRA). Hydro One Networks 
accumulated a net liability in its RSVA from May 1, 2008 to December 31, 2009. On April 9, 2010, the OEB announced 
its decision regarding Hydro One Networks’ distribution rate application which included the allowance to dispose of the RSVA 
accumulated during that period, inclusive of interest, within Rider 6. Hydro One Networks has accumulated a net liability in its RSVA 
account since December 31, 2009.

RLRA
The OEB’s December 18, 2008 decision approved certain distribution-related deferral account balances sought by Hydro One in its 
application including RSVA amounts, deferred tax changes, OEB costs and smart meters. Amounts approved for recovery represented 
balances incurred prior to April 30, 2008, plus associated interest. The OEB ordered that the approved balances be aggregated 
into a single regulatory account to be recovered over a 27-month period from February 1, 2009 to April 30, 2011. 

Rider 6
As part of the April 9, 2010 decision, the OEB approved certain distribution-related deferral account balances sought by Hydro 
One in its application including retail settlement variance accounts, regulatory asset recovery account I, retail cost variance accounts 
and smart meters. The OEB ordered that the approved balances be aggregated into a single regulatory account to be recovered 
over an 18-month period from May 1, 2010 to December 31, 2011.

Rider 8
As part of the April 9, 2010 decision, the OEB also requested the establishment of deferral accounts which capture the difference 
between the revenue recorded on the basis of Green Energy Plan expenditures incurred and actual recoveries received.  

Hydro One Brampton Rider
On April 13, 2010, the OEB issued a decision regarding the 2010 distribution rates of Hydro One Brampton. Included in the 
OEB’s decision was the approval of certain deferral account balances, primarily RSVA, sought by Hydro One Brampton in its 
application. The OEB ordered that the approved balances be aggregated into a single regulatory account to be disposed of over a 
two-year period from May 1, 2010 to April 30, 2012.

Export and Wheeling Fees
Consistent with the IESO’s Market Rules, an export and wheeling fee is collected by the IESO and remitted to Hydro One at the 
rate of $1 per MWh on electricity exported outside of Ontario. The amounts collected in respect of these export and wheeling fees, 
plus interest, were taken into consideration in the revenue requirement of Hydro One Networks’ Transmission Business as part of the 
Company’s transmission rate application filed with the OEB in September 2006. On August 16, 2007, the OEB issued its decision 
in respect of the Company’s transmission rate application and approved final amounts and disposition treatments for the export and 
wheeling fees. The export and wheeling fees were factored into rates over a four-year period ending December 31, 2010. 
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9.  DEBT
 
December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009
  
Long-term debt:  
 7.15% debentures due 2010 - 400
 3.89% notes due 2010 - 200
 4.08% notes due 2011 1 250 250
 6.40% notes due 2011 250 250
 5.77% notes due 2012 600 600
 5.00% notes due 2013 600 600
 3.13% notes due 2014 1 750 250
 2.95% notes due 2015 250 -
 4.64% notes due 2016 450 450
 5.18% notes due 2017 600 600
  4.40% notes due 2020 300 -
 7.35% debentures due 2030 400 400
 6.93% notes due 2032 500 500
 6.35% notes due 2034 385 385
 5.36% notes due 2036 600 600
 4.89% notes due 2037 400 400
 6.03% notes due 2039 300 300
 5.49% notes due 2040 500 300
 6.59% notes due 2043 315 315
 5.00% notes due 2046 325 75
  7,775 6,875
Add: Unrealized hedged loss 1 8 11
Less: Long-term debt payable within one year (500) (600)
 Net unamortized premiums  27 24
 Unamortized debt issuance costs (32) (29)
Long-term debt 7,278 6,281

1  The unrealized hedged loss relates to the MTN Series 14 Note, and $500 million of the MTN Series 19 Note issued in January of 2010, which are  
accounted for as fair value hedges. The unrealized hedged loss is offset by the $8 million (2009 - $11 million) unrealized gain on the related fixed-to-floating 
interest rate swap agreements.

Short-term debt represents promissory notes pursuant to the Company’s Commercial Paper Program. The notes are denominated in 
Canadian dollars with varying maturities not exceeding 365 days. In 2010, the notes had a weighted average interest rate  
of 0.05%.

Hydro One has a $1,250 million committed and unused revolving standby credit facility with a syndicate of banks maturing in June 
2013. If used, interest on the facility would apply based on Canadian benchmark rates. This credit facility supports the Company’s 
Commercial Paper Program. In addition, the Company holds $250 million of Province of Ontario Floating Rate Notes.

The Company issues notes for long-term financing under the Medium-Term Note (MTN) Program. The maximum authorized principal 
amount of medium-term notes issuable under this program is $3,000 million, of which $1,250 million was remaining and available 
as at December 31, 2010. 

The long-term debt is unsecured and denominated in Canadian dollars. Such debt is summarized by the number of years to maturity 
in Note 10.
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10.  CARRYING AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The carrying value of financial instruments as at December 31, 2010 is as follows:

   Other
   Financial
  Derivatives  Instruments
  Used for Used for Held-for-  Loans and Other Financial 
(Canadian dollars in millions) Hedging Hedging Trading Receivables Liabilities 
  
Financial Assets     
Cash - - 33 - -
Accounts receivable - - - 911 -
Short-term investments - - 139 - -
Long-term investment - - 249 - -
Other assets 8 - - 1 -
     
Financial Liabilities     
Accounts payable and 
 accrued charges1 - - - - 861
Long-term debt - 758 - - 7,020
1 Accounts payable and accrued charges do not include income taxes payable or dividends payable.

The carrying amounts of all financial instruments, except long-term debt, approximate fair value. The fair value of derivative financial 
instruments reflects the estimated amount that the Company, if required to settle an outstanding contract, would have been required 
to pay or would be entitled to receive at year end. The fair value of long-term debt, provided in the table below, is based on 
unadjusted year-end market prices for the same or similar debt of the same remaining maturities. The fair value measurement of long-
term debt is categorized as level 1 as the inputs used reflect quoted prices in an active market. 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009
  Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 
  Value Value Value Value 
Long-term debt1 7,775 8,555 6,875 7,302

1   The carrying value of long-term debt represents the par value of the notes and debentures, other than the MTN Series 14 Note and $500 million of the  
MTN Series 19 Note, which are designated as part of hedging relationships. 

Exposure to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk arises in the normal course of the Company’s business. 

Market Risk
Market risk refers primarily to the risk of loss that results from changes in commodity prices, foreign exchange rates and interest 
rates. The Company does not have commodity risk. The Company does have foreign exchange risk as it enters into agreements 
to purchase materials and equipment associated with the Company’s capital programs and projects that are settled in foreign 
currencies. This foreign exchange risk is not material, although the Company could in the future decide to issue foreign currency 
denominated debt which would be hedged back to Canadian dollars consistent with Hydro One’s risk management policy. Hydro 
One is exposed to fluctuations in interest rates as the regulated rate of return for the Company’s Distribution and Transmission 
Businesses is derived using a formulaic approach which is based on the forecast for long-term Government of Canada bond yields 
and the spread in 30-year “A”-rated Canadian utility bonds over the 30-year benchmark Government of Canada bond yield. The 
Company estimates that a 1% decrease in the forecasted long-term Government of Canada bond yield or the “A”-rated Canadian 
utility spread used in determining the Company’s rate of return would reduce its Transmission Business’ results of operations by 
approximately $16 million and its Distribution Business’ results of operations by approximately $10 million. 
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Credit Risk
Financial assets create credit risk that a counter-party will fail to discharge an obligation, causing a financial loss. As at December 
31, 2010, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to any class of financial assets. The Company’s revenue 
is earned from a broad base of customers. As a result, Hydro One did not earn a significant amount of revenue from any individual 
customer. As at December 31, 2010, there were no significant balances of accounts receivable due from any single customer.

In the year, the Company’s provision for bad debts remained unchanged at $25 million (2009 - $25 million). Minor adjustments 
and write-offs were determined on the basis of a review of overdue accounts, taking into consideration historical experience. As at 
December 31, 2010, approximately 3% of the Company’s accounts receivable were aged more than 60 days.

Hydro One manages its counter-party credit risk through various techniques including entering into transactions with highly-rated 
counter-parties; limiting total exposure levels with individual counter-parties consistent with the Company’s Board-approved Credit Risk 
Policy; entering into master agreements which enable net settlement and the contractual right of offset; and monitoring the financial 
condition of counter-parties. The Company’s credit risk for accounts receivable is limited to the carrying amount on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet.

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage interest rate risk. Hydro One may enter into derivative agreements such 
as forward-starting pay fixed-interest rate swap agreements to hedge against the effect of future interest rate movements on long-term 
fixed rate borrowing requirements. No such agreements were outstanding as at December 31, 2010. 

Derivative financial instruments result in exposure to credit risk since there is a risk of counter-party default. As at December 31, 
2010, the derivative instruments held by Hydro One include a $250 million fixed-to-floating interest rate swap agreement to convert 
the 4.08% coupon note maturing March 3, 2011 into a three-month variable rate debt and two $250 million fixed-to-floating 
interest rate swap agreements to convert $500 million of the 3.13% coupon note maturing November 19, 2014 into a three-month 
variable rate debt. The counter-party credit risk exposure on the fair value of the three interest rate swap contracts is $11 million as at 
December 31, 2010. 

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk refers to the Company’s ability to meet its financial obligations as they come due. Short-term liquidity is provided  
through cash and cash equivalents on hand, funds from operations, the Company’s Commercial Paper Program, under which it is 
authorized to issue up to $1,000 million in short-term notes with a term to maturity of less than 365 days, our revolving credit facility 
and through our holdings of Province of Ontario Floating Rate Notes. The Commercial Paper Program is supported by a total of  
$1,500 million in liquidity facilities comprised of a $1,250 million committed revolving credit facility with a syndicate of banks 
maturing June 1, 2013 and the holding of $250 million of Province of Ontario Floating Rate Notes. The short-term liquidity under  
this program and anticipated levels of funds from operations should be sufficient to fund our normal operating requirements.

As at December 31, 2010, accounts payable and accrued charges in the amount of $861 million are expected to be settled in 
cash at their carrying amounts within the next year. Long-term debt maturing over the next twelve months is $500 million. Interest 
payments over the next 12 months on the Company’s outstanding long-term debt amount to $405 million.

As at December 31, 2010, Hydro One has issued long-term debt in the amount of $7,775 million and the Company is required 
to make interest payments in the amount of $6,599 million. Principal outstanding, interest payments and related weighted average 
interest rates are summarized by the number of years to maturity in the following table.
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  Principal Outstanding on  Weighted Average
  Notes and Debentures Interest Payments Interest Rate
Years to Maturity (Canadian dollars in millions) (Canadian dollars in millions) (Percent) 
1 year 500 405 5.2
2 years 600 383 5.8
3 years 600 349 5.0
4 years 750 319 3.1
5 years 250 295 3.0
  2,700 1,751 4.5
6 – 10 years 1,350 1,246 4.8
Over 10 years 3,725 3,602 6.0
  7,775 6,599 5.3
  

11.  CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
The Company’s objectives with respect to its capital structure are to maintain effective access to capital on a long-term basis at 
reasonable rates, and to deliver appropriate financial returns. In order to ensure ongoing effective access to capital, the Company 
targets to maintain an “A” category long-term credit rating. 

The Company considers its capital structure to consist of shareholder’s equity, short-term notes payable, long-term debt and cash and 
cash equivalents. The Company’s capital structure as at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 was as follows:

(Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009
Short-term notes payable - 55
Long-term debt payable within one year 500 600
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 33 (26)
 467 681
  
Long-term debt 7,278 6,281
  
Preferred Shares 323 323
Common Shares 3,314 3,314
Retained Earnings 2,354 1,791
 5,991 5,428
Total Capital 13,736 12,390
 
For the purposes of this table and the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, “cash and cash equivalents” refers to the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet items “cash” and “bank indebtedness.”

The Company has customary covenants typically associated with long-term debt. Among other things, Hydro One’s long-term debt 
and credit facility covenants limit the permissible debt to 75% of the Company’s total capitalization, limit the ability to sell assets and 
impose a negative pledge provision, subject to customary exceptions. At December 31, 2010, Hydro One is in compliance with all 
of these covenants and limitations. 
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12.  EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS 
Hydro One has a contributory defined benefit pension plan covering all regular employees of Hydro One and its subsidiaries, 
except Hydro One Brampton. Employees of Hydro One Brampton participate in the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System 
(OMERS), a multi-employer public sector pension fund. Current contributions by Hydro One Brampton are approximately $1 million 
annually.

Plan Asset Mix
Hydro One’s pension plan asset mix at December 31, 2010 and 2009 was as follows:
   % of Plan Assets 
December 31 2010 2009
Equity securities 63.5 63.3
Debt securities 30.7 32.9
Other 5.8 3.8
  100.0 100.0

Supplementary Information
The Hydro One pension plan holds $14 million of Hydro One Inc. corporate bonds (2009 - $9 million) and holds debt securities of 
the Province of $70 million at December 31, 2010 (2009 - $88 million).

The Company’s pension plan provides benefits based on highest three-year average pensionable earnings. For new management 
employees who commenced employment on or after January 1, 2004, and for new Society of Energy Professionals hired after 
November 17, 2005, benefits are based on highest five-year average pensionable earnings. After retirement, pensions are indexed 
to inflation. The measurement date used to determine plan assets and the accrued benefit obligation is December 31. Based on the  
actuarial valuation filed with the Financial Services Commission of Ontario (FSCO) in September 2010, effective for December 31,  
2009, the Company contributed $193 million to its pension plan in respect of 2010 (2009 - $112 million), $145 million of which 
is required to satisfy minimum funding requirements. The Company made an additional payment of $48 million in December 2010. 
Contributions are payable one month in arrears. All of the contributions are expected to be in the form of cash. Contributions after 
2012 will be based on an actuarial valuation effective December 31, 2012 and will depend on future investment returns, and 
changes in benefits or actuarial assumptions.

Total cash payments for employee future benefits made in 2010, consisting of cash contributed by the Company to its funded pension 
plan and cash payments directly to beneficiaries for its unfunded other benefit plans, was $233 million (2009 - $155 million).

      



75HYDRO ONE ANNUAL REPORT 2010

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED F INANCIAL STATEMENTS

   Employee Future Benefits
  Pension other than Pension 
Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Change in accrued benefit obligation    
Accrued benefit obligation, January 1 4,566 4,007 1,004 874
Current service cost 94 73 24 19
Interest cost 294 286 65 63
Reciprocal transfers 4 - - -
Benefits paid (262) (270) (42) (43)
Net actuarial loss (gain)  300 470 127 91
Accrued benefit obligation, December 31 4,996 4,566 1,178 1,004
    
Change in plan assets    
Fair value of plan assets, January 1 4,336 3,836 - -
Actual return on plan assets 421 642 - -
Reciprocal transfers 4 6 - -
Benefits paid (262) (270) - -
Employer’s contributions1 191 112 - -
Employees’ contributions 24 21 - -
Administrative expenses (15) (11) - -
Fair value of plan assets, December 31 4,699 4,336 - -
    
Funded status    
Unfunded benefit obligation (297) (230) (1,178) (1,004)
Unamortized net actuarial losses (gains) 746 640 144 10
Unamortized past service costs 11 14 11 14
Deferred pension asset (accrued benefit liability) 460 424 (1,023) (980)
Less: Current portion - - 43 40
Deferred pension asset (long-term liability) 460 424 (980) (940)

1 In January 2011, the Company made a contribution of $13 million in respect of 2010 (2010 - $10 million in respect of 2009). 
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   Employee Future Benefits
  Pension Other Than Pension
Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Components of net periodic benefit cost    
Current service cost, net of employee contributions 70 52 24 19
Interest cost 294 286 65 63
Actual return on plan assets net of expenses (406) (631) - -
Actuarial loss (gain) 300 470 127 91
Other (1) (1) - -
Costs arising in the period 257 176 216 173
Differences between costs arising in the period and  
 costs recognized in the period in respect of:    
 Return on plan assets 129 359 - -
 Actuarial (gain) loss (236) (410) (134) (101)
 Plan amendments 4 4 4 4
Net periodic benefit cost 154 129 86 76
Charged to results of operations2 134 68 51 46
    
Effect of a 1% increase in health care cost trends on:    
 Accrued benefit obligation, December 31 - - 185 141
 Service cost and interest cost - - 15 13
    
Effect of a 1% decrease in health care cost trends on:    
 Accrued benefit obligation, December 31 - - (146) (113)
 Service cost and interest cost - - (12) (10)
    
Significant assumptions    
For net periodic benefit cost:    
 Expected rate of return on plan assets 6.50% 7.25% - -
 Weighted average discount rate 6.50% 7.25% 6.50% 7.25%
 Rate of compensation scale escalation (without merit) 2.50% 2.75% 2.50% 2.75%
 Rate of cost of living increase  2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
 Average remaining service life of 
     employees (years) 10 10 11 11
 Rate of increase in health care cost trend3 - - 4.81% 4.81%
    
For accrued benefit obligation, December 31:    
 Weighted average discount rate  5.75% 6.50% 5.75% 6.50%
 Rate of compensation scale escalation (without merit) 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%
 Rate of cost of living increase  2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
 Rate of increase in health care cost trend4 - - 4.86% 4.81%

2  The Company follows the cash basis of accounting. During 2010, pension costs of $191 million (2009 - $113 million) were attributed to labour, of which 

$134 million (2009 - $68 million) was charged to operations and $57 million (2009 - $45 million) was capitalized as part of the cost of fixed assets.

3 8.57% in 2010 grading down to 4.81% per annum in and after 2029 (2009 – 8.81% in 2009 grading down to 4.81% per annum in and after 2029).

4 8.31% in 2011 grading down to 4.86% per annum in and after 2029 (2009 – 8.57% in 2010 grading down to 4.81% per annum in and after 2029).
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13.  ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITIES
 Polychlorinated Land Assessment
 Biphenyls  and Remediation
December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions)  (PCB)  (LAR) Total
2010   
Opening balance, January 1  262 65 327
Interest accretion 13 2 15
Expenditures (9) (8) (17)
Revaluation adjustment (15) (1) (16)
Ending balance, December 31 251 58 309
Less: Current portion  (15) (7) (22)
 236 51 287
   
2009   
Opening balance, January 1  225 28 253
Interest accretion 12 1 13
Expenditures (4) (5) (9)
Revaluation adjustment 29 41 70
Ending balance, December 31 262 65 327
Less: Current portion  (14) (10) (24)
 248 55 303

Estimated future environmental expenditures for each of the five years subsequent to December 31, 2010 and in total thereafter are 
as follows: 2011 - $22 million; 2012 - $23 million; 2013 - $34 million; 2014 - $40 million; 2015 - $33 million and thereafter - 
$217 million.  Of the total estimated future expenditures, $308 million relate to PCB (2009 - $320 million) and $61 million to LAR 
(2009 - $69 million).  

Consistent with its accounting policy for environmental costs, Hydro One records a liability for the estimated future expenditures 
associated with the removal and destruction of PCB-contaminated insulating oils and related electrical equipment and for the 
assessment and remediation of chemically-contaminated lands. The Company’s recorded liability is based on management’s best 
estimate of the present value of the future expenditures expected to be required to comply with existing regulations. 

There are uncertainties in estimating future environmental costs due to potential external events such as changes in legislation or 
regulations and advances in remediation technologies. All factors used in estimating the Company’s environmental liabilities represent 
management’s best estimates of the present value cost required to meet existing legislation or regulations. However, it is reasonably 
possible that numbers or volumes of contaminated assets, cost estimates to perform work, inflation assumptions and the assumed 
pattern of annual cash flows may differ significantly from the Company’s current assumptions. In addition, for the PCB program, the 
availability of critical resources such as skilled labour and replacement assets and the ability to take maintenance outages in critical 
facilities may influence the timing of expenditures. Estimated environmental liabilities are reviewed annually or more frequently if 
significant changes in regulation or other relevant factors occur. Estimate changes are accounted for prospectively.

In determining the amounts to be recorded as environmental liabilities, the Company estimates the current cost of completing required 
work and makes assumptions as to when the future expenditures will actually be incurred, in order to generate future cash flow 
information. A long-term inflation assumption of approximately 2% has been used to express these current cost estimates as estimated 
future expenditures. Future environmental expenditures have been discounted using factors ranging from 3.75% to 6.25%, depending 
on the appropriate rate for the period when increases in the obligations were first recorded. 

PCBs
On September 17, 2008, Environment Canada published its final regulations governing the management, storage and disposal of 
PCBs. These regulations were enacted under the Canadian Environmental Protection Act, 1999. The regulations impose timelines 
for disposal of PCBs based on criteria including type of equipment, in-use status and PCB-contamination thresholds. All PCBs in 
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concentrations of 500 parts per million (ppm) or more, except for specified equipment, had to be disposed of by the end of 2009. 
However, in 2009, Hydro One sought and received an extension until 2014 for the removal of PCBs from certain station equipment 
that could potentially be contaminated in excess of this threshold. Under the regulations, PCBs in equipment in concentrations greater 
than 50 ppm and less than 500 ppm, or greater than 50 ppm for pole-top transformers, pole-top auxiliary electrical equipment and 
light ballasts must be disposed of by the end of 2025. 

Management judges that the Company currently has very few PCB-contaminated assets in excess of 500 ppm. Priority will be given 
to targeting inspection and testing work toward identifying and removing PCBs in assets that must be compliant by 2014. Assets to 
be disposed of by 2025 primarily consist of pole-mounted distribution line transformers and light ballasts. Contaminated distribution 
and transmission station equipment will generally be replaced or will be decontaminated by removing PCB-contaminated insulating 
oil and retrofilling with replacement oil that is less than 2 ppm.

Management’s best estimate of the total estimated future expenditures to comply with PCB regulations is about $308 million. These 
expenditures are expected to be incurred over the period from 2011 to 2025. As a result of its most recent cost estimate to comply 
with existing PCB regulations, the Company reduced its December 31, 2010 PCB liability by approximately $15 million compared 
to September 30, 2010.  

LAR
As part of its annual review of environmental liabilities, the Company also reviewed its liability for LAR. As a result of this review, 
the Company reduced its December 31, 2010 liability by approximately $1 million compared to September 30, 2010. The 
Company’s best estimate of the total future expenditures to complete its LAR program is about $61 million.  

14.  ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS
Consistent with the Company’s accounting policy for asset retirement obligations, Hydro One records a liability for the present value 
of the estimated future expenditures associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets that the Company is legally required 
to remove. A corresponding amount is recorded as an asset retirement cost that is capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the 
related fixed asset.  

There are uncertainties in estimating future expenditures due to potential external events such as changing legislation or regulations 
and advances in remediation technologies. All factors used in estimating the Company’s asset retirement obligations represent 
management’s best estimates of the costs required to meet existing legislation or regulations. However, it is reasonably possible that 
numbers or volumes of contaminated assets, cost estimates to perform work, inflation assumptions and the assumed pattern of annual 
cash flows may differ significantly from the Company’s current assumptions. Asset retirement obligations are reviewed annually or 
more frequently if significant changes in regulation or other relevant factors occur. Estimate changes are accounted for prospectively.

In determining the amounts to be recorded as asset retirement obligations, the Company estimates the current fair value for 
completing required removal and remediation work and makes assumptions as to when the future expenditures will actually be 
incurred, in order to generate future cash flow information. A long-term inflation assumption of approximately 2% has been used to 
express these current cost estimates as estimated future expenditures. Future expenditures have been discounted using factors ranging 
from approximately 3% to 5%, depending on the appropriate rate for the period when expenditures are expected to be incurred.

Hydro One has recorded a liability for the estimated future expenditures associated with the removal and disposal of asbestos-
containing materials installed in some of its facilities. The Company’s liability is based on management’s best estimate of the present 
value of the estimated future expenditures to comply with existing regulations. During the year, the Company completed a study with 
the aid of an expert external consultant to estimate the future expenditures required to remove asbestos prior to facility demolition. The 
Company has recorded a $7 million liability in respect of this obligation as at December 31, 2010 based on the net present value 
of the Company’s best estimate of the total future expenditures of $18 million to complete its asbestos removal activities. 

Hydro One has also recorded a $4 million asset retirement obligation related to the decommissioning and removal of its switching 
station located at Ontario Power Generation’s Abitibi Canyon Generating Station.
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15.  SHARE CAPITAL
Common and Preferred Shares
On March 31, 2000, the Company issued to the Province 12,920,000 5.5% cumulative preferred shares with a redemption value 
of $25.00 per share, and 99,990 common shares, bringing the total number of outstanding common shares to 100,000. The 
Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of preferred and common shares. 

The preferred shares are entitled to an annual cumulative dividend of $18 million, which is payable on a quarterly basis. The 
preferred shares are redeemable at the option of the Province at a price of $25 per share, representing the stated value, plus 
any accrued and unpaid dividends if the Province sells a number of the common shares which it owns to the public such that the 
Province’s holdings are reduced to less than 50% of the common shares of the Company. Hydro One may elect, without condition, 
to pay all or part of this redemption price by issuing additional common shares to the Province. If the Province does not exercise 
its redemption right, the Company would have the ability to adjust the dividend on the preferred shares to produce a yield that is 
0.50% less than the then-current dividend market yield for similarly rated preferred shares. The preferred shares do not carry voting 
rights, except in limited circumstances, and would rank in priority over the common shares upon liquidation.

Dividends
Common dividends are declared at the sole discretion of the Hydro One Board of Directors, and are recommended by management 
based on results of operations, maintenance of the deemed regulatory capital structure, financial condition, cash requirements and 
other relevant factors such as industry practice and shareholder expectations. 

In 2010, preferred dividends in the amount of $18 million (2009 - $18 million) and common dividends in the amount of $10  
million (2009 - $170 million) were declared. 

Earnings per Share
Earnings per share is calculated as net income during the year, after cumulative preferred dividends, divided by the weighted 
average number of common shares outstanding during the year. 

16.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Province, OEFC, IESO, Ontario Power Authority (OPA) and Ontario Power Generation Inc. (OPG) are related parties of Hydro 
One. In addition the OEB is related to the Company by virtue of its status as a Provincial Crown Corporation. Transactions between 
these parties and Hydro One were as follows: 

Hydro One received revenue for transmission services from IESO, based on uniform transmission rates approved by the OEB. 
Transmission revenue for 2010 includes $1,277 million (2009 - $1,121 million) related to these services. Hydro One receives 
amounts for rural rate protection from the IESO. Distribution revenue for 2010 includes $127 million (2009 - $127 million) related 
to this program. Hydro One also received revenue related to the supply of electricity to remote northern communities from the IESO. 
Distribution revenue for 2010 includes $28 million (2009 - $31 million) related to these services.

In 2010, Hydro One purchased power in the amount of $2,361 million (2009 - $2,265 million) from the IESO administered  
electricity market, $19 million (2009 - $19 million) from OPG and $13 million (2009 - $11 million) from OEFC. 

Under the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, the OEB is required to recover all of its annual operating costs from gas and electricity 
distributors and electricity transmitters. In 2010, Hydro One incurred $11 million (2009 - $10 million) in OEB fees.

Hydro One has service level agreements with the other successor corporations. These services include field, engineering, logistics 
and telecommunications services. Revenues related to the provision of construction and equipment maintenance services to the other 
successor corporations were $14 million (2009 - $13 million), primarily for the Transmission Business. Operation, maintenance and 
administration costs related to the purchase of services from the other successor corporations were less than $2 million in each of 
2010 and 2009.
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The OPA funds substantially all of our Conservation Demand Management (CDM) programs. The funding includes program costs, 
incentives, management fees and bonuses. In 2010, Hydro One received $36 million from the OPA in respect of the CDM 
programs (2009 - $23 million) and had a net accounts receivable of $1 million in both 2010 and 2009.

The provision for payments in lieu of corporate income taxes, property taxes and capital taxes was paid or payable to the OEFC 
and dividends were paid or payable to the Province.

The amounts due to and from related parties as a result of the transactions referred to above are as follows:

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009
Accounts receivable 111 108
Accounts payable and accrued charges (283) (254)

Included in accounts payable and accrued charges are amounts owing to the IESO in respect of power purchases of $222 million 
(2009 - $211 million). 

17.  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the purposes of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, “cash and cash equivalents” refers to the Consolidated Balance 
Sheet items “cash”, “short-term investments” and “bank indebtedness.” The changes in non-cash balances related to operations 
consist of the following:

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009
Accounts receivable increase  (68) (89)
Materials and supplies increase - (2)
Accounts payable and accrued charges increase 87 -
Accrued interest increase  10 10
Long-term accounts payable and other liabilities (decrease) increase (3) 4
Employee future benefits other than pension increase  40 32
Other 11 7
 77 (38)

 Supplementary information:  
Interest paid 409 361
Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 48 77
 

18.  CONTINGENCIES 
Legal Proceedings
Hydro One is involved in various lawsuits, claims and regulatory proceedings in the normal course of business. In the opinion of 
management, the outcome of such matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, 
results of operations or cash flows. 

On March 29, 1999, the Whitesand First Nation Band commenced an action in the Ontario Superior Court of Justice, naming as 
defendants the Province, the Attorney General of Canada, Ontario Hydro, OEFC, OPG and our Company. On May 24, 2001, the 
Whitesand First Nation Band issued an almost identical claim against the same parties. The Red Rock First Nation Band commenced 
a similar claim on September 7, 2001 against the same parties. In 2004, the various claims were consolidated. These actions 
sought declaratory relief, injunctive relief and damages in an unspecified amount. The claims arose out of flooding activities of 
Ontario Hydro and the alleged effects of flooding on lands in which the two First Nations claim an interest. In May 2009, all parties 
entered into an agreement to dismiss all actions against Hydro One on a without costs basis. On July 27, 2010, by court order, the 
consolidated action and the cross claim of the Attorney General of Canada against Hydro One were dismissed without costs.
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Transfer of Assets
The transfer orders by which we acquired certain of Ontario Hydro’s businesses as of April 1, 1999 did not transfer title to some 
assets located on lands held for bands or bodies of Indians under the Indian Act (Canada). Currently, OEFC holds these assets. 
Under the terms of the transfer orders, we are required to manage these assets until we have obtained all consents necessary to 
complete the transfer of title of these assets to us. We cannot predict the aggregate amount that we may have to pay, either on an 
annual or one-time basis, to obtain the required consents. However, we anticipate having to pay more than the $761,500 that 
we paid to these Indian bands and bodies in 2010. If we cannot obtain consents from the Indian bands and bodies, OEFC will 
continue to hold these assets for an indefinite period of time. If we cannot reach a satisfactory settlement, we may have to relocate 
these assets from the Indian lands to other locations at a cost that could be substantial or, in a limited number of cases, to abandon a 
line and replace it with diesel-generation facilities. The costs relating to these assets could have a material adverse effect on our net 
income if we are not able to recover them in future rate orders. 

19.  COMMITMENTS
Agreement with Inergi
Effective March 1, 2002, Inergi LP (Inergi) (a wholly owned subsidiary of Cap Gemini Canada Inc.) began providing services to 
Hydro One. On May 1, 2010, consistent with the terms of the contract, the Company extended the Master Services Agreement 
with Inergi for a further three-year period to expire on February 28, 2015. As a result of this agreement, Hydro One receives from 
Inergi a range of services including business processing and information technology outsourcing services, as well as core system 
support related primarily to SAP implementation and optimization. Inergi billing for these services has ranged between $93 million 
and $130 million per year and is subject to external benchmarking every three years to ensure Hydro One is receiving a defined 
competitive and continuously improved price. In connection with this agreement, on March 1, 2002 the Company transferred 
approximately 900 employees to Inergi, including about 130 non-regular employees.

The annual commitments under the agreement in each of the five years subsequent to December 31, 2010, and in total thereafter 
are as follows: 2011 - $143 million; 2012 - $139 million; 2013 - $135 million; 2014 - $130 million; 2015 - $22 million; and 
thereafter - $nil. The agreement expires on February 28, 2015.  

Prudential Support
Purchasers of electricity in Ontario, through the IESO, are required to provide security to mitigate the risk of their default based on 
their expected activity in the market. As at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the Company provided prudential 
support to the IESO on behalf of Hydro One Networks and Hydro One Brampton using only parental guarantees of $325 million. 
Prudential support at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 was also provided on behalf of two distributors using 
guarantees of $660 thousand. The IESO could draw on these guarantees if these subsidiaries or distributors fail to make a payment 
required by a default notice issued by the IESO. The maximum potential payment is the face value of any bank letters of credit 
plus the nominal amount of the corporate guarantee. If Hydro One’s highest long-term credit rating deteriorated to below the “Aa” 
category, the Company would be required to resume providing letters of credit as prudential support. 

Retirement Compensation Arrangements
Bank letters of credit have been issued to provide security for the Company’s liability under the terms of a trust fund established 
pursuant to the supplementary pension plan for the employees of Hydro One and its subsidiaries. The trustee is required to draw 
upon the letters of credit if Hydro One is in default of its obligations under the terms of this plan. Such obligations include the 
requirement to provide the trustee with an annual actuarial report as well as letters of credit sufficient to secure the Company’s  
liability under the plan, to pay benefits payable under the plan and to pay the letter of credit fee. The maximum potential payment  
is the face value of the bank letters of credit. As at December 31, 2010, Hydro One had bank letters of credit of $113 million 
(2009 - $107 million) outstanding relating to retirement compensation arrangements.

Operating Leases
The future minimum lease payments under operating leases for each of the five years subsequent to December 31, 2010, and in 
total thereafter are as follows: 2011 - $5 million; 2012 - $8 million; 2013 - $6 million; 2014 - $7 million; 2015 - $2 million; and 
thereafter - $25 million.
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20.  SEGMENT REPORTING
Hydro One has three reportable segments:

	 •	 	The	Transmission	Business,	which	comprises	the	core	business	of	providing	transportation	and	connection	services,	is	
responsible for transmitting electricity throughout the Ontario electricity grid; 

	 •	 The	Distribution	Business,	which	comprises	the	core	business	of	delivering	and	selling	electricity	to	customers;	and	
	 •	 The	“other”	segment,	the	operations	of	which	primarily	consist	of	those	of	the	telecommunications	business.	

The designation of segments is based on a combination of regulatory status and the nature of the products and services provided. 
The accounting policies followed by the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies 
(see Note 2). Segment information on the above basis is as follows:

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) Transmission Distribution Other Consolidated
2010    
Segment profit    
Revenues  1,307 3,754 63 5,124
Purchased power - 2,474 - 2,474
Operation, maintenance and administration 416 602 60 1,078
Depreciation and amortization 273 300 10 583
Income (loss) before financing charges and provision  
 for payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 618 378 (7) 989
Financing charges    342
Income before provision for payments in lieu of
 corporate income taxes    647
Capital expenditures 936 629 5 1,570

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) Transmission Distribution Other Consolidated
2009    
Segment profit    
Revenues  1,147 3,534 63 4,744
Purchased power - 2,326 - 2,326
Operation, maintenance and administration 438 564 55 1,057
Depreciation and amortization 240 287 10 537
Income (loss) before financing charges and provision for  
 payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 469 357 (2) 824
Financing charges    308
Income before provision for payments in lieu of
 corporate income taxes    516
Capital expenditures 918 643 5 1,566

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions)   2010 2009
Total assets  
Transmission   9,805 8,993
Distribution   6,908 6,481
Other   609 161 
    17,322 15,635

All revenues, costs and assets, as the case may be, are earned, incurred or held in Canada. 
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21.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 2, 2011, the Power Workers’ Union (PWU) requested that the Ministry of Labour appoint a Conciliation Officer to 
assist Hydro One and the PWU in finalizing a new collective agreement. Negotiations on the new agreement began on January 10, 
2011.

On January 24, 2011, Hydro One issued notes under the Company’s MTN Program. The issue consisted of $50 million floating-rate 
notes with a maturity date of July 24, 2015.

On January 19, 2011, Hydro One issued $250 million in notes under the Company’s MTN Program. The issue has an additional 
offering of 2.95% notes maturing on September 11, 2015, originally issued on September 13, 2010. The total amount outstanding 
for this issue is now $500 million.

On January 19, 2011, Hydro One entered into two $125 million notional principal amount fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps to 
convert $250 million of Hydro One’s 2.95% coupon note maturing September 11, 2015, into three-month variable rate debt.

On January 17, 2011, the PWU made an appeal to the Divisional Court of the Supreme Court of Canada under the Ontario 
Energy Board Act, 1998 in regard to the OEB’s December 23, 2010 decision approving Hydro One Networks’ transmission rates 
for 2011 and 2012. The PWU submitted the appeal on the grounds that the decision failed to identify operations, maintenance 
and administration costs that the OEB considers imprudent and were therefore omitted in the calculation of the approved revenue 
requirement. The PWU is requesting that the OEB’s determination regarding the revenue requirement and related rates be set aside 
and that the matter be remitted to a differently constituted panel of the OEB for a new hearing with respect to these issues. The 
appeal is not anticipated to impact upon the collection of the new 2011 transmission rates during the proceeding. The outcome of 
this appeal is not determinable at this time.

22.  COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The comparative Consolidated Financial Statements have been reclassified from statements previously presented to conform to the 
presentation of the December 31, 2010 Consolidated Financial Statements.

In the third quarter, the Company changed the presentation of tax balances associated with certain temporary differences related 
to intangible assets and other regulatory account balances, to reflect how these balances will ultimately be settled. As a result, 
the Company reclassified the tax balances associated with these temporary differences, such that the amount of future income tax 
liabilities and the related net regulatory asset in the interim period balance sheet, and in the comparative December 31, 2009 
balance sheet, have been reduced by $160 million. The change in presentation has no impact on revenue or operating cash flow.
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Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Statement of operations data     
Revenues     
Transmission 1,307 1,147 1,212 1,242 1,245
Distribution 3,754 3,534 3,334 3,382 3,273
Other 63 63 51 31 27
  5,124 4,744 4,597 4,655 4,545
Costs     
Purchased power 2,474 2,326 2,181 2,240 2,221
Operation, maintenance and
 administration 1,078 1,057 965 995 880
Depreciation and amortization 583 537 548 521 515
  4,135 3,920 3,694 3,756 3,616
     
Income before financing charges and provision  
 for payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 989 824 903 899 929
Financing charges 342 308 292 295 295
     
Income before provision for payments in lieu 
 of corporate income taxes 647 516 611 604 634
Provision for payments in lieu of corporate 
 income taxes 56 46 113 205 179
Net income 591 470 498 399 455
Basic and fully diluted earnings per
 common share (Canadian dollars)  5,727 4,528 4,797 3,809 4,366
 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions)     
Balance sheet data     
Assets     
 Transmission 9,805 8,993 7,877 7,273 6,950
 Distribution 6,908 6,481 5,873 5,407 5,161
 Other 609 161 128 106 99
Total assets 17,322 15,635 13,878 12,786 12,210
     
Liabilities     
 Current liabilities (including current portion 
     of long-term debt) 1,540 1,655 1,300 1,452 1,194
 Long-term debt 7,278 6,281 5,733 5,063 4,848
 Other long-term liabilities 2,523 2,281 1,721 1,385 1,347
Shareholder’s equity     
 Share capital 3,637 3,637 3,637 3,637 3,637
 Retained earnings 2,354 1,791 1,497 1,258 1,184
 Accumulated other comprehensive income (10) (10) (10) (9) -
Total liabilities and shareholder’s equity 17,322 15,635 13,878 12,786 12,210

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL 
AND OPERATING STATISTICS 
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Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Other financial data     
Capital expenditures     
 Transmission 936 918 704 560 402
 Distribution 629 643 570 511 417
 Other 5 5 10 20 4
Total capital expenditures 1,570 1,566 1,284 1,091 823
     
Ratios     
Net asset coverage on long-term debt1 1.77 1.79 1.84 1.87 1.92
Earnings coverage ratio2 2.39 2.15 2.63 2.67 2.67
     
Operating statistics     
Transmission     
 Units transmitted (TWh)3 142.2 139.2 148.7 152.2 151.1
 Ontario 20-minute system peak demand (MW)3 25,145 24,477 24,231 25,809 27,056
 Ontario 60-minute system peak demand (MW)3 25,075 24,380 24,195 25,737 27,005
 Total transmission lines (circuit-kilometres) 28,951 28,924 29,039 28,915 28,600
Distribution     
 Units distributed to Hydro One customers (TWh)3 29.1 28.9 29.9 30.2 29.0
 Units distributed through Hydro One lines (TWh)3,4 42.5 43.5 44.7 45.7 44.7
  Total distribution lines  (circuit-kilometres) 123,552 123,528 123,260 122,933 122,460
 Customers 1,345,177 1,333,920 1,325,745 1,311,714 1,293,396
     
Total regular employees 5,717 5,427 5,032 4,602 4,295

1  The net asset coverage on long-term debt ratio is calculated as total assets minus total liabilities excluding long-term debt (including current portion) divided  

by long-term debt (including current portion). 
2  The earnings coverage ratio has been calculated as the sum of net income, financing charges and provision for payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 

divided by the sum of financing charges, capitalized interest and cumulative preferred dividends. 
3 System-related statistics include preliminary figures for December.
4  Units distributed through Hydro One lines represent total distribution system requirements and include electricity distributed to consumers who purchased  

power directly from the IESO. 

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL 
AND OPERATING STATISTICS  (continued)

F IVE -YEAR SUMMARY OF F INANCIAL AND OPERATING STATIST ICS
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(as at December 31, 2010)

Board Committees

1  Audit and Finance Committee The Audit and Finance Committee oversees the integrity of accounting policies and financial reporting, internal controls, internal 
audit, significant corporate risk exposures and financial compliance. The committee met eleven times in 2010.

2  Corporate Governance Committee The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for the Board’s governance of the Company. It recommends issues to be 
discussed at meetings of the Board of Directors, reviews the mandate of the Board and each committee of the Board, conducts Board Assessments, monitors the  
quality of management’s relationship with the Board and recommends suitable nominees for election to the Board of Directors. The committee met eight times in 2010.

3  Human Resources Committee The Human Resources Committee (Formerly the Human Resources and Public Policy Committee) is responsible for reviewing the 
appropriateness of our current and future organizational structure, succession plans for corporate and divisional officers, the code of business conduct, the 
performance and remuneration of our senior executives, including recommending to the Board the remuneration of the President and CEO. The committee met 
seven times in 2010.

4  Business Transformation Committee The Business Transformation Committee is an advisory committee of the Board established to assist the Board in its oversight 
responsibility on matters related to the Company’s cornerstone project, the Smart Grid and Continuous Innovation Strategy, and the planning, development and 
implementation of major transmission system or distribution projects including projects described in the Corporation’s Green Energy Implementation Plan.  
The committee met five times in 2010.

5  Regulatory and Public Policy Committee The Regulatory and Public Policy Committee (Formerly the Regulatory and Environment Committee) monitors the  
Company’s compliance with applicable regulatory requirements and legislation and is responsible for identifying, assessing and providing advice  
to the Board of Directors on public affairs issues that have a significant impact on us. The committee oversees compliance programs, policies, standards and  
procedures and reviews the Company’s proposals for rate applications, compliance actions and reports. The committee met seven times in 2010.

6  Health, Safety and Environment Committee The Health, Safety and Environment Committee (Formerly the Health and Safety Committee) is responsible for  
reviewing occupational health, safety and environment policies, standards, and programs and compliance with occupational health, safety and environmental  
legislation, policies and standards, and public health and safety issues. The committee met five times in 2010.

7  Investment – Pension Committee The Investment - Pension Committee’s primary function is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities in all matters 
related to the Corporation’s Pension Plan including the Hydro One Pension Fund.
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